Document Pack

Democratic Services Section
Chief Executive’s Department
Belfast City Council

City Hall

Belfast

BT1 5GS

7" October, 2011

MEETING OF PARKS AND LEISURE COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

The above-named Committee will meet in the Lavery Room (Room G05), City Hall on
Thursday, 13th October, 2011 at 4.30 pm, for the transaction of the business noted
below.

You are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully

PETER McNANEY

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

1.  Routine Matters

(a) Apologies

(b) Minutes

(c) Commencement Time of Future Meetings

(d) Facilities Management Agreement - Termination of Contract (Pages 1 - 2)
To consider further the minute of the meeting of 15" September which, at the
request of Councillor Hendron, was taken back to the committee for further

discussion.

2. Departmental Improvement Programme — Review of Landscape Planning and
Development Unit (Pages 3 - 10)

3. Facility Management Agreements (Pages 11 - 14)

4. Antisocial Behaviour Programme Update (Pages 15 - 30)




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

-2-
London 2012 Olympic Torch Bearer Nominations (Pages 31 - 36)

Suffolk Football Club (Pages 37 - 40)

Out of Hours Use of Leisure Centres (Pages 41 - 42)

Catafalque at Belfast Crematorium (Pages 43 - 52)

Small Grants Scheme (Pages 53 - 54)

Schools Cup at Musgrave Playing Fields (Pages 55 - 56)

Multi Users Games Area at Waterworks (Upper) (Pages 57 - 64)

Hire of Musgrave Bowling Pavilion (Pages 65 - 66)

Mary Peters Track (Pages 67 - 68)

Midnight Soccer Programme (Pages 69 - 72)

Approval to Seek Tenders (Pages 73 - 76)

Consultation on Enabling Legislation for National Parks (Pages 77 - 144)

Healthier Families Progress Report (Pages 145 - 176)

Association for Public Service Excellence Awards 2011 (Pages 177 - 178)

Support for Sport Development and Hospitality Grants (Pages 179 - 186)




Page 1 Agenda ltem 1d

Extract from minutes of -
PARKS AND LEISURE COMMITTEE

15™ SEPTEMBER 2011

“Facility Management Agreement — Termination of Agreement

The Committee was reminded that, on its meeting on 11th August, it had noted a report in
relation to annual evaluation of Facility Management Agreements which had set out the current
position in terms of compliance for the financial year ended March, 2011. The Assistant Director
had reported that the club which held the existing facilities for the Dixon Park Playing Fields had
failed to provide its financial returns and more recent usage figures. As a consequence, a notice of
termination letter had been issued by Legal Services. It had been reported also that the club was
working to meet the stipulated requirements within the dictated time frame approved by Legal
Services. The previous report had stated that any issues of non-compliance would be addressed
through the appropriate channels and might result in the termination of the Facilities Management
Agreement for the Dixon Park Playing Fields following advice from Legal Services and authority
from the Committee. Council officers had been in communication with the club and had made all
reasonable attempts over many months to resolve the situation.

The Committee was advised that the key issue was the non submission of annual accounts
by the local football club as required under Clause 14.1 of the Facility Management Agreement.
Since 5th July 2010, the Council had issued a number of demands requesting submission of its
accounts. The Assistant Director of Parks and Leisure had met with a representative of the club on
14th June, 2011 to discuss the need to provide the accounts and the club had been informed of the
possible termination if those were not forthcoming. On 19th July, 2011 the Legal Services had
written to the club to once more request the accounts and had warned that failure to comply would
result in a termination letter being issued and the club being required to vacate the Dixon Park
Playing Fields. To date the club had not provided the required accounts.

Accordingly, it was recommended that, on the basis that the club was in breach of the
Facility Management Agreement at the Dixon Park Playing Fields, that steps be taken to terminate
the agreement in accordance with Clause 18(i) of the aforementioned Agreement.

The Committee adopted the recommendation but agreed that the club be given until the
date of the Council meeting scheduled to be held on 3rd October to submit properly constituted
accounts.”



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 Agenda ltem 2

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Departmental Improvement Programme — Review of

Landscape Planning and Development Unit
Date: 13 October 2011
Reporting Officer: Rose Crozier, Assistant Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer: Norman Neill, Organisational Development Unit, Human
Resources

1. Relevant Background Information

As part of the Parks and Leisure improvement programme, the
Organisational Development Unit was requested to undertake an operational
review of the Landscape Planning and Development Unit. The original
structure is attached at appendix 1.

The Landscape Planning and Development Unit is responsible to the
Principal Parks and Cemeteries Services Development Manager for the
design and implementation of landscape and minor civil engineering work
associated with parks, open spaces, playing fields and play areas.

It was agreed at the Parks and Leisure Committee meeting of 12 August
2010 that the post of Principal Parks and Cemeteries Services Development
Manager be re-designated to the post of Departmental Portfolio Programme
Manager.

It was also agreed at the committee meeting of 12 August 2010 that the
posts of Woodland and Recreation Manager, Woodland and Recreation
Officer and Woodland and Recreation Assistant be transferred to the
Landscape Planning and Development Unit. As a result of this structural
change, the unit now also has responsibility for the provision of urban
forestry and recreation services.

Following the transfer of the 3 Woodland and Recreation Unit posts and also
following the re-designation of the post of Principal Parks and Cemeteries
Services Development Manager to that of Departmental Portfolio
Programme Manager, reporting lines and structural positions have changed
for all posts across the unit.




Page 4

There has been no recruitment of Industrial Placement Students since
September 2006.

The unit’s project portfolio continues to expand and there is an ongoing
demand for resources — projects that staff are currently involved in include
the following :

- Playing Pitches Strategy

- Connswater Greenway

- Refurbishment of Woodvale and Dunville Parks

- Green Flag standards

- Park Management Plans

- Inspections of Roads and Footpaths

- Play Refurbishment and independent inspections

- Tree Health Condition Surveys

- Tree Preservation Orders

There will also be additional work for the Unit once the High Hedges Act
(Northern Ireland) 2011 becomes operational (within the next 6 months).
However capacity will have to be determined once the extent of the workload
is known.

Key Issues

The operational review of the Landscape Planning and Development Unit
has been completed and recommends that:

o Alljob descriptions are updated to better reflect the structural changes
that have already occurred. New job descriptions will also take
account of current and anticipated workload (for example the
management of the High Hedges legislation).

e All job description are also updated to build on the synergies already
present with the Project Management Unit (PMU) and Portfolio Office
in the Property and Projects Department in order to deliver a co-
ordinated, high quality project managed portfolio for Parks and
Leisure Department.

e The posts of Landscape Planner and Landscape Architect are
amalgamated to a new post of Senior Landscape Planning and
Development Officer thereby increasing flexibility across the unit and
reducing the number of posts.

o The posts of Assistant Landscape Planner and Assistant Landscape
Architect are amalgamated to a new post of Landscape Planning and
Development Officer thereby increasing flexibility across the unit and
reducing the number of posts.

A management (desktop) job evaluation exercise carried out on updated job
descriptions has indicated the following grades:

- Landscape Planning and Development Manager, PO 7

- Senior Civil Engineering Officer, PO 3

- Senior Landscape Planning and Development Officer, PO 3

- Civil Engineering Officer, SO 2




Page 5

- Landscape Planning and Development Officer, SO 2
- Senior Woodland and Recreation Officer, PO 3

- Woodland and Recreation Officer, SO 2

- Woodland and Recreation Arboreal Officer, SO 1

The review also recommends the deletion of 2 Industrial Placement Students
and 1 currently vacant Assistant Architect from the structure thereby
reducing the overall staffing establishment from 14 to 11.

Resource Implications

Finance

It is proposed to re-grade the posts within the Landscape Planning and
Development Unit following a management led job evaluation exercise. The
proposed new structure is attached as Appendix 2. The net cost of the
proposed upgrades is £14,405. It is anticipated that this cost will be met by
the savings generated from the deletion of 3 x posts from the current
organisational structure (see section 2) and also from the termination of a
number of agency contracts within the unit.

The proposed change to grades have been incorporated into the 2012/2013
budget estimates.

Human resources

Staff from the Landscape Planning and Development Unit and their trade
union representatives have been consulted throughout the review process
and all staff in substantive posts are in agreement with the proposed
structure.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

None.

Recommendations

Committee is asked to agree the proposed organisational structure and that
work continues with staff and trade unions to implement the agreed
structure.

Decision Tracking

Assistant Director of Parks and Leisure responsible for implementation.

Key to Abbreviations

None.

Documents Attached

Appendix 1 Current organisational structure for Landscape Planning and
Development Unit

Appendix 2  Proposed organisational structure for Landscape Planning and
Development Unit




Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Parks & Leisure Services - Parks Development - Landscape Planning Unit

Total - 14

)

@)

M

Current Structure

Q)
Landscape Planning &
Development Manager
601 was 520800
(1) (1) (1)
Landscape Architect Civil Engineer Landscape Planner Woodla:/lda: al;s: reation
636 was 5240400 640 was 5230300 635 was 5230400 634 was 5210200
0
Q
T
(1 (1) Q) ~
Assistant Landscape Assistant Engineer Assistant Landscape Woodland & Recreation | (1)
Architect 638 was 5240600 Planne! Officer
637 was 5240500 639 was 5240700 623 was 523500
Woodland & Recreation
Assistant
31 was 523600
(1

Landscape Student
626 was 523950

Industrial Placement
Landscape
Architect
626 was 523950




Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Parks & Leisure Services - Parks Development -
Landscape Planning & Woodland Unit

(1)

Status: Proposed Option
IndicativeTitles

Landscape Planning & Development
Manager

(1

Senior Civil
Engineering Officer

1

Civil Engineering
Officer

Total Establishment - 11

©)

Senior Landscape Planning &
Development Officer

@)

(1) Senior Woodland &
Recreation Coordinator

W

Landscape Planning &
Development Officer

Assistant Woodland
& Recreation M

Coordinator

Woodland &

Recreation Arboreal

Officer

Appendix 2

6 obed



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

Belfast City Council

Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Facility Management Agreements
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer: Emer Boyle, Policy and Business Development Manager
Elaine Black, Policy and Business Development Officer

1 Relevant Background Information

The purpose of this report is to:
¢ Update Members on the root and branch review of Facility
Management Agreements (FMAs) which commenced in April 2011
and is part of one of the central action plans relating to the playing
pitches strategy; and
e Outline the proposed next steps for Members’ and seek agreement
on these.

Facility Management Agreements (FMAs) were first introduced in 1996
when an FMA was entered into by the council with respect to the Mary
Peters Track. Since then further FMAs have been agreed (a total of 15
were in place in 2008).

In April 2008 a new draft framework was agreed for entering into local
partnership agreements with third parties (as a replacement for FMASs).
The new agreements were to be known as ‘partner agreements’. The
focus of the framework was agreed for playing pitches only and
agreements for City of Belfast Golf Club, the Mary Peters Track, bowling
greens and MUGAs were to continue as is.

Individual updates or revisions to existing FMAs have been brought to
Committee on an individual basis as requests have been received.

Current Position

FMAs are legal agreements between the council and, normally, a sporting
organisation or club in respect of a specific facility. The agreement
outlines the responsibilities of the council and the club/organisation which
are generally about minor pitch maintenance and bookings.




Page 12

Since February 2011 the total position with regard to FMAs is as follows:
- seven of the ‘pitch’ FMAs have expired and are renewed on a
month to month basis.
- two of the FMAs are due to expire at the end of July 2012;
- the remaining two will be due to expire in 2020 and 2027

Key Issues

In April 2011 it was reported to Committee that a root and branch review
of FMAs was being commenced — this was to include consideration of
whether the framework agreed in 2008 remained relevant and to identify
the viable options in terms of implementation. This renewed focus on
FMAs was timely given the ongoing work being undertaken within the
department on the playing pitches strategy.

Members will be aware that as part of the playing pitches strategy
commitment was made to review management and sports development
for pitches and the review of FMAs is now being completed in line with this
process.

Over the past year revisions have also been made to City of Belfast Golf
Club, Suffolk, Musgrave and the Hammer FMAs.

An internal officer working group is conducting the review and the main
areas reviewed to date have been:
e Pitch/site maintenance.
e Bookings of pitches and site facilities and the management thereof.
e Programming of activities.

To date the review has involved a desk top analysis in order to gain as
informed a picture as possible before implementing a wider engagement
exercise — with Members and clubs.

To this end it is proposed that Members agree to attend a consultation
workshop in November to:
¢ understand more of the detail on the current picture of FMAs, and
e consider options for a revised new direction.

In addition to the workshop, Members are advised that officers will be
progressing with external engagement with FMA clubs and a sample of
non FMA clubs in the next months and that they may be approached on
this matter.

Resource Implications

Financial
Additional resources may need to be assigned to deliver the engagement
with FMA clubs within the timeframe available.

Human Resources
Officer time to manage the review.




Page 13

Asset and Other Implications
None.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

None.

Recommendations

Committee is asked to note the update on the review of FMAs and agree
to a Members’ workshop being arranged in November.

Decision Tracking

A further report will follow on from the Members’ workshop in November.

Key to Abbreviations

FMA: Facility Management Agreement
MUGA: Multiuse Games Area

Documents Attached

None.




Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15 Agenda ltem

Belfast City Council

Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Antisocial Behaviour Programme Update
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Peter Murray, Antisocial Behaviour Co-ordinator

1. Relevant Background Information
The purpose of this report is to:
e report an overview of antisocial behaviour by electoral area; and
e update committee on the recent work of the Antisocial Behaviour
Coordinator in Parks and Leisure and the key areas of focus and
expenditure at present.
2. Key Issues

The antisocial behaviour programme contributes to the achievement of the
departmental vision of providing quality parks, open spaces and leisure
environments that people value and use. In particular, it will enable the
delivery of the departmental objective regarding the provision of programmes
and services to make people feel safer.

In line with the departmental plan, the objectives of the antisocial
behaviour programme are:

* enhance the environment around Parks and Leisure facilities;

+ develop education initiatives involving creative or supportive
interventions to model acceptable behaviour around Parks and
Leisure facilities;

+ define enforcement as a deterrent against infraction of bye-laws and
legislation; and

* develop sustainable interagency and inter-departmental networks
and leading a partnership approach to reducing antisocial behaviour.

The Antisocial Behaviour Coordinator prioritises action by collating evidence
gathered through antisocial behaviour incident reports. Once the information
is collated, it is used to inform a coordinated response.

Members will recall that the previous antisocial behaviour update report




Page 16

(June 2011) set out the programme methodology and the importance of
monitoring incident reports to ensure appropriate actions are taken in
response to antisocial behaviour reports.

The purpose of the Safer Neighbourhoods antisocial behaviour programme
is to reduce antisocial behaviour. The evidence available indicates an
overall decreasing trend in antisocial behaviour taking place in parks and
leisure facilities across electoral areas in Belfast (See Appendix 1:
Comparison of antisocial behaviour incidents between April 2010 to August
2011).

The information recorded in Appendix 1 and 2 illustrates antisocial behaviour
by electoral area. The chart shows incidents of antisocial behaviour taking
place throughout an area and indicates potential hotspots.

As antisocial behaviour occurs at neighbouring sites within electoral areas,
this may indicate that antisocial behaviour is displaced following action by
rangers or PSNI. This information will inform how we implement joint
operations and ensure that we do not move a problem on to another site.

Reductions in incidents

During the last year, there has been a marked reduction in reports of

antisocial behaviour in park areas such as Ormeau, Falls and City Cemetery

and Orangefield (Appendix 3, chart 3). This could be attributed to a number
of factors:

e The development of community networks and management plans to
attain the Green Flag award at Ormeau and Falls Parks.

¢ Following the last antisocial behaviour programme update report there
was a more intensive approach to Ormeau, Falls and City Cemetery and
Orangefield as recorded incidents were significantly high.

¢ An increase in resources from the antisocial behaviour programme
supporting community events at Falls Park and a youth participation
programme in Ormeau, Falls and Orangefield parks.

e The last antisocial behaviour report identified that drinkers were an issue
in Ormeau and Orangefield Parks — since then the East Parks antisocial
behaviour partnership group, council officers and PSNI have identified
more frequent opportunities to challenge drinkers in the park.

Identifying further actions

Although recorded antisocial behaviour incidents have reduced from the
previous year, the park locations which experienced the highest recorded
incidences of antisocial behaviour during the months April to August 2011,
were Waterworks, Cavehill, Woodvale, Ormeau, Alexandra, Botanic,
Ballysillan, Falls and City Cemetery (Appendix 4, Chart 4).

The main antisocial behaviour issues that have been recorded (Appendix 5,

chart 5) are:

e Unauthorised use of council facilities: generally describes drinking after
the park closes.

e Property damage: Indicates fire setting or damage from vehicle tyres.




Page 17

e Youths causing annoyance.

e Under age drinking.

e Misuse of Vehicles: Motor cycles or scramblers travelling through the
park.

o Graffiti.

Alongside the actions that have already been planned and are being
implemented across the whole city, the antisocial behaviour programme
resources will also focus on reducing the types of antisocial behaviour found
in these areas during the remainder of the financial year and an update
report will be presented in February 2012.

Summary of interventions

There have been a series of successful actions implemented throughout the
period of April to August 2011. Parks operations are separated into three
distinct areas: North, East and South/West. The details of thematic
interventions within these areas include:

North Belfast

Environment

e Finlay Park fencing, razor wire and installation of a gate to reduce
damage to a play park

e Woodvale Park replacement of perimeter fencing section

Education

e Grove Playing Fields: FASA (Forum against substance abuse)
Interventional Cup 100 young people participated in a football tournament

e \Woodvale Park July Cultural celebrations, support for a week long youth
football tournament in the park

Enforcement

e Cavehill Country Park CCTV: a sophisticated camera has been installed
at the gate to the park

e Cavehill Country Park: Joint operations with the council and PSNI patrols

East Belfast

Environment

e Belmont Park tree reductions through out the park to enable access for a
mobile CCTV Van

e Orangefield tree reductions to improve visibility around a kick about area.

¢ Knocknagoney Park removal of fly tipping and graffiti

Education

e Belmont Park: Support for “Bark in the Park” event, led by the Friends of
Belmont group to encourage responsible dog ownership.

e Ormeau: Support for FASA and the Mount community association youth
football tournament in the evenings during August and September

e Victoria: Support for FASA and Exit to lead a family fun day in the park

Enforcement

e Ormeau: Joint BCC and PSNI operations and Mobile CCTV Van
deployment

e Orangefield: Joint BCC and PSNI operations and Mobile CCTV Van




Page 18

deployment

e Belmont: Joint BCC and PSNI operations and Mobile CCTV Van
deployment

e Botanic: Joint BCC and PSNI operations and Mobile CCTV Van
deployment

South & West Belfast
Environment
e Springfield Park tree and shrub reduction
e Half Moon Lake tree and shrub reduction
Education
Falls Park support for summer festival and family camp out
Falls Park support for mini soccer resources
Half Moon Lake support for family fun day
Springfield avenue play park support for family fun day
Wedderburn Park July Cultural celebrations family fun day
nforcement
Springfield avenue play park installation of CCTV and fencing to secure
site

® [TT® © o o o

All areas

Interagency and Interdepartmental networks

The antisocial behaviour programme coordinator has been engaged in a

range of internal and external partnerships.

e Area based antisocial behaviour partnership meetings have been
established. Park staff, Community safety officers and PSNI officers meet
to monitor and co-ordinate interventions around park and leisure facilities.

e Joint working with Community Safety Officers, Dog Wardens and Litter
Wardens are improving our ability to effectively respond to antisocial
behaviour.

e Participation in the internal officers Bonfire group has provided support
for park based bonfire groups to reduce antisocial behaviour and ensure
safer park events during the summer.

Resource Implications

The development of the programme will be facilitated through the agreed
antisocial behaviour budget 2011-12 which is approximately £250,000.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

Much of the antisocial behaviour programme work spans activities related to
reducing interface tensions and bringing youth together to take part in
positive programmes and activities. All of the programme work is in line with
the council’'s equality and good relations policies and procedures.

Recommendations

Members are asked to note the contents of this report.




Page 19

Decision Tracking

Updates on the Safer Neighbourhoods antisocial behaviour programme will
be brought by the antisocial behaviour Coordinator to the Committee three
times a year, in June, October, and February.

Key to Abbreviations

BCC: Belfast City Council
PSNI: Police Service for Northern Ireland
CCTV: Closed Circuit Television

Documents Attached

Appendix 1: Comparison of antisocial behaviour incidents in Parks and
Leisure facilities across electoral areas between 2010 and 2011

Appendix 2: Antisocial behaviour across electoral areas and park locations

Appendix 3: Comparison of park locations April —August 2010 & 2011

Appendix 4: Antisocial behaviour incidents by park location April to August
2011

Appendix 5: Antisocial behaviour type by park location




Page 20



Table 1.1

Page 21

Appendix 1

Comparison of ASB incidents in Parks and Leisure facilities across
Electoral areas between 2010 and 2011

Electoral Area

2010 April- Aug

2011 April- Aug

Pottinger 100 49
Oldpark 76 113
Upper Falls 56 13
Castle 55 78
Court 42 66
Lagan Bank 38 21
Lower Falls 18 11
Balmoral 7 12
Victoria 6 2
Total 398 365




Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Chart 2: ASB across Electoral Areas and Park locations

60 -

Page 23

Adv¥d NOLLvd L

1Sv4739 0D

00Z 15vd134d

Victoria

AdVd ITIANNG

ANYEMOTTIM

DT X004 LIHM

AT13I4ONIHdS

Newtownabbey

NOOQVN3

B AHVYd S11v4d

Upper| Lower Falls

Falls

SANYTAO0OM

SANVTIN0HD

SSY19ONNYd

21 VIdIWATO

IAVHOSNN

NdNdd3ddam

Balmoral

JINV.10d

INOZO

FTIVAAHEIHO

Advd NOXId

4d A131439ONVHO

Advd NYINEO

Pottinger

Lagan
Bank

d3NNYH

Md WIN TIDINYHS

O TIIANYHS

AdVd NdIVONI 1O

JOOMHLYON

Advd TVAJOOM

Court

4d dd 340OHS

NOL311SVO

3dISHONO

2dM JA0HD

J1vAMS 5390149

4d 3A0YD

TIHIAVYD

Castle

AdVd INVANI D

Ald ITNANOLAITD

HHHTHHHHH HHI_II_IHTHH.—. Hnﬂmmm ol W LS

INOGMOJdVIN

AdVd YHANYX3ITV

NY 1S ATIVE

SHIOMYT LY

Oldpark

50 ]

20 HHH

10 H - -
0



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

Chart 3: Comparison of park locations April —August 2010 & 2011

120 -
100

Page 25

= =
& 8 m;@(@@
m m e

80
60
40
20



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4

Chart 4: ASB incidents by Park location April to August 2011

Page 27




Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Chart 5: ASB Type by Park Location

60
50 +
40
30 -
20 -
10 - = — =
0_
® < ®
%)\ %L % Qp@ ‘%ﬁ\ @o)\ ‘% ‘% QPQ %y ‘% 6}8
S S % R L Yy L e g oz ©
Y 2 L 7 2 L e e 0
AN S A T
% 0w S5 E 9 B G B
N T - W W SN A
T, 2 o TS N O S N
D T S 2
2 o
g S
7’}3 Z, m
* Y
S
AL

Appendix 5

O ASB - Burglary

O Other Incident - Employee

B ASBE - Property damage (Internal)
O ASB - Disturbance

B Other Incident - Member Public

W ASB - Graffiti

OASB - Assault to public

OASB - Theft

@ ASB - Vehicle Crime

B ASB - Suspicious activity

O ASB - Misuse of vehicles

W ASB - Under Age Drinking

W ASB - Youths causing annoyance
O ASB - Other

E ASBE - Property damage (External)
B ASB - Unauthorised use of council facilities

62 obed



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31 Agenda Item 5

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: London 2012 Olympic Torch Bearer Nominations
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Claire Moraghan, Sports Development Officer

1. Relevant Background Information

The Northern Ireland leg of the 2012 Olympic Torch Relay will culminate in
Belfast on 6 June 2012 after a three day tour across the region.

This route has been selected by the London Organising Committee of the
Olympic Games and Paralympic Games (LOCOG) and is not open to
change as the final selection of both the route and torch bearers rests with
the London 2012 Olympic Games organisers. A copy of the route is
attached at Appendix 1.

The Olympic Flame will be welcomed to City Hall for a celebration event on
the evening of 6 June 2012. The cortege will be met by a range of
performers, some of which will be supplied by LOCOG.

2, Key Issues

Olympic Torch Bearer Nominations

There was an opportunity for the general public and a range of sporting and
non-sporting individuals to be nominated to carry the Olympic flame through
Belfast. The public selection of these individuals closed at the end of June
2011.

However, the council now has the opportunity to nominate two individuals to
carry the Olympic flame. These nominations must be made by 31 October
2011.

It should be noted that due to LOCOG 2012 guidelines the council is not
permitted to make a public call or campaign for nominations.




Page 32

Following discussion at the 2012 Events Working Group meeting in July
2011 it was noted that council officers already had a list of inspirational
individuals nominated by the public for the Belfast Sports Awards in March
2011. It was suggested that these individuals form the short list for
nominations.

At a meeting of the Strategic, Policy and Resources Committee on

26 September 2011 it was agreed that the Chair and Deputy Chair of Parks
and Leisure Committee along with officers from the Leisure Development
Unit look at winners from the recent Belfast Sports Awards as potential
nominees for the council’s two torch bearer nominees.

It should be noted that those selected by the council are not guaranteed to
be part of the 2012 Torch Relay until LOCOG 2012 run their own checks and
selection process.

As the deadline for submissions is 31 October Members should note that
subject to committee approval the nominations will be sent to LOCOG 2012
by that date pending approval at full council in November.

It is anticipated that the Chair and Deputy Chair and officers will have
considered the potential nominees in advance of the Committee meeting on
13 October 2011 so that Members can approve the two nominations
required.

Resource Implications

Financial
There are no additional financial implications associated with this element of
the torch relay.

Human Resources
Some officer time will be allocated to manage the process.

Asset and Other Implications
None.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

Nominations for the Belfast Sports Awards were requested from across the
city and those nominated by the public represent all sections of the
community.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Members approve the selection of nominees
made by the Chair and Deputy Chair to be submitted to LOCOG 2012 as
Belfast Torch Bearers.




Page 33

Decision Tracking

The Sports Development Officer to ensure the nominations are submitted
before the deadline of 31 October 2011.

Key to Abbreviations

LOCOG: London Organising Committee of the Olympic Games and
Paralympic Games

Documents Attached

Appendix 1: Belfast Olympic Torch Run Route.




Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35

Aoauo) =

S v ey . e Te barer S el U5 P : LAY -
UL e

== . \mﬁ%ﬁ, &N
AN

\nﬂ“%&\w d§ W
& i A \\ 7
24 °mdinos S|y

(epwiz /) Jateaqyalo] =

1 z ¥ | /V =l

—— ~__ adoH jo uodeag _ A L gy \N\

Smsommmens  ——— . N " Sl
= o ., teigy o/ RS __ %))

\\)7,#/(\\ ~_~RossApgy |elpayje)d ssuuyis . 1 R u&@

T

sy

B

LY

.
“\‘\

AR
i

il _ f 4 \
IsI sgifpny/” 4 ST N7/

1sejjag — uoneliqs|en buiuaag, ojul synoy gl pasodold

a1n0y Aejay youo] | xipuaddy



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37 Agenda ltem 6

Belfast City Council

Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Suffolk Football Club
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Stephen Walker, Departmental Portfolio Programme Manager

1. Relevant Background Information

The Committee is reminded that at its meetings in March and April 2011 it
received reports regarding a request from Suffolk Football Club. The
football club had sought, and subsequently received, approval from the
council to bring an existing unused pitch at Suffolk Playing Fields into use
through the provision of new drainage. The club further proposed to erect a
spectator rail and enclose the new pitch with a security fence. It was noted
that the pitch would be used by Suffolk Football Club. The council did not
make a financial contribution to the works which were undertaken with Alpha
funding obtained through Groundwork NI. It was agreed that the council
would enter into a 7 year management agreement with the club in respect of
the pitch and that the club will at its own expense undertake the
management and maintenance of the pitch and fencing.

This work has now been completed and the pitch will be available for use in
advance of the new season in August 2012.

In the report in April 2011 it was reported that the club had aspirations to
further develop the site and construct separate changing facilities to service
the new pitch. This would mean that the facilities would meet the ground
requirements of the Intermediate League. The report noted that this would
be a separate issue.

The club has now been given an opportunity to acquire two modular
buildings, one would provide changing facilities and the other would function
as a meeting room and for pre and post match entertainment for travelling
teams. These buildings are not new and have been in use by another club.
Suffolk Football Club is seeking permission to locate temporary changing
facilities on the site. It is their proposal to locate it adjacent to pitch and
close to the former school site.




Page 38

Key Issues

There are a number of issues associated with the proposal:

1. The club has recently applied for planning approval for its proposal.
It is hoped that this will be through within 4-6 months, however, as
the building is temporary in nature it is likely that the planning
approval, if granted, will be time limited.

2. Arequest has been made to the Property and Projects Department
to inspect the buildings to determine their condition and fitness for
purpose, the survey is yet to be completed, however providing the
report is positive this shouldn’t be an impediment to progress.

3. The club has stated that it will undertake the management and
maintenance of the new facility at its own expense.

4. The club will also acquire the structure and undertake the
installation at its own expense; there will be no financial cost to the
council.

5. The proposed location for the changing facilities is currently subject
to a right of way agreement with NIE. Preliminary discussions with
NIE have indicated that the matter can be resolved, however this is
subject to further discussion and confirmation is awaited.

6. Should these issues be resolved the club is seeking agreement to
locate the facilities on the site for a period of 7 years, consistent
with the agreement regarding the refurbishment of the pitch.
Following discussions with Estates it is proposed that the
installation of the proposed temporary buildings be incorporated
within the terms and conditions of the proposed facilities
management agreement as agreed in April 2011.

The Committee is also asked to note that the club has requested
permission to ‘store’ the structures on site until such time as they can be
installed. This is not something that the council would normally do;
although the council currently permits through licence containers to be
kept on site for storage purposes;

Should the Committee agree to the request from the club to store the
structures on site pending installation it will be necessary to enter into a
temporary licence agreement with the club. This would be subject to a
time limit and a fee would be charged. Although the intention is to store
the structures behind a security fence it would be appropriate for the club
to obtain the necessary public liability insurance to indemnify the council in
the event of damage, theft, injury resulting from the storage of the
structures should the Committee agree to this request.

Resource Implications

Financial

There are no financial implications for the council. The cost of acquisition
and installation will be met by the club; the building maintenance and
utility costs will also be met by the club.




Page 39

Human Resources
There are no additional human resource implications other than officer
time.

Asset and Other Implications

The provision of the temporary building will, together with other associated
works, bring the football ground up to the required standard for
intermediate and amateur league football.

Equality and Good Relations Considerations

In relation to the building the main issue would relate to DDA compliance,
it will be requirement that the building meets the necessary standard.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Committee:

1. Note the report.

2. Agree in principle to enter into an appropriate management
agreement with the club to permit the installation of the temporary
changing facilities subject to planning approval and agreement with
NIE regarding the right of way.

3. Agree that Legal Services be instructed to incorporate within the
facilities management agreement agreed in April 2011 to
incorporate these temporary buildings.

4. Consider whether it wishes to permit the club to store, under
licence and subject to conditions, the temporary structures at the
Suffolk Playing Field site.

5. Agree that recommendations 2 — 4 above are conditional on
receiving a positive report on the condition of the buildings.

Decision Tracking

A further report will be presented by the Departmental Portfolio
Programme Manager following a decision by the Planning Service.

Key to Abbreviations

NIE: Northern Ireland Electricity.

Documents Attached

None.




Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41 Agenda ltem 7

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Out of Hours use of Leisure Centres
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Katrina Morgan, Leisure Operations Manager

1. Relevant Background Information

The purpose of this report is to seek Committee approval for an interim
extension of out of hours agreements under which clubs use our leisure
facilities for training purposes

The Parks and Leisure Committee at its meeting on 11 December 2008
agreed to extend out of hours use of leisure centres to all clubs and adopted
a charging rate of £20 per hour as a contribution towards utilities costs.

The Committee at its meeting of 11 June 2009 agreed to extend the out of
hours use of leisure centres scheme to all sporting organisations throughout
the city.

Currently 7 water based clubs/governing body and 1 tennis club avail of the
out of hours facilities totalling 31.5 hours per week.

2. Key Issues

The legal agreements for the first phase of the scheme ran from 1 Oct 2009
to 31 March 2011 and at this point all of the clubs are technically “over-
holding” on their agreements which the council ought to have either formally
continued or terminated.

As soon as it was discovered that the timeframe for the agreements had
expired, officers contacted Legal Services who advised that retrospective
Committee approval should be sought for the extension of the agreements
for the period from March 2011 to the present as well as authority to extend
the existing agreements until March 2012.




Page 42

Subject to Committee approval it is proposed that the department writes to
the groups to extend their agreements until 31 March 2012.

The participating groups have been requested to submit interim reports
giving feedback on the benefits of participating in the scheme and any other
issues arising. A further report will be presented to Committee highlighting
the benefits such as increased participation and sporting success, as well as
revised proposals for continued implementation of out of hours contracts
from 1 April 2012 in line with the service’s plans for improvement and service
development.

Resource Implications

None.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

None.

Recommendations

It is recommended that Committee approve the extension of the out of hours
agreements to 31 March 2011.

Decision Tracking

Leisure Operations Manager to action the committee’s decision.

Key to Abbreviations

None.

Documents Attached

None.




Page 43 Agenda Item 8

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Catafalque at Belfast Crematorium
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Rose Crozier, Assistant Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Sharon McCloy, Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager

1. Relevant Background Information

The City of Belfast Crematorium was opened in 1961. Over the last 5
years the management responsible for the City of Belfast Crematorium
have been made aware of the health and safety issues regarding the
structure and height of the existing original catafalque in the funeral
church. The 3 steps leading up to the catafalque together with the actual
height of the catafalque, all pose a manual handling risk during arrival and
placement of the coffin. Pallbearers which often include elderly family
members have struggled to walk in a dignified manner whilst carrying a
coffin up the 3 steps and place the coffin onto the catafalque which is
chest height.

The National Association of Funeral Directors (NAFD) have been
extremely vocal with regards to this health and safety risk concerning the
catafalque and have consulted councillors and held meetings with the
Director of Parks and Leisure.

Property Maintenance were consulted and have drawn up detailed plans
to remove the 3 steps at the base of the catafalque and reduce the height
of the catafalque together with the installation of a safety rail.

The NAFD where consulted during the drawing up of these plans together
with the Healthy and Safety Unit, the crematorium staff and management
and their approval has been obtained.

2, Key Issues

This work has been entered onto the Planned Maintenance Schedule for
2011/12. It requires the funeral church to be closed to the public for this
work to be completed safely. Property Maintenance is now in a position to




Page 44

carry out the work which is estimated to take 2-3 days to complete. As
there are no suitable bank holidays between now and late Spring 2012
during which the work could be done, Committee approval is being sought
to temporarily close the operational side of the crematorium for 3 days
from Saturday 12 November to Monday 14 November 2011 to enable this
work to be carried out.

This means the funeral church would close down on the evening of Friday
11 November after the last cremation service is complete, re-opening
again for cremations on the morning of Tuesday 15 November. This
enables the contractors to have 3 full days and nights to carry out this
work.

The crematorium building and grounds would remain open to the public
for burials, scatterings and collection of cremated remains and book of
remembrance viewing. The crematorium office would function as normal.
The funeral church and connecting hall/corridors would be closed off for
health and safety reasons to members of the public.

There would be no funeral services on Saturday morning (normally 4) or
on Monday (normally 11). This disruption to the availability of cremation
service times could result in a possible backlog of cremations.

Resource Implications

Financial

To help minimize the disruption to bereaved families staff have offered to
carry out additional cremation service times on the evenings of Thursday
10, Friday 11, Tuesday 15 and Wednesday 16 November. This would be
on overtime and therefore have some financial implications.

Equality Implications

None.

Recommendations

It is recommended that approval is given to close the City of Belfast
Crematorium from 6.00pm on Friday 11 November 2011, re-opening
again on Tuesday 15 November at 8.30am, to allow this planned
maintenance work to be carried out in the funeral church.

Decision Tracking

Sharon McCloy, Cemeteries and Crematorium Manager. Decision of
Committee to be implemented by 15 November 2011.




Page 45

Key to Abbreviations

None.

Documents Attached

Appendix 1: Catafalque Construction Plan
Appendix 2: Catafalque Handrail
Appendix 3: Structural frame to support roller




Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



sa
g powoaug)
010z ATNF

NOILO3S ONY Nv'1d 03S0dONd

auwen bumeig

3NOTVAYLYO OL NOISNILX3 IAINOHd
NV ¥3MOT OL SHHOM G3SOdONd

oloid on slosd
WNINOLVWIND 10961
&N Buping oN Buping|
AY3LINID NMY13SON 961
owen ous| on ous|

uopoag JuswabeUEH S
juawyedeq sjoafoid g Apadoig

Ledie
Ledid
Ledil

(Lv © 0Z : L @1e928)

SLNINOdWOD TV
40 NOILVOluav4d
Ol ¥Oolud 31IS

NO @3aMd3HO 38

Ol SNOISN3INIA 1TV

arq
— E—
0 O
- L
i =i
[ [T
L ]
HSINIJ 13ddv0 404 318VLINS
HIOOWS Q3HSINIA 38 OL
Sd3LS 40 34IS ANV TTM OL
39v4 (NMOHS SV IN3N3SvE
OL SSINYOIIHL TV "NIN
wwosz IAVIT OL) ‘NMOHS SY
43Sk NOLLOS WOM4 Wlipgh
3NV OL %OvE NIIVL
ANV Q3AON3Y Sd3LS Ldvd
NMOHS SV H3SR NOLLOE WO
OVE Wuwiogy 3N VY IV SS303
01 30v4 Q3HSINE 3AD OL d3lS dol 08y “uw 05z
L18vd OL TUiNI 3134ONOD 30A0Hd : ni H
T
o »
= &
) g g
(@) B
a ) NOISNELX3 1
s NOTYAVLYO
&
3 WH EAIRITE |
£l \ 3 e [ =il 1
3 N F:OMKN 3LS MIN |
s s (LHOI3H x |
5 8 300a38) NYN3Y |
= o VAvLYD QL] |
& ior s dans —— N 118
ES e T330S_ONILSIXT] i 1
o . f ]
f—tiotsrIhe I I I
| IAvad v TINIT-HOOT- 308 o
¥ITION MBN v IVHONVH SSvaa MmN
[
T
[
—
pasodoid

Pajiop U
snbioyoio]
Uspxe s

uoponpay pasodoid

[9oueyd

oys

Loy

Bunjeas

uoI}2ag pue uejd anbjejejeqn paso

woo.i

[9oueyd

apis

d - Ad3L3IN3TID NMV13SOd

nbioyoIe0 4o
husyxe Jauuoy

) £ L L
g 7
9 Rt OOMERIE —————————-————{-——-—— M5 oot
~ B
. i 3 ~ onbjejejes N
E f i & -~ = s
o H INy 0 ~. =
— : i s =T .
F f E | T 8 == Eai
il i 5 — ~ g
i 1 E — ~ <
EEEZED 1 - 2
HSINIA & 73A37 40014 3A08Y WwipOlL L
13dyvd ¥04 318vLINS HLOOWS 1V TIVYONYH SSvdd M3N
(03HSINI4 38 OL Sd3lS——
40 30IS ANV TIvM OL 30v4 Uoisuajxe pasodold uononpal pas
{(3NDVAYLYD NO 3Y3LIN3D)
08H e cile

30IM WWOSSL ONY ‘NMOHS SY
YIS WOLLOE WO¥4 WWost
3NV OL YOva NBIVL

aNV 03AOW3H SdALS Ldvd

Buijeas

odoid

ol8




Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



dHY
:Ag umesq

37v0S OL 10N
aje0g
TIVYANYH 3NOTV4YLVYO d3S0d0dd
“ouieN Bumeiq

3INOIV4VYLYO
OL NOISN3LX3 3AINOYd ANV
YIMOT OL SMHOM d3SOdOdd

‘owey joslod

WNIYOLVYNIHO

:awep| Buipjing

AY3LINZD NMVT1ISOY

‘swen og|

2020 2€06 820 ‘1L

isejeg

peoy enioung

xa|dwog anioung

Jun soueusjuiepy Apadoid

uonoag juswabeueyy sanijioe
swuedaq sjoaloid g Aedoid

(2224

‘uoisiney

NOILONALSNOD

“Q3HSINIS
HLOOWS AONV Q3Q73m 39 oL SINIOP TV
(e)) "HSINI4 d3HSITOd HOYYIN
<t v HLIM SSvdg 38 oL '013 S3lvid
@F\00 ‘SLHOWDN “TIVYANYH TI¥ :HSINI
o "'SNOILYANIWNODIY
SYIYNLOVANNYW SV d3XI4 I11408d

VH dOL SSvd¥g 39 Ol S3LV1d ¥3A0D
074 HLIM SINIWLNEY ONIMIVY TV 40
3svg 0l d3AIA0¥d 38 OL S3LV1d ¥3A0D
(@3d1N03Y

SV SY3HLO A8 Q3TU¥A 3¥0O 39 OL
avis /a33™os ¥00T4) "avis /a3aa¥os
40014 ONILSIX3 NIHLIM SNOILYANIWNOOIY
S HIUNLOVANNYN SY 03A03an3

1008 ANV NMOHS SV d3NOILISOd

SI1SOd "S'H'O ¢ WWwGy :S1S0d

3AIT Y0014 ¥3ddN WO¥4 TIivy 40 dOL
Ol WWQEOLL 40 LHOIFH V 1V a3xI4 39
OL ANNO¥YNS INOIVAVIVO OL TIVYANVH
‘NMOHS SV SONISON WOLLOS ANOA3g
NOILO3rOYd WWOo0s ONIAID ANV MO139
a391¥0530 SV 13ATT YOOT4 ¥IMOT
ONILSIX3 OLNI 030Q3gW3 ANV NMOd
@3INYNL3Y SANI ‘INMHOLId d3LS 3A08V
VY 40 3YINIO Ol Wwoge 40 LHOIFH
vV 1V @3XI4 39 0l Sd3LS OL TIVYANVH
‘SNONNILNOD 39 OL

STVYANVH “"S'HO ¢ WWGH :STIVYANVH
ONIMYYA VO NO

Q3NOISNIWIQ SV 1NO 13S ANV L'y L¥vd
}01L0Z ‘L—G6ES S8 OL TV ‘ANNOYYNS
INOVAVLIYO ANV Sd3LS Ol S1SOd

ANV SONIMIVYANVH SSv¥g M3IN 3AINOYd

[reapuel anbjejejen
= INNIHOLVINTHD NMVIASOH




Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



sa
Ag paoayD|
010z '03a
uoisiney umeiq sleq

dHvY

g umeiq

FTVOS OL LON

oleog

¥3TI0d OL INVHL IVHNLONYLS

‘owe Bumeiq

So-sv

‘0N Bupmesq

INOTV4VYLYD
OL NOISNILX3 3dINOHd ANV
¥3IMOT OL SHHOM A3SOdOdd

‘auieN sfoid

G9SYL9LL

‘0N Josloid

WNIYOLYNIHO

“owen Buiping

Ad3LINID NMVT1ISOd
soweN ans|

10961

“on Bupiing

961

E |

2020 Z€06 820 191

486 €189

isejeg

peoy ansoung

xaidwog anioung

1un soueudjule|y Auadoid
uoioag juswabeuely sanoe

jawypedaq sjoafoid @ Apadoid

siiejoq

8leq

o

‘uoisiney

Paqge 51

J9]j0y Joddng 03} awelq [ein3oniys
- INNIHOLVYINTHD NMV1IS0ON

NOILSOd NI
HYOMINVES TVINLONALS AdVWNIMA OL S1SOd
3L OL SY3IEW3IW 3Svd d3ENIL AYVANOI3S

HOIH wWwQooe X 3IdIM WWo66

X d330 Wwgee ‘31 ‘NMOHS SV SNOISNINWIA
Q3HSINI4 TWNY3LX3 OL TV ‘YOAIANOD
Y3708 140ddNS 0L MYOMINVYE4 TVINLONYLS
AdVANIYd MVO A0S wwigol x 00l

ONIMVYA INJWIONVIYEY TVH3INTO NO NMOHS
SV 13A37 ¥0074 ¥3ddN 3A08V WwQool

40 IHOI3H V 1V HSINI4d A3HL d3A0 d30vd
JYY ANNOYINS INOIVAVIVO NIVA OL S303ld
ONIddVO JOOMA¥VH (3HSINI4 N3HM LVHL
HONS 38 OL LHOI3H ONIAVY4 AYVANOO3S
(ONIMY¥A NO HOLVH

SV Q3LVOIONI) ‘3NDIVAVLYO 40 ONIAAV1D
SSYOUVO d04 30V4 N3A3 3AIO OL TV
‘MOT3E MHOMINVYL TVENLONYLS AUVAIYd 40
30V4 ¥31N0 HLIM SNOIMV 30V4 ¥31N0 LVHL
HONS 38 Ol HLd30 3IAVY4 "JONVNILINIVA
3dNLINd ¥04 TVAOW3Y 40 3718vdvD 38

OL ANV 3AVY4 SIHL NIHLIM LIS OL YOA3ANOD
437104 "LINN 40 ONILLI4 34NJ3S V 3AID Ol
S30AIS d3S0dX3 £ 3HL NO JOAIANOD d3T10d
ANNOYANS OL 3AVY4 d3EWIL AYVANOOIS

SY3ITI0Y
404 1¥0ddns dIo1Y 3AIAOdd OL SAVLS
T1331S ANV S1d0ddNS T3NNVHO 1331S NIV

d3ANN LINN ¥37108 40 ONIAVY4 1331S
OL Q3XId M3YIS SSvid JNVYd WYL SSvdd
HLIM J3HSINI4 389 OL 30vd4 4Ol 1INN d3710y

STINNVHO 1331S OL d3XId
Q31708 ANV L4VHS d3ddvVl ‘SONI¥vIE—17vE
NOISIO3dd—IH HLM Sy3TI08 d31vOJd d38dny

NMOHS
SV MYOM3INVYd d38NWIL 40
30V4 d31N0 HLIM NOITV
0l ‘3NDIV4VLVO LS3HVAN
30IS "3’ "YOAIANOD
d37704d 40 3N MOvE




Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53 Agenda ltem 9

Belfast City Council

Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Small Grants Scheme
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer: Agnes McNulty, Open Spaces and Active Living Manager

1. Relevant Background Information

The Committee is reminded that the Parks Event Small Grants Scheme has
been operating successfully since 2006. Its original purpose was to
encourage community based groups and organisations to organise and hold
events in parks and thus increase their usage and instil a sense of ownership
within the community.

Each year a short report has been brought to Committee to set out the main
headlines from the previous year and to seek authority to advertise the
scheme for a further year.

Members will recall that a report outlining the groups recommended for
support under the scheme is presented to Committee in February of each
year for approval.

The scheme continues to be popular with community groups, churches,
friends groups and other organisations. During 2011, a fund of £60,000 had
been allocated for the scheme and a maximum grant of £2,250 was
available per group.

o A total of 33 applications were received

e 31 groups were funded

e 51 events were to be held

o 26 different sites were to be used.

2, Key Issues

In line with the Parks and Leisure Department’s new vision of animating our
parks and open spaces as much as possible and encouraging community
events and participation, it is hoped that we will be able to grow and develop
this scheme over the next number of years.




Page 54

To this end, the department has made a bid for the £60,000 to be increased
to £100,000 in the draft estimates for 2012/13 which will be subject to
Members consideration of the estimates later this year.

It is proposed that the department continue to run the scheme for a further
year either at the existing level of £60,000 or (pending approval) at the
increased level of £100,000.

Officers will be working to develop this grants scheme in the intervening
period and will be examining the criteria and structure of the grant ward
process in order to encourage a broad range of applicants and help increase
participation in the events in parks and open spaces. Any revisions will be
brought back to Committee for review and approval.

Resource Implications

Financial
Provision of £100,000 has been included in the draft estimates for 2012/13
to cover this extended scheme.

Human Resources

The management of the scheme mainly involves staff from the Open Spaces
and Active Living Unit and Business Support. The Community Park
Managers and Outreach Officers are responsible for liaising with groups on
site.

Asset and Other Implications
Having groups organising their own events in parks helps to increase use of
parks and encourage a sense of ownership of them.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

None.

Recommendations

It is recommended that Committee approve the running of a Parks Small
Grants Scheme for the 2012/13 period and, subject to approval through the
estimates process, agree to extend the scheme to provide a fund of
£100,000.

Decision Tracking

Responsible officer: Agnes McNulty, Open Spaces and Active Living
Manager, closing date of scheme: Tuesday 10 January 2012

Further report to be brought to Committee February 2012 for approval of the
grants to be awarded.

Key to Abbreviations

None.

Documents Attached

None.




Page 55 Agenda ltem 10

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Schools Cup at Musgrave Playing Fields
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Paula Irvine, Outreach Manager

1. Relevant Background Information

The Committee is asked to note that the council received a request on

14 September 2011 from the Northern Ireland Schools Football
Association (NISFA) to host the quarter finals of the NI Schools Cup at the
City of Belfast Playing Fields (Mallusk). The event will have approximately
600 participants from schools across Northern Ireland and approximately
25 schools have teams competing in the quarter finals. Age categories
range from under 12s through to under 18s. The date proposed for the
event is Wednesday 15 February 2012.

2, Key Issues

The event took place last year at Mallusk for the first time and the use of a
single venue enhanced and promoted cross community participation and
engagement through the medium of soccer and ensured effective and
efficient running of the finals.

Media Coverage

The NISFA has formalised a relationship to work in conjunction with the
BBC and the Belfast Telegraph to raise the profile of the Schools Cup.
Both will be present at the event ensuring media coverage. Raising the
profile of the Schools Cup will have a positive effect on participation levels
in schools. Last year the NISFA requested council representation at the
televised draw for the finals and hopes to do the same this year, this is
planned to take place at the UTV studios.

The Community Parks Outreach Manager will liaise with the Lead
Communicator and Corporate Communications on potential media
coverage and promoting the council’s role.




Page 56

Event Management

The event organisers will complete the agreed event management plan to
address all relevant issues including health and safety to the satisfaction
of council officers.

Resource Implications

Financial Resources

Each school participating will cover the cost of their own transport and the
sponsors of the NI Schools Cup will cover the cost of the referees.
Potential revenue for the use of the pitches is £375.00 however the
committee is asked to note that the organisers have made application for
free use of both the pitches and the ancillary facilities. Committee is also
asked to note that the organisers have requested that 4 pitches be re-
marked to accommodate junior football. This will require these pitches to
be re-marked again in time for the weekend league fixtures. As the event
will be held mid week there will be no displacement to regular users.

Human Resources

It is estimated that the event will require 2 members of staff to supervise
and assist with the allocation of dressing rooms. The ancillary facilities will
then need to be cleaned in time for the weekend fixtures. Staffing costs
for both is estimated at £138.00.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

There are no equality implications. The 600 under 18 participants
represent a range of different age groups, gender, ethnic and religious
background.

Recommendations

The Committee is asked to approve:

1. That the quarter finals of the NI School’s cup are held at Mallusk
subject to the completion of an appropriate event management plan
to the satisfaction of council officers.

2. That the event organisers are given free use of the pitches and
subsequent facilities.

Decision Tracking

All actions will be completed by Paula Irvine Community Parks Outreach
Manager and Eilish Patton Outdoor Leisure Officer by 31 January 2012.

Key to Abbreviations

NISFA: Northern Ireland Schools Football Association.

Documents Attached

None.




Page 57 Agenda ltem 11

Belfast City Council

Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Multi Users Games Area at Waterworks (Upper)
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Stephen Walker, Parks and Leisure Department

1 Relevant Background Information

The Committee is asked to note that the former Community and Recreation
(Parks and Cemeteries) Sub Committee in October 2005, considered and
approved a report on the ‘Waterworks and \Westland Road Recreation
Facility’. This approval followed an earlier presentation by Groundwork NI
and the Westland Road Community Group in March 2005. A copy of the
minute is attached as appendix 1 and outlines a series of proposals to
develop and enhance the site including a playground and sensory garden
which have both been delivered. One of the main items was the provision of
a multi user games area (MUGA).

At the time the sub committee had agreed to the provision of land for the
purpose of constructing the MUGA.

The community, in partnership with Groundwork NI, have now secured
funding through Peace lll to construct a MUGA. Officers have been in
discussion with Groundwork NI to facilitate the construction of the work.
However, the council has now been asked to sign up to a partnership
arrangement as set out by the funding organisation. This partnership
agreement will be between the council, Groundwork NI and the Westland
community.

The specific obligations in the agreement for the council are as follows:

1. To maintain and ensure the multi use area at Westland and to ensure
that it remains as a public asset post completion of the Sharing our
Space Programme.

2. To work with the Westland community and Groundwork NI to put in
place an appropriate management arrangement;

3. To participate in a project working group with other stakeholders; and

4. To work in conjunction with Groundwork NI to meet the overarching
objectives of the programme.

With the exception of point 1 above the arrangement is merely asking the
council to engage in discussions at this time. Members are assured that any




Page 58

human resource or financial implications arising from these discussions will
be reported back to Committee for consideration and approval to proceed.

Key Issues

The Committee is asked to note that:

1.

2.

3.

There remain a number of issues to be resolved regarding the physical
construction of the MUGA, these include the need for a contamination
survey;

Whilst the scheme is not a council project it will be subject to the
council’s gates review process;

Access to the proposed site will be via a piece of land adjacent to the
proposed location and which is currently leased to a third party.
However, preliminary discussions with the lessee indicate that an
accommodation re access will be facilitated:;

In order for the project to progress the Committee is asked to consider the
following:

1.

2.

To reaffirm its decision to permit the construction of the MUGA on
council land;

The partnership agreement requests that council undertake the
maintenance and insurance of the facility. This had not been
previously agreed. While it is acknowledged that it is unlikely that the
facility would be economically viable no provision has been made in
the revenue estimates for the maintenance; excluding damage owing
to vandalism. The maintenance costs could be in the region of £5 —
10,000 per annum. It would approach the higher figure if it became
necessary during the year to power hose it should the drainage system
become blocked; the Committee is asked to consider whether it wishes
to accede to request that the council undertakes the maintenance of
the facility and incorporates it within the schedule of insurance for the
purposes of public liability;

Members will be aware that the terms and conditions of external
funding normally require that the project be sustained for a fixed period
of time which can vary according to the level of funding; Groundwork
has confirmed with the funding body that it would require a period of 10
years from completion of the works and Groundwork has requested
that the council agree to meet the maintenance liability for that same
period;

The construction of the MUGA will be managed by Groundwork NI and
it will be necessary to enter into a licence agreement with Groundwork
NI and/or its contractor to provide access to the site for the purpose of
construction and to indemnify the council from any loss, damage or
injury which may be incurred during the construction;

The officers work with Groundwork NI and the community to develop
an appropriate management agreement and programme for the
facilities consistent with the objectives of the funding.

Resource Implications

Financial
The capital cost of the project will be met through external funding. Itis
estimated that the annual revenue cost of management and maintenance will




Page 59

be in the region of £5-10,000 in the absence of any growth in 2012/13 it will
be necessary to meet the cost from existing budgets.

Human Resources
There are no additional human resource implications; inspections and
maintenance work will be incorporated within existing resources.

Asset and Other Implications
The construction of the MUGA will increase provision for the area and
enhance opportunities for participation in sporting activities.

Equality and Good Relations Considerations

The project is being progressed as Shared Space Programme and issues
around access to the facility will be addressed through the management plan.

Recommendations

The Committee is asked to:

1. Note the report;

2. Agree that the council will undertake the maintenance of the facility for
a period of at least 10 years from completion and undertake to cover
public liability insurance;

3. Agree that the council enter into a licence agreement in relation to the
construction; and

4. Agree that officers work with Groundwork NI and the community to
develop an appropriate management agreement and programme for
the facilities consistent with the objectives of the funding.

Decision Tracking

A further report will be presented by the Departmental Portfolio Programme
Manager to November Committee.

Key to abbreviations

MUGA: Multi use games area.

Documents attached

Appendix 1: minute of Community and Recreation (Parks and Cemeteries)
Sub Committee 11 October 2005.




Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61

Community and Recreation (Parks and Cemeteries Services)
Sub-Committee, Tuesday, 11th October, 2005

Waterworks and Westland Road Recreation Facility

The Sub-Committee considered the undernoted report:

“Purpose of Report

To seek the Sub-Committee’s approval of financial support a
proposed development at the Upper Waterworks.

Background

At its meeting on 8 March 2005 the Sub-Committee received a
deputation from Groundwork Northern Ireland and representatives
of the Westland Road Community Group who outlined a series of
proposals in relation to a phased development of the site,

Following discussion at the meeting the Sub-Committee
agreed to: '

{i) Support, in principle, the development of a
recreational facility at the Waterworks site adjacent to
Westland Road;

(i) Support such development in a planned manner in the
order of priority determined by the local community;

C
295




296

Page 62

Community and Recreation (Parks and Cemeteries Services)
Sub-Committee, Tuesday, 11th October, 2005

(iii) Support the community group in seeking funding for
the scheme on a phase-by-phase basis; and

(ivy The Council’s contribution to the scheme being
limited to the provision of land and the design,
development and project management as appropriate.

Current Position

Groundwork Northern Ireland is in the process of attempting to
secure funding for the project based on its feasibility study.

The project is not in the current Capital Programme and there is
no provision within existing revenue budgets to cover any of the
costs as outlined under ‘resources’,

Resources

The overall project cost is estimated at between £388,276 and
£445,907 (two options were priced called option 2 and option 3, the
main difference between them being the orientation of the multi
court area). Groundwork (NI) has split the cost estimate into eight
parts at follows:-

1. Front fence, car | £41,535.00 (opt. 2&3)
park, bollards etc.

2. Events area £39,210.00 (opt. 2&3)

3. Sensory garden £26,500.00 (opt. 2&3)

4. Path network £34,000.00 (opt. 2&3)

5. Grass sculpture £ 1,500.00 (opt. 2&3)

6. Play area £64,329.00 (opt.2) - £70,508.00 (opt 3)
7. Trike track £14,975.00 (opt.2) - £24,496.00 (opt 3)
8. Multi court area £71,780.00 (opt.2) - £113,025 .00 (opt 3)

These costs do not include project preliminary costs estimated
at 5%, contingencies estimated at 5% or professional fees
estimated at between 10% and 15%.

Groundwork (N.l) has indicated that part funding may be
available from the Community Environment Support Programme
(CESP) and that they will be seeking funding from other sources.




Page 63

Community and Recreation (Parks and Cemeteries Services)
Sub-Committee, Tuesday, 11th October, 2005

Proposal

The Sub-Committee is asked to note that at its meeting on
8 March 2005 it agreed that the Council’s contribution to the
scheme being limited to the provision of land and the design,
development and project management as appropriate. If the
Section’s staff were employed for this purpose there would be no
additional cost to the Council and could help save £50,000 to
£60,000 on the scheme. In relation to a number of other relatively
similar schemes the Council has, on occasions contributed in
addition to designing and managing the project in house a cash
contribution of around 10%.

If Groundwork (N.L.) or other consultants were appointed to

carry out the project management for the project at 15% this would
cost between £58,241.40 for option 2 and £66,886.05 for option 3.

Environmental Impact

A successfully completed scheme would significantly improve
the local environment for the general public and have a minimal
disturbance on existing natural habitats.

It is proposed therefore that the Sub-Committee’s contribution
to the scheme be:-

{a) the provision of land (previously agreed);

(b) the design, development and project management of the
scheme; and

{c} 10% cash contribution to the overall cost,
Resources

The Capital Programme has an item, based on a 10% cash
contribution for the development of play areas.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Sub-Committee proceeds to develop
the scheme on the basis as outlined under proposal.”

C
297

The Sub-Committee agreed to adopt the recommendation contained within the

foregoing report.




Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65 Agenda ltem 12

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Hire of Musgrave Bowling Pavilion
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Ricky Rice, City Park Manager

1. Relevant Background Information

The council has received a request from Mr Alan Gibson, on behalf of a non-
denominational Christian group, who wish to hire Musgrave Bowling Pavilion
each Friday evening (8.00pm to 9.00pm) commencing 20 January 2012 to
27 April 2012 (inclusive) for a series of gospel meetings.

2. Key Issues

The group will require the main hall, reception, toilets and car park adjacent
to the building. Access to the pavilion will be through the main vehicular gate
off Hospital Road which will be opened and closed by staff before
commencement and at the end of each hire period. The event is anticipated
to attract an estimated number of between eighty and one hundred people
each week.

The group has requested permission to use a small battery operated public
address system. Mr Gibson has confirmed that there would be no charge or
fee or collection of money at the gospel meetings. No food or catering is
required. No advertising would be placed outside or around council property;
however Mr Gibson wishes to hand out invitation cards outside the park.

The council’s events policy places responsibility for appropriate management
of waste associated with an event with the event organiser. Officers will
ensure that the organiser is in receipt of our Events Policy — “Handbook for
Applicants” which outlines clearly that arrangements must be in place for
litter collection and gives guidance on appropriate steps, based on the scale
of the event proposed.

As with all events, but particularly because of the evening element to this
event it is essential that heath and safety and other issues are addressed
through the preparation of an event management plan by the event
organisers to the satisfaction of council officers.




Page 66

Current policy permits the use of council premises for religious activity as
long as there is no breach of Section 76 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998.

The council previously granted Mr Gibson permission to hold gospel
meetings at Ormeau Bowling Pavilion between January and April 2011.
These proved to be a success and attendees averaged between eighty and
one hundred each evening.

Resource Implications

Financial

There would be a hire charge for the period of hire in line with the council’s
pricing policy. Mr Gibson has agreed to contribute towards the cost of
providing staff cover for this event.

Human Resources

Current bowling pavilion attendants will provide cover for this event involving
maximum three hours cover each Friday evening to open and close the
building and park gates.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

None.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the permission is granted for this subject to
satisfactory terms being agreed with the Director of Parks and Leisure and
on condition that:

i.  the event organisers resolve all operational issues to the Council’s
satisfaction;

ii. appropriate documentation is in place prior to commencement, to
include event management plan, public liability documentation and
appropriate risk assessments

iii. the event organisers meet all statutory requirements;

iv. an agreement is reached regarding the charge for use of the facility
which will cover the department’s costs and the agreed hire charge

v. the building is inspected and deemed fit for use by the councils health
and safety officer

Decision Tracking

Officer responsible: Patrick Smyth, Community Parks Manager.
Actions to be completed by: 27 April 2012

Key to Abbreviations

None.

Documents Attached

None.




Page 67 Agenda ltem 13

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Mary Peters Track
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer: Stephen Walker, Departmental Portfolio Programme
Manager
Dermot Black, Property and Projects Department

1 Relevant Background Information

Committee is reminded that at its meeting in September 2011 it asked that
a monthly progress report be submitted on the refurbishment of the Mary
Peters Track.

2 Key Issues

The current position is as follows:
1. The council committed £3m to the refurbishment of the Mary Peters
Track in February 2011.
2. Pre-application discussions have been held with Planning Service.
3. Officers have engaged with PSNI regarding design out crime and a
report will follow.

A tree survey and ecological report have been completed.

A presentation has been made to the Board of the Lagan Valley

Regional Park within which the track is located as part of the pre-

planning discussions;

6. Queen University, from whom the council hold a lease to the land
on which the track has been constructed, are aware of the
proposals.

7. A design team has been appointed and a proposal was submitted
to the Planning Service in September.

ok~

In the coming months officers will continue to:

1. liaise with the Planning Service;

2. work up detailed design proposals based on the submission to the
planning service;

3. work up a specification regarding future management of the facility
which will be subject to external expressions of interest;

4. work with Northern Ireland Athletics to manage closure during the
works phase; and




Page 68

5. putin place a communication plan to update users, interested
parties and the general public of the proposals.

Subject to planning and any issues that might arise the current anticipated
programme is:

e November 2011: issue tender.

e March 2011: commence work on site.

o March 2013: project completion.

Resource Implications

Financial
There are no additional financial implications.

Human Resources
There are no additional human resource implications, work is being
progressed within existing resources.

Asset and Other Implications
The refurbishment of the track will safeguard the future of facility and
provide improved facilities for users of the track and spectators.

Equality and Good Relations Considerations

Equality considerations will be taken account of in the design of the facility
which will be DDA compliant.

When completed it is proposed to have a delivery plan in place which will
seek to ensure wide access to the facility.

Recommendations

The Committee is asked to:
1. note the report; and
2. consider whether it would like to receive a short presentation on the
proposals which will be submitted to the Planning Service for
approval at a future meeting.

Decision Tracking

Further report to be presented by the Departmental Portfolio Programme
Manager in November 2011.

Key to abbreviations

None.

Documents attached

None.




Page 69 Agenda Iltem 14

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Midnight Soccer Programme
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Adrian Walker, Acting Leisure Operations Manager

1. | Relevant Background Information

The Midnight Soccer intervention programme ran from July — September 2011.
In June 2011 Health and Environmental Services (Community Safety Section)
successfully applied for summer intervention funding of £6,900 on behalf of the
Parks and Leisure Department to develop this initiative. It was intended that
midnight soccer would be available at the following leisure centres:

e Avoniel

o Ballysillan

e Olympia

e Whiterock

The proposal was developed to service all geographical areas of Belfast and
was designed to operate primarily between the hours of 2000-2300 during
Tuesday/Wednesday and Friday evenings.

The original objective of the project was to create a diversionary activity in order
to help reduce traditionally higher levels of antisocial behaviour within Belfast
during the summer months. In addition the expansion of community and
voluntary sector linkages was identified as a mutual benefit to operating the
project.

2. | Key issues/events

Following the award of funding an implementation plan involving representatives
from Parks and Leisure, Community Safety, PSNI and Belfast Community
Sports Development Network (BCSDN) was developed and the initial Midnight
Soccer session was held at Avoniel Leisure Centre on Friday 8 July. BCSDN
were chosen to co-ordinate all coaching and refereeing aspects of the
programme and the council managed infrastructure, logistics, advertising, safety
and equipment provision.




Page 70

The initial plan was expanded to include an under 14 age group in addition to
the targetted 14-17 age group. The under 14 sessions were named
“Community Kick About “ and due to the programme expansion and leisure
centre availability the Lower Ormeau Residents Action Group (LORAG) sports
pitch was also utilised as part of the programme. This further enhanced the
ability of the scheme to reach a greater volume of young people.

An interim report during early August indicated that the programme was
enjoying a notable level of success. Average weekly attendances for both age
groups were recorded as follows:
e Avoniel: 75
Ballysillan: 105
Olympia: 45 (limited pitch availability)
LORAG: 75
Whiterock: 85

Whilst previous Midnight Soccer initiatives had been undertaken in specific
geographical areas this programme has formed the basis of the first structured
citywide involvement from Parks and Leisure in conjunction with partners. It
should also be noted that traditionally the East Belfast area has struggled to
successfully implement such a programme however this year’s initiative
attracted nearly 600 young people to Avoniel Leisure Centre for soccer
participation. Ballysillan Leisure Centre enjoyed the single highest participation
level when numbers had to be limited to 130 during a Friday evening session.

A ‘Finals Day’ was organised at Ballysillan Leisure Centre for Sunday

4 September 2011. This celebratory event invited the best performing nine
teams during the programme, throughout the city, to Ballysillan for a league
style competition. Following the league style event a knock out finale resulted in
the Village team defeating Santos by a score of 1-0. The successful Village
team received their trophy from the Lord Mayor.

In addition to competing teams from geographical Belfast areas, players
originating from Romania and Hungry participated enthusiastically throughout
the initiative.

Programme feedback involved surveying 104 participants on 19 August 2011.
The resulting surveys indicated that some 77% of participants identified that
they would have either been consuming alcohol (27%) taking narcotics (18%) or
walking the streets (32%) if the programme had not been commissioned. 96%
of young people advised that they had enjoyed the initiative and the optimum
ages ranges were 16-17 (55%) and 14-15 (37%).

The programme has surpassed officer expectations and all involved are keen to
develop and expand the Midnight Soccer initiative during 2012.




Page 71

Resource Implications

Human Resources

A Leisure Centre Manager was directly deployed to co-ordinate the programme
development and management. Support was received from Leisure Operations,
Leisure Development, Community Safety, P&L ASB Co-ordinator and BCSDN.

Financial

Costs Funding

BCSDN coaching and Department of Justice £6900
refereeing costs £10500 | Council contribution £ 9300
Advertising/equipment

purchase £2500

Transport £ 3200

Total £16200 £16200

Asset and Other Implications
Facilities utilised during periods of low usage and times of closure.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

This was a cross community scheme which contributed positively to good
relations in the city.

Recommendations

That Committee note the contents of this report and support the proposed
development of this initiative during 2012.

Decision Tracking

N/A

Key to Abbreviations

BCSDN - Belfast Community Sports Development Network.
LORAG — Lower Ormeau Residents Action Group

Documents Attached

None.




Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 73 Agenda ltem 15

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Tenders
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Jacqui Wilson, Business Manager

1. | Relevant Background Information

In June, Members gave approval for a list of planned procurement
exercises for the department. In addition, it was noted that another report, if
necessary, would be tabled in October seeking approval for additional
procurement exercises. As previously reported, there may also be
occasions when individual requests are tabled outside of the two main
reports, but these will be by exception and reasons will be included in any
such report.

2. | Key Issues

Subject to approval, it is intended to initiate procurement exercises for the
following contracts/tenders;
e supply and delivery of haylage, meadow hay and barley straw at
Belfast Zoo;
supply and delivery of fruit and vegetables at Belfast Zoo;
e supply, delivery and application of top dressing sand for parks and
playing fields;
e supply of fertiliser, grass seed and pesticides for parks and playing
fields;
supply and delivery of memorial seats at cemetery sites; and
provision of research, market testing, evaluation, and facilitation
services

The length of each tender will be determined on a case by case basis and
the department will ensure appropriate contract management processes
are in place for each one.

Committee is asked to note that all tenders will be evaluated on both cost
and quality and tenders will be awarded to the most economically
advantageous tenders.




Page 74

3. | Resource implications
3.1 | Einancial
The cost / value of each tender has been provided for within the relevant
Revenue Estimates for the department. Contract tenders are for a period of
more than one year, unless stated. Anticipated value is as follows;
Tender Potential Annual Cost/
Revenue
supply and delivery of £20,000 per annum
haylage, meadow hay and
barley straw at belfast zoo
supply and delivery of fruit £100,000 per annum.
and vegetables at belfast
Zoo
supply, delivery and £60,000 per annum
application of top dressing
sand for parks and playing
fields
provision of research, £50,000 per annum
market testing, evaluation,
and facilitation services
supply of fertiliser, grass £100,000 per annum
seed and pesticides for
parks and playing fields
supply and delivery of £16,000 per annum,
memorial seats at depending on demand
cemetery sites
Human Resources
There are no additional human resource implications.
Asset and Other Implications
Completion of the identified procurement exercises will enable the
department to continue to provide a high standard service while still
effectively managing our resources.
4. | Equality and good relations implications

The tendering process requires companies to include their equality policy
within their submission.




Page 75

Recommendations

It is recommended that Members approve the proposed tendering
exercises and authorise the Director, under the scheme of delegation, to
award the successful tenders.

Decision Tracking

All tenders to be issued, evaluated and approved during the financial year
2011/12.

Key to abbreviations

None.

Documents Attached

None.




Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77 Agenda ltem 16

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Consultation on Enabling Legislation for National Parks
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:

Emer Boyle, Policy and Business Development Manager

Claire Sullivan, Policy and Business Development Officer

Relevant Background Information

In March of this year, prior to the Assembly elections, the Department of
the Environment (DoENI) published a White Paper on Enabling
Legislation for National Parks as a first step towards bringing forward
legislation to allow for the creation of national parks in Northern Ireland.
At that time the Department indicated that, following the Assembly
elections, an expanded paper would be published for formal consultation.

A new document was published at the end of August and includes the
white paper as an appendix for ease of reference. This looks in more
detail at the governance options for a national park and seeks answers to
a number of specific questions on national park issues with a view to
developing policy proposals for enabling legislation to be brought before
the Assembly

The consultation period has been extended to allow for proper
consideration of this new material and responses are to be sent to DoENI
no later than Monday 31st October 2011.

Key Issues

DoENI is currently undertaking a public consultation on Enabling
Legislation for National Parks; the consultation documents are provided at
Appendix 1.

In summary, the consultation asks for responses to ten questions:

1. What are your views on the proposed aims of national parks?

2. What are your views on the proposed criteria for identifying areas that
may be suitable as national parks?




Page 78

3. What are your views on the proposed arrangements for consulting on
a proposal to designate a specific area as a national park?

4. What are your views on the proposed management framework
arrangements for national parks?

5. What are your views on the proposed duties, functions and powers of
a national park management body?

6. What are your views on the proposed role of a national park

management body in planning matters?

What are your views on the governance options?

What are your views on the proposed constitution of a national park

management body?

9. Do you share the Department’s analysis in the Partial RIA that national
parks will have little or no negative impact?

10.Are there any other comments which you wish to make about the
Department’s proposals?

© N

Following consideration by relevant officers across the council, a response
has been completed in draft form for approval by Members. This is
provided at Appendix 2.

In summary, the draft response agrees with the proposals made in the
consultation documents and highlights the need for both local and regional
involvement in any management or governance structure that is chosen to
ensure all interests are represented.

Subject to approval by Committee, it is proposed that the final response is
submitted to DoENI by 31 October with the proviso that this is subject to
full council approval at its meeting in November.

Resource Implications

Financial
None required at present

Human Resources
None required at present

Asset and Other Implications
None at this stage.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

In the consultation documents, DoENI states that it has undertaken an
equality impact screening of the regulations, and has concluded that
“there is no adverse impact for any of the nine categories listed under
Section 75”.




Page 79

Recommendations

Members are asked to:
¢ note the contents of this report; and
¢ approve submission of a final consultation response to DoENI,
subject to any comments or amendment provided, by the deadline of
31 October.

Decision Tracking

Policy and Business Development Manager to action submission of the
consultation response by 31 October 2011.

Key to Abbreviations

DoENI - Department of the Environment

Documents Attached

Appendix 1: Consultation Documents
Appendix 2: Draft Consultation Response.




Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Consultation Document on

Enabling Legislation
for National Parks

August 2011




Page 82



Page 83

Contents

How to respond

Freedom of Information Act 2000 — confidentiality of consultation responses
Foreword

Introduction

Governance

* Governance Options

Analysis of Options

Constitution of a Management Body

Responsibilities and Skills of Board Members

Access and Occupiers’ Liability

Consultation Questions

Appendix 1 White Paper on Enabling Legislation for National Parks
Appendix 2 Partial Regulatory Impact Assessment

Appendix 3 Confidentiality of Consultation

Appendix 4 Screening for Equality Impact Assessment

Appendix 5 Rural Proofing Statement

Appendix 6 List of Consultees

13

16

18

19

20

21

37

42

43

52

53



Page 84

1. How To Respond 03

Responding to this consultation

There is no requirement to respond to all the questions in this consultation.

Response method
Responses to this consultation can be sent either by post or email to:

Post

David Gray

Department of the Environment
Environmental Policy Division
8th Floor

Goodwood House

44 — 58 May Street

Belfast, BT1T 4NN

E-mail:

National.Parks@doeni.gov.uk

You are invited to respond to this consultation no later than 31st October 2011.

Should you have any enquiries please send them to National.Parks@doeni.gov.uk or call 02890 254721

An electronic copy of the consultation document can be obtained if required by using the contact details
above. It is also available on the Department’s website at http://www.doeni.gov.uk (click on” Natural
Environment’ and on ‘National Parks’).

This document may be made available in alternative formats. Please contact us to discuss your
requirements. Information and additional copies of the document can be requested by Text phone on
02890 540642.



Page 85

04

Freedom of Information Act 2000 - Confidentiality of consultation
responses.

The Department of the Environment (DOE) may wish to publish responses to the consultation
document. It will certainly publish a summary of responses following completion of the consultation
exercise.

In addition, your response may be disclosed on request.

DOE is only able to refuse disclosure in very particular circumstances. Therefore, you are advised to read
the information at Appendix 3 before sending a response to this consultation document. It provides
guidance on the legal position of any information given by you.

Should you require further information about confidentiality of responses, please contact:

Information Commissioner’s Office (Northern Ireland)
51 Adelaide Street

Belfast

BT2 8FE

Telephone number:
028 9026 9380

Fax:
028 9026 9388
Alternatively, your request can be sent electronically to ni@ico.gsi.gov.uk

Information can also be accessed at: www.informationcommissioner.gov.uk

What happens next?

Following the closure of the consultation on 31st October 2011, all responses will be analysed and
considered, along with any other available evidence to help us reach decisions on the development of
enabling legislation for national parks for Northern Ireland.



Page 86

2. Foreword 05

My predecessor launched a White Paper on Enabling Legislation for National Parks prior to the Assembly
elections earlier this year. At that time it was announced that further material would be made available
for consultation at a later date. | am making that material available now through this document.

| am on record as saying that | favour the concept of national parks. We are fortunate in having a
number of areas that are likely to meet the proposed criteria set out in the White Paper. However,
the debate over the designation of a specific area will be for another day and will involve the whole
Executive, as well as further public consultation.

In the meantime, | hope that many people will take this opportunity to discuss the issues surrounding
a national park and to consider the specific questions that we have posed. | recognise that some have
genuine concerns about the impact that a park might have on them, their homes and their businesses.
But | want to create a consensus and bring all stakeholders on board. | believe that most people accept
the principle of a national park — it is putting the principle into practice that creates anxieties.

That is why my Department is publishing this comprehensive consultation paper. It brings together in
one document all our thinking, and it looks in detail at how a national park might be managed in a way
that reconciles both local and national interests.

We seek recognition of our most cherished landscapes through the national park label, while utilising
it as an economic driver that will boost local business and provide sustainable employment and new
business opportunities for this and future generations. Above all, we want to create a national park
model that is right for our local circumstances.

Alex Attwood MLA
Minister of the Environment



Page 87

3. Introduction 06

1. The Department published a White Paper on Enabling Legislation for National Parks on 24 March,
prior to the recent Assembly elections. The paper focused on our policy in relation to the proposed
aims, selection criteria and the designation process associated with national parks.

2. lItalso announced that further material would be published during the consultation period.
This would look in more detail at the various governance options for a national park and seek
responses to a number of questions on the full range of national park issues.

3. To avoid unnecessary repetition, this latest document includes the White Paper as an Appendix. It
also brings together and expands the Department’s thinking on the constitution of a management
body, the responsibilities and skills of board members, and a wide selection of governance options.

4. One of the potentially most sensitive issues in relation to national parks is that of access. In this
paper we have set out our thinking on access and on occupiers’ liability, to which access is closely
associated. We hope that this stance will serve to reassure landowners and farmers in particular, as
we seek to develop a national park model that is appropriate for Northern Ireland.

5. The appendices include an outline Regulatory Impact Assessment. As this impact assessment
relates to enabling legislation, this is of necessity short on facts and figures. When we reach the
point of designating a specific area, it should be possible to provide a more detailed analysis.

6.  Finally, as mentioned above, we have included a list of consultation questions to which we would
particularly welcome responses. These relate to both this document and the White Paper (which
is included as Appendix 1). The list does not claim to be exhaustive, and we welcome any other
comments that respondents may wish to make on the issue of national parks generally.



Page 88

4. Governance 0/

The White Paper on Enabling Legislation for National Parks highlighted the need for any national
park to have a competent management body with adequate funding. The following paragraphs
seek to expand on the contents of the White Paper to give consultees a stronger flavour of the
Department’s current thinking.

In pursuit of delivery of park aims it is envisaged that any national park would require a
management body that would need to be able to initiate, facilitate and encourage development

in its broadest sense. For example, it is expected that the body would have an intimate knowledge
and understanding of the area, its natural and built heritage, its culture and its communities.

It would seek to encourage and cultivate ideas (not necessarily its own); plan strategically; and
develop and manage programmes for the betterment of the park area. When appropriate, it would
arrange specialist input — for example, research, marketing, mentoring, training, education and
advice.

Above all, a management body would promote the park and public enjoyment of it for the benefit
of all the people of Northern Ireland and beyond. The body would have a duty to foster the
economic and social wellbeing of any area identified. A national park ethos sits very easily with the
Department’s objective of environmental justice. In practical terms, environmental justice strives
to ensure that everyone has a right to expect to benefit from a clean and healthy environment,
free from pollution or other detrimental activities.

Of course, a national park is not just about environmental goals. The evidence from national parks
established elsewhere shows that the benefits derived also align closely with other Departments’
objectives. For example, rural development; health and wellbeing benefits; research, scientific and
educational opportunities; and tourism and other economic gains. In addition to Government’s
aims, national parks promote a sense of civic pride, both locally and nationally, which comes with
promoting the unique and positive qualities of particular parts of Northern Ireland.

Therefore, any management body would need to be able to focus on the area of the park. It
should be able to manage its own budget (in a closely audited and transparent fashion), with the
flexibility to borrow, bring in resources from a range of sources (for example, European funding
and the Lottery), and make grants and loans. It would need the capacity to enter into financial
and other agreements and contracts, including the ability to form companies or partnerships
and coalitions with other interested parties. The power to employ people with the right skills
and profile would be crucial in fostering a skilled workforce to serve the park and its people. The
body may also need the authority to make by-laws to assist with visitor management issues and
to acquire land by agreement. It would thus need to be a separate legal entity to facilitate the
foregoing activities.



Page 89

08

Governance Options

6.  The White Paper highlighted that there was a wide range of governance options. Of these, two
particular models stood out as providing a substantial level of local input. These were a local
independent body for each park or a joint governance committee comprising district council
representatives and departmental appointees. However, the Department is keen to explore all
possibilities to provide a structure which is right for Northern Ireland. The pros and cons of all the
options are considered below, but there may be other scenarios which the Department has not
highlighted, and we would be keen to hear views as to their relevance.

Option 1: DOE

7. Under this option DOE would act as Northern Ireland’s National Parks Service and would open
and staff a local office in each park and provide day-to-day park management. A local national
park advisory committee would also have to be established in each park to counter criticisms of
decision making being out of touch with local people. It is anticipated that this option may be
perceived to be too conservation focused and may stifle innovation and enterprise and hinder
focused park management. In Britain national parks are not managed by a central government
department. This is in contrast to the Republic of Ireland where publicly-owned national parks are
managed in this way. The advantages and disadvantages of this option are summarised below:

Advantages:
* Well placed to ensure effective representation of the national interest.

* Obuviates the need for creation of an independent body.

* Brigades national park management and management of Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONBs) in the same organisation.

Disadvantages:

* Hampers a clear focus being brought to bear on the specific functions of landscape
management.

* Less flexible and responsive to local needs than other options.
* Less innovative and enterprising approach to landscape management.

* Centralised nature is a serious weakness — park management would be viewed as remote and
out of touch with local people.

* Park management suffers from being an appendix to a parent organisation which has other
priorities.

* Lower park profile with attendant risk of reduced economic benefits.



Page 90

09

Option 2: Single independent body with Northern Ireland-wide remit
for both national parks and AONBs

8.

10.

1.

The body would effectively be a Landscape Protection Service for Northern Ireland with a
headquarters in some central location. The body’s activities would be monitored by DOE. It would
need to create the local advisory structures described in option 1 above to counter criticism of
remoteness from local people. The extent to which additional structures and resources would

be needed to deal with AONBs would depend very much on whether AONB legislation is
strengthened or not.

The arm’s length agreement associated with the independent body approach is particularly suited
to national park management. It would allow the management body to focus in depth on the
clear and specific functions and purposes which lie at the heart of landscape protection. It would
also permit a flexible, responsive and innovative approach.

A potential issue with this option is its centralised nature which may make it remote from local
people. In addition, it would be responsible for a very large number of sites (there are eight
existing AONBs). Consequently, it would be impossible to populate a governing board in any
meaningful way with people who would be representative of any particular site.

The advantages and disadvantages of this option are summarised below:

Advantages:

* Clear focus on the specific functions of landscape management.

* Focused management unfettered by the corporate pressures of a parent organisation.

* More flexible and responsive to local needs than option 1.

* More innovative and enterprising approach to landscape management.

* Brigades national park management and AONB management in the same organisation.

* Well placed to ensure effective representation of the national interest.

Disadvantages:

* Centralised nature is a potential disadvantage — park management could be viewed as remote
and out of touch with local people.

* Extremely difficult to populate the body’s governing board with people  representative of the
area being managed given the large number of geographically separate sites.

* Potentially bureaucratic with three layers of management.
* Raises expectations about AONB management which may not be fulfilled.

* Risks dilution of the impact and benefit of the national park initiative.



Page 91

10

Option 3: Single independent body with Northern Ireland-wide remit
for national parks

12. Under this option the body would effectively be a National Parks Service for Northern Ireland. It
would establish a regional headquarters in an appropriate central location and it would need to
establish a local office in each park. It would also need to set up a local national park advisory
committee in each park in order to give local people some voice in park management. The body’s
activities would be monitored by DOE.

13.  The arm’s length arrangement associated with the independent body approach would be suited to
national park management. It would allow the management body to focus in depth on the clear
and specific functions and purposes which lie at the heart of landscape protection. It would also
permit a flexible, responsive and innovative approach.

14.  In common with the previous two options, this option would probably be based in a centralised
location. The prospect of decisions about local governance being taken by a remote, unelected
body may be unpopular. This model has not been adopted either in the United Kingdom or
the Republic of Ireland. Scotland recently reviewed its two independent local national park
management bodies after five years of operation and concluded that the present decentralised
arrangements should continue. The advantages and disadvantages of this option can be
summarised as follows:

Advantages:
* Clear focus on the specific functions of park management.

* Focused park management unfettered by the corporate pressures of a parent organisation.
* Offers flexible and responsive operation.
* Provides innovative and enterprising approach to park management.

* Well placed to ensure effective representation of the national interest.

Disadvantages:
* Centralised nature is a potential weakness — park management could be viewed as remote and
out of touch with local people.

* Difficult to populate the body’s governing board with people representative of the area being
managed.

* Bureaucratic — there would be three layers of management (Department, centralised body and
some form of local advisory committee).

* Perceived cumbersome approach if Northern Ireland is limited to one or two national parks in
the short to medium term.



Page 92

1

Option 4: District Council

15.

16.

This option would deliver local governance and obviate the need for the creation of a new
independent organisation. It would also sit comfortably with the other powers that may be
devolved to district councils, such as land use planning and community planning. Under this
option DOE would have an overarching policy influencing, monitoring and sponsoring role, while
park management would be a district council responsibility. Each park would be managed by a
district council committee or, in the case of a park straddling district council boundaries, a joint
district council committee. We would propose that the district council committee would establish
a local office in the park. There would be no need to set up the local national park advisory
committees envisaged under options 1, 2 and 3, but there would be a need to introduce some sort
of mechanism for ensuring that the national interest is represented on the management body.

However, this option is not without drawbacks. For example, the guaranteeing of effective
representation of the national interest is likely to prove problematical. This model has been tried
in England and Wales, particularly in the early years of national park management, but it was
subsequently abandoned. It was considered in Scotland but not adopted in either national park.
The advantages and disadvantages of this option are summarised below:

Advantages:

* Delivers local decision making and local accountability.

* Would sit comfortably with other possible roles for district councils in relation to land use and
planning, community planning, and rural development and regeneration.

* Obuviates the need for creation of an independent body.

Disadvantages:

* Hampers a clear focus being brought to bear on the specific functions of national park
management.

* Park management suffers from being an appendix to a parent organisation which has other
priorities. This was an important consideration when England moved away from local
authority-run parks and set up independent park authorities in the 1990s.

* Need for Councils to manage a wider remit may stifle the adoption of a flexible, responsive and
innovative approach that has been developed in national parks elsewhere.

* Lower park profile with attendant risk of reduced economic benefits.

* Potential weakness around the issue of ensuring effective representation of the national
interest.

* Cumbersome where a park straddles a district council boundary.



Page 93

12

* Asdistrict councils are likely to be the planning authorities, this may be perceived to be a more
restrictive planning regime. It could result in more opposition to a proposed park designation.

* Not favoured by established national parks elsewhere which saw merit in an independent,
dedicated management organisation.

Option 5: A Local Independent Body for Each Park

17. The local body’s governing board would be structured to ensure that both the national and local
interests have effective representation. DOE would set up a small sponsoring unit to oversee the
body’s activities. The creation of the governing board described above would obviate the need for
the creation of the sort of national park advisory committees envisaged under options 1, 2 and 3.

18.  Asis the case with options 2 and 3, the arm’s length arrangement associated with the
independent body approach is particularly suited to national park management. It would allow
the management body to focus in depth on the clear and specific functions and purposes which
lie at the heart of landscape protection. It would also permit a flexible, responsive and innovative
approach.

19.  The advantages and disadvantages of this option are summarised below:

Advantages:

* Clear focus on the specific functions of national park management.

* Focused park management unfettered by the corporate pressures of a parent organisation.
» Offers flexible and responsive operation.

* Provides innovative and enterprising approach to park management.

* Delivers local decision making and secures local buy-in while at the same time allowing for
effective representation of the national interest.

* Less bureaucratic than the centralised independent body option.

* Facilitates promotion of a high profile for the park and maximisation of the economic benefits
of designation.

Disadvantages:
* Need for review if and when subsequent parks are proposed.

* More expensive than a centralised solution which utilises an existing organisation such as DOE
or a district council.



Page 94

13

Analysis of Options

20.

It will not be possible to take a definitive decision as to the most appropriate organisational
arrangements in advance of a full economic appraisal. However, in the meantime the Department
has undertaken an initial analysis of the options to inform this consultation exercise. There are
several key advantages in an independent organisation (option 5) including the ability of such an
organisation to achieve a clear locally-engaged focus and an ability to flexibly address the many
challenging cross-cutting issues associated with establishing and managing a national park. The
main disadvantage with this option is the potential cost compared with the other options which
could use existing HR, financial systems and corporate services resources as well as existing
accommodation and expertise. Option 4 (the district council option) is a compromise, providing
for greater local input to an area’s management, while being less costly. Given the advantages
associated with options 4 and 5, some further analysis is provided on each of them below.

Further Analysis of Option 4

21.

While the primary key advantage of option 4 is the ability of this option to facilitate local input,
it also has several potential disadvantages which could possibly hamper effectiveness. A district
council driven approach may hinder an in-depth focus being brought to bear on the specific
functions and purposes that lie at the heart of national park management. The need for councils
to manage their wider remit may stifle the adoption of the flexible, responsive and innovative
approach which parks in Britain have been able to employ to the benefit of parks’ communities
and their landscapes. Significantly, this option has already been tried out in England and Wales
and has been discarded in every case in favour of the special purpose independent body option.

Further Analysis of Option 5

22.

23.

24.

Governance was a critical issue in establishing national parks elsewhere and the consensus
was that park management should be delivered by an independent dedicated management
organisation rather than a district council.

The arm’s length arrangement associated with an independent body approach is particularly
suited to national park management. It would allow the management body to operate at some
level of independence from Ministers and to focus in depth on the clear and specific functions
and purposes which lie at the heart of landscape protection. An independent body would also
be unfettered by the corporate pressures of a parent organisation, allowing it to adopt a flexible,
responsive, innovative and enterprising approach that could maximise the economic, social and
environmental benefits of a national park.

This option has the added advantage of having been proven elsewhere to be efficient and



Page 95

14

effective. Crucially, Cabinet Office, and Department of Finance and Personnel (DFP), guidance
is that this type of arrangement is appropriate for regulatory and specialist advisory functions.
The DFP Classification Guide states that NDPBs are ideally suited in areas where political
considerations should play little part in decisions but where it is agreed the function should still
be carried out in the public sector. Preliminary discussions with DFP officials have confirmed the
appropriateness of this approach.

Cost of Option 5

25.

26.

As the overall thrust of the consultation exercise is to take forward enabling framework legislation
only, it has not been possible to cost any of the options with any degree of exact accuracy. This
will only be possible when a specific area has been identified and factors such as population,
topography and the size of the area can be taken into consideration, as well as any other
significant issues that are unique to that locality and which could impact on governance.

However, general costings based on perceived activities for a national park management body
may be in the range of up to £2m, calculated as follows:

ACTIVITY COST

Promoting understanding of an area. £800,000
(Includes visitor centre(s), media promotion, marketing of brand,
information boards, developing corporate image, educational material,
working with locals to explore business opportunities, integrating and
coordinating actions/resources of other public bodies, etc.)

Conservation of natural and cultural heritage. £200,000
(Includes grants to other bodies and individuals within park boundary
to undertake measures to conserve/enhance local environment, path
restoration, control erosion, enhance local places of interest, upgrade
infrastructure such as car parking, etc.)

Promoting enjoyment of the area. £200,000
(Provide a service to local communities and visitors to ensure the
national park’s assets are fully utilised in a sustainable way while not
being degraded due to misuse, litter, lack of information or vandalism.)

Staffing (approximately 20 full time) £600,000
(To mange the national park area as set out above. Staff complement
would include administrative, ranger/volunteers, visitor centre/
educational, marketing/media, as well as HR/finance and chief
executive. Also possibility for a grant officer to pursue EU, HLF or other
relevant funding opportunities.)

Total £1,800,000




21.

28.

29.

30.

Page 96

15

In addition to the above, there will be additional start-up costs in terms of securing leases to
relevant properties to accommodate staff, as well as purchasing ICT, other office equipment and
possibly vehicles.

The potential costs associated with setting up and running a national park —around £2m per
year —may appear excessive to devote to a particular and defined area. However, experience in
national parks in Britain has clearly demonstrated that such expenditure attracts and generates
a great deal of income. For example, an assessment of benefits of national park authorities
undertaken by Defra in May 2011 identified clear financial multipliers. According to the Defra
document, “as Northumberland spends approximately £900,000 on tourism annually, this gives
a cost benefit ratio of 1:9.”. In addition, “in terms of promoting recreation, an illustrative cost
benefit ratio of 1:4 is calculated for all Great Britain national parks.”.

In addition to clear monetary benefits, there are also benefits in terms of promoting health
(physical and mental wellbeing) within the natural environment. While it is impossible to quantify
the level of this benefit for individuals, or to cost direct or indirect savings to the health and social
services, the linkages between green spaces and wellbeing have been well documented in medical
journals and other relevant literature.

Another benefit associated with national parks in Britain is on-going initiatives to encourage
socially excluded groups that would not usually access such areas to enjoy the benefits which
national parks have to offer. Social exclusion is a short-hand term for what can happen when
people or areas have a combination of problems, such as unemployment, discrimination, poor
skills, low incomes, poor housing, high crime and family breakdown. These problems are linked
and mutually reinforcing. Social exclusion is an extreme consequence of what happens when
people do not get a fair deal and find themselves in difficult situations. Initiatives within national
parks try to encourage greater participation in activities, to build confidence and foster self-belief
within individuals. Again, a very difficult benefit to cost in monetary terms.

Conclusion of Analysis

3.

32.

The evidence therefore indicates that if the economic, social and environmental benefits of a
national park are to be maximised through local engagement, options 4 (district council) and 5
(the independent body option) appear to provide the best solution.

It is hoped to designate a national park in the short to medium term following enabling legislation
coming into force. In the event that Northern Ireland was to establish a second or third national
park, there would be scope under option 5 to secure efficiencies by having the various park
management bodies share services such as human resources, IT, finance and estate management.



Page 97

16

Constitution of a Management Body

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

If it were to be decided that a national park management body is to be an independent
organisation, it would need to have a mechanism to manage its day-to-day activities. Our
proposal is that this would be achieved by having a governing board to control the body’s
operations.

We would envisage that the board Chair would be responsible to the DOE Minister. The Chair
would ensure that the body'’s policies and actions support the wider strategic policies of the
Minister, and that the body’s affairs are conducted with probity and parsimony. The Chair,
together with a Deputy Chair and the other board members, would have corporate responsibility
for ensuring that the body fulfils the aims and objectives set by DOE and for promoting the
efficient, economic and effective use of staff and other resources by the body.

To this end, the board would establish the overall strategic direction of the body within the policy
and resources framework determined by DOE. It would ensure that the Department is kept
informed of any changes that are likely to impact on the strategic direction of the body or on the
attainability of its targets, and determine the steps needed to deal with such changes. It would
ensure that any statutory or administrative requirements for the use of public funds are complied
with and that the board operates within the limits of its statutory authority. It would receive

and review regular financial information about the body’s management and demonstrate high
standards of corporate governance, including the creation of an independent audit committee (as
a subcommittee of the board) to help the board to address key financial and other risks.

In order to command widespread support and local credibility, it is suggested that any proposal
about the membership of the governing board would need to enshrine at least 60% local
representation. Based on the Scottish model, a possible mix of membership categories on the
board might be: 20% park dwellers, 40% district council nominees who would be appointed

by the Minister, and 40% Ministerial appointees who would represent the national interest

and would also exercise an important role in relation to both supporting and constructively
challenging the other board members. This mix of membership categories would facilitate local
decision making and at the same time allow for effective representation of the national interest
and safeguard accountability issues.

Consultation responses will assist in developing detailed proposals in relation to board
membership and, in particular, a proposed mechanism for selecting the people who would
comprise the 20% park dwellers element of the board. Options would appear to be either to
hold a local poll to elect people to the board or use the public appointments process to make
Ministerial appointments.



38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Page 98

17

The question of whether places on the board should be reserved for representation of particular
organisations other than district councils is a matter for debate, but the inclusion of certain bodies
and the exclusion of others would seem likely to be problematical.

It is suggested that, in common with practice in relation to many other NDPBs, board
membership would carry with it disqualification from membership of the Northern Ireland
Assembly.

The board would need to be able to appoint subcommittees to assist it in the discharge of

its functions, and the desirability of having an audit committee (ideally chaired by one of the
national interest appointees) has already been discussed above. It would also be desirable for a
subcommittee to be able, with Ministerial approval, to co-opt persons as members.

Consultation responses will also be important in helping to develop a proposal in relation to
selection of the Chair and Deputy Chair of the board. There are a number of options to consider
including:

| The Minister appoints a Chair and Deputy Chair following an open public appointments
competition.

Il. The Board elects its own Chair and Deputy Chair from within the (whole) board membership.
However, there is a potential and significant disadvantage with this option from a public
accountability standpoint. If the board includes people who have been elected onto the board
rather than appointed by the Minister, a situation could arise where the Chair and Deputy Chair
are people who are not accountable to the Minister.

Ill. The Board elects its own Chair and Deputy Chair from within the Ministerial appointee element
of the board membership.

The size of the board is also something which needs to be debated. Scotland’s two national park
management bodies (Cairngorms and Loch Lomond & the Trossachs) began with 25 members
(the maximum permissible under the Scottish enabling legislation) and derived benefits in their
initial phase in being able to draw on the resource of a larger board than would be required
solely to achieve effective governance. Following review, the size of the Scottish boards has been
reduced to 19 and 17 respectively. The norm for NDPB board membership is in the range 10 to 15
and it is suggested that the maximum size specified in Northern Ireland national parks enabling
legislation might be no higher than 20; flexibility would exist to specify a lower figure in the
subordinate legislation that actually designates a park. It is envisaged that all board members
would be remunerated.



Page 99

13

Responsibilities and Skills of Board Members

43.

44,

45.

All board members would share a corporate responsibility for the proper conduct of the body’s
affairs and for ensuring that staff maintain the strictest standards of financial propriety. Board
members would be expected to act in the best interests of the body rather than the interests
of any other organisation or nominating body. The board would have a duty to ensure that the
requirements of propriety, regularity and value for money are met in its use of public funds.

It is envisaged that the national interest appointees would provide a national voice on the body
and take a particular interest in strategic issues such as conservation, recreation, planning,

access and resource issues. They would be expected to understand the concept and practice of
sustainable development and come from a broad range of backgrounds. Collectively they would
bring a range of skills and experience including an understanding of issues affecting protected
landscapes; leadership and management skills; an awareness of the views of people not living in
or near the national park; corporate services skills; expertise in strategy formulation, development,
evaluation and communication; and experience of wider issues such as work with young people,
environmental projects, social inclusion work, or an active interest in outdoor recreation.

District council nominees and park dwellers would together make up the rest of the board
membership and be in a majority. This would ensure that the board is equipped with detailed
knowledge of the park area and awareness of local issues and requirements. It would also ensure
that the board is responsive to the needs of the park’s communities.



Page 100

5. Access and Occupiers’ Liability 19

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

It is proposed that district councils would continue to exercise their powers under the Access to
the Countryside (NI) Order within a national park. A park management body would be expected
to work very closely with district councils and others in order to promote countryside recreation,
but it would not be the access authority. It is envisaged that the management body would, in
partnership with others, develop an access strategy for the national park and promote public
enjoyment of the area’s special qualities. It is also envisaged that a management body would
make a significant contribution to the important task of managing public access within the park by
providing a ranger service and other facilities and working with landowners, walkers and other park
users to resolve problems.

Discussions with stakeholders have revealed that landowners have concerns about increased risk
in relation to occupiers’ liability as a result of national park designation attracting more visitors.
The current occupiers’ liability legislation was carefully reviewed by the Department of Finance
and Personnel (DFP), and it was found that the current regime properly reflects a balance between
the rights of landowners and the interest of people wishing to access land for open air recreation.
Public information leaflets have been produced to promote better understanding of the effect of
the legislation.

An underlying problem with the access / occupiers’ liability issue in Northern Ireland is the fact
that in some upland areas public access has never been formalised but exists on a de facto basis.
Landowners fear that by agreeing to formalise this de facto access they would increase their level
of liability. In fact the opposite is the case.

The DFP review revealed that where de facto access exists, there is uncertainty as to whether
walkers would be viewed by a court as visitors (to whom a higher duty of care is owed by the
landowner) or as trespassers (to whom a lower duty of care applies). Thus a regime of de facto
access potentially exposes a landowner to a higher level of liability. If landowners were to
formalise the access by entering into an access agreement under the Access to the Countryside
Order, they would derive the following benefits. Firstly, they would be entitled to a modest
payment in return for making the agreement, and secondly, and possibly of more importance,
they would secure a lowering of their liability. This is because the legislation makes it clear that
anyone entering their land under an access agreement is not deemed a visitor and is therefore
owed a level of care no higher than that owed by a trespasser.

It is considered therefore that greater use of the provisions in the Access Order provides a way
forward. It would not only give walkers greater confidence about where they are entitled to walk,
but also give landowners some financial reward together with a reduced legal liability.



Page 101

6. Consultation Questions 20

10.

What are your views on the proposed aims of national parks?

What are your views on the proposed criteria for identifying areas that may be suitable as national
parks?

What are your views on the proposed arrangements for consulting on a proposal to designate a
specific area as a national park?

What are your views on the proposed management framework arrangements for national parks?

What are your views on the proposed duties, functions and powers of a national park
management body?

What are your views on the proposed role of a national park management body in planning
matters?

What are your views on the governance options?
What are your views on the proposed constitution of a national park management body?

Do you share the Department’s analysis in the Partial RIA that national parks will have little or no
negative impact?

Are there any other comments which you wish to make about the Department’s proposals?



Page 102

APPENDIX 1

Department of the
Environment
www.doeni.gov.uk

White Paper on Proposed
Enabling Legislation for
National Parks

March 2011

2



Page 103

Introduction 20

This paper sets out the Department of the Environment’s proposals for taking forward new
enabling legislation for national parks in Northern Ireland. The paper sets out the broad principles
that the Department will seek to follow. However, some of the policy detail needs to be explored
further in consultation with key stakeholders before draft legislation is developed.

The creation of a national park in Northern Ireland will be a two-stage process. The first stage is to
put in place enabling legislation that will allow for the creation of national parks. The second stage
will be a designation order to create a national park within a given area.

Background - The Evolution of The National Park Concept

3.

Historically, in other parts of the UK and beyond, the term ‘national park’ has been a global brand
used to describe different models of protected landscape areas. These areas range from vast,
uninhabited wildernesses in the United States of America to smaller, populated areas in the UK
where the landscape is largely a product of traditional farming practices.

In more recent times, with the introduction of Scottish national park legislation and the updating
of comparable English legislation, the UK national park concept has developed considerably. There
is now a recognised and growing desire to sustain viable communities within designated parks
and a move to adopt a more balanced approach to ensure that social and economic aims are
considered alongside the environmental agenda. The parks must facilitate and support sustainable
economic activity and development. National parks are therefore places which set an example

of how to integrate the rural economy with the proper protection of natural heritage and secure
sustainable development. Annex A charts significant developments in the history of UK national
parks.

The Northern Ireland landscape, with its large number of relatively small farms and numerous
single dwellings in the countryside, is quite different to other parts of the UK. This stems from
the history of land ownership on the island of Ireland and from the close-knit rural communities
and associated strong family bonds to the land, which is generally handed down from generation
to generation. Any Northern Ireland national park model needs to take account of this unique
situation and to recognise that local involvement and strong community support is crucial to
decision making. A Northern Ireland model also needs to be different to that of the Republic of
Ireland which is based on state ownership of national park land.

Current Legislative Provision in Northern Ireland

6.

The existing Nature Conservation and Amenity Lands (NI) Order 1985 allows for the designation
of a national park. It is a very broad designation provision, geared solely to landscape protection
and promoting public enjoyment of the area. Taking into account current thinking on what a
national park should deliver, it is considered outdated.



Page 104

23

Notably, current legislative provisions fail to:

* embrace the principles of sustainable development;
* take account of engaging communities;
* provide a sound legislative basis for integrated national park management;

* provide for the machinery and resources required to promote a national park and support its
communities;

* identify community well-being as an aim for Northern Ireland national parks;

* allow for the empowerment of local rural communities so that they can have a say in the
protection, management and development of their landscape; and

* make a clear policy distinction between provision for national parks and Areas of Outstanding
Natural Beauty in terms of management, resource provision and local accountability.

Current legislation is not therefore considered fit for purpose, and it is unlikely to provide a
sustainable future for any potential national park.

Why do we need a National Park?

9.

10.

A key argument for national parks in Northern Ireland is based on the need to grow the economic
opportunities of our most cherished landscapes in a managed way that conserves and enhances
them and their communities. There is a need for national parks to boost tourism, to help
Northern Ireland compete with and complement visitor attractions in the Republic of Ireland,
and to contribute to economic growth generally. National park designation would increase focus
and marketing opportunities for tourism in an international context. This would increase visitor
numbers and spend in any designated area, to the benefit of local businesses and the facilitation
of rural diversification.

In addition, some of our iconic landscapes suffer from unmanaged visitor pressures during

certain times of the year, which leads to problems for local infrastructure, erosion of landscapes
and difficulties for landowners. Designation would help to address these issues and would

also facilitate conservation and enhancement of ecosystems, so that these landscapes remain
attractive to visitors and make a positive contribution to the livelihoods and welfare of the people
who live and work in and around them. The structured framework provided by a national park
would ensure a managed and living landscape that can benefit future generations of local people
and visitors alike. Furthermore, the resulting long-term commitment from Government would
help to promote and support sustainable communities within the park area.



Page 105

24

Strategic Fit

1. The national parks initiative sits comfortably within a number of Northern Ireland’s policy
strategies. The Regional Development Strategy ‘Shaping Our Future’ talks about exploring the
potential for the establishment of one or more national parks where there is high landscape
quality, significant recreation and tourism use or potential, the local community is in favour and
an acceptable model can be found. The subsequent Sustainable Development Strategy ‘First Steps
Towards Sustainability’ contains a specific target relating to the introduction of new national parks
enabling legislation. Both these strategies are under review at present.

12.  The initiative would also fit well with, and assist the delivery of, other major Northern Ireland
strategies. For example, a national park would be concerned with developing measures to reverse
biodiversity loss by maintaining and enhancing existing habitats, thus helping with delivery of
the Northern Ireland Biodiversity Strategy. A national park would also contribute to the Northern
Ireland Tourist Board’s Tourism Strategy with the development and promotion of its area as a
world-class quality visitor destination.

13.  Anational park would also assist rural development by promoting the long-term viability of its
rural communities, thus adding value to DARD’s Rural Strategy 2007-2013, the development of
the Rural White Paper and the OFMDFM Anti-Poverty and Social Inclusion Strategy 2005.

14.  Importantly, the initiative can be expected to produce significant economic benefits, and these are
discussed later in the paper.

What Value Will National Park Designation Add?

15.  National park status will give a chosen area a number of advantages including:

- statutory assurance of additional and ongoing dedicated funding for integrated management
designed to promote both economic and social well-being and environmental conservation /
enhancement;

- internationally important tourism status; and

- amarketing advantage in terms of potential for branding of produce and for attracting new
investment.

16.  National park management would complement existing DARD-driven rural development,
agricultural support and agri-environment programmes. It would add value to existing public
expenditure streams by ensuring a co-ordinated and integrated approach, by promoting the area
and by facilitating innovation.

17. On the environmental front for example, a park management body might provide financial
incentives for activities not covered by existing support mechanisms, or ‘top up’ mainstream grant
aid where it is desirable to further incentivise a particular activity that would help to achieve the
environmental objectives of the park.



18.

19.

Page 106

25

On the economic/social front, a park management body could for example follow the practice

of some GB national parks and create a community enterprise team which would be proactive in
assisting park dwellers across a wide range of subject areas. That assistance might be simply advice
about accessing funding elsewhere or it might be in the form of grant aid for a specific project for
which funding would not otherwise be available. GB parks also provide help with business start-
ups, either in the form of advice or actual help with the preparation of business plans.

An interesting example of innovation in Northumberland National Park is its ‘Traditional
Boundaries, Traditional Skills" programme run by the park management body which takes ten local
people off the unemployment register each year for a twelve-month period to train them in dry
stone walling and hedge laying skills. Some of these trainees have then gone on to form small
businesses.

Economic Impact

20.

21.

22.

23.

There is evidence to suggest that establishing national parks in Northern Ireland would assist
with the delivery of the top PfG priority of growing the economy. For example, the 2006 Council
for National Parks report “Prosperity and Protection” which examines the economic impact of
national parks in the Yorkshire and Humber region, provides robust evidence that prosperity and
protection can indeed go hand in hand. The study reveals that businesses in the parks and in
towns nearby benefit from the quality of the protected landscapes and from the park designation
itself. It suggests that the parks’ businesses generate £1.8 billion in sales annually, supporting over
34,000 jobs and around £576m of gross value added. Visitors to the parks are estimated to spend
about £400m annually within them and £260m in the rest of Yorkshire and Humber. The total
visitor spend of £660m is estimated to support 12,000 jobs.

The economic growth experienced in UK parks is not confined to the rather obvious sectors like
green tourism, but it also extends to those like land management, food production, IT, retail and
small-scale manufacturing.

Further evidence comes from the 2001-2006 Welsh study “Valuing our Environment: Economic
Impact of the National Parks of Wales” which was commissioned by the National Trust Wales,
Countryside Council for Wales, Welsh Assembly Government and other partners. This study found
that the three Welsh national parks support nearly 12,000 jobs, produce total income of £177m
and generate £205m GDP. The parks are icons for tourism inside and outside the park boundaries.
They provide a strong brand image for Welsh goods and services, and they support not only their
own local economies but also the economy of Wales as a whole.

Closer to home, independent research' into the possible tourism impact of a Northern Ireland
national park was commissioned by the Northern Ireland Tourist Board and Mourne Heritage Trust
in 2006. The study indicates that, ten years on from designation, a park could be generating as

"Tourism in Mourne:Current and Potential Economic Impact — Colin Buchanan & Partners Ltd. - 2006



24.

25.

Page 107

26

much as an additional £81m per annum in tourism revenue and supporting an extra 4,700 jobs in
the park area and its surrounding districts.

The Mourne study found that there was no precise data available on visitor numbers before

and after designation for a comparable national park, but the research conducted did identify
important trends in the case studies examined. For example, in the French Regional Nature

Park in Brenne which was designated in 1989, visitor numbers to the park’s main gateway and
orientation centre increased dramatically from 5,000 in 1991 to 78,000 in 2004. French Regional
Nature Parks are not national parks but provide an interesting parallel as they were established
as a mechanism to conserve cultural landscapes. Their aims include protecting heritage through
suitable management of natural environments and landscapes, enhancing economic, social and
cultural development, and welcoming, educating and informing visitors.

The Swedish national park at Fulufjallet was another case study examined by the Mourne study.
Designated in 2002, 53,000 people visited it in the summer of 2003 representing an increase of
40% over the visitor numbers for 2001.

Will National Park Designation Impose Restrictions on Agriculture
and Fishing?

26.

Farming and fishing communities can be assured that national park designation would not

result in the imposition of additional restrictions on agricultural and fishing practices. The model
of national park that is being proposed for Northern Ireland is not a regulatory regime but a
facilitating and enabling framework that will encourage enhancement of the special landscape and
promote the well-being of its communities. The focus of a park management body’s work would
therefore be on the creation of opportunities for betterment of the area.

Proposed Aims of a Northern Ireland National Park

27.

28.

It is suggested that a Northern Ireland national park would have four aims. These are set out
below, together with supporting rationale.

I. Promotion of sustainable economic and social development of the area’s
communities.

Northern Ireland’s most special landscapes and/or seascapes are the homes and workplaces of
many thousands of people, and the continued existence of vibrant communities is vital to future
landscape maintenance. These communities are often being challenged by a range of economic
and social changes and there is a need to encourage and promote economic diversification to
assist communities to maintain their populations and local services such as schools, post offices
and shops.



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Page 108

2/

Responses to these challenges are being developed by strategies such as the development

of the Executive’s Rural White Paper and the review of the Rural Development Strategy, and

it is important that the national parks initiative works in synergy with, and adds value to,

these developments. National park status would add value to an area’s economic and social
opportunities by giving it an internationally important profile which would attract more visitors
and investment, and provide a branding opportunity for the area’s produce.

Il. Conservation and enhancement of the natural, cultural and built heritage of the
area.

Northern Ireland has a number of areas of landscape and/or seascape of exceptional natural
beauty. They contain important wildlife species, habitats and geodiversity, many of which have
been recognised as being of national and international importance. But they are also living

and working landscapes, and over the centuries their natural beauty has been moulded by the
influence of human activity. Their character is reflected in local traditions which have influenced
farming, forestry, quarrying and other activities, as well as management practices in the

marine environment such as aquaculture, fishing and recreation. It is also reflected in the local
building materials and vernacular style, monuments and landscape, often of archaeological or
historical significance, and in the words, music, customs, crafts and art which mark the individual
characteristics of the area.

Just as the influence of man can and has been positive, so it can be detrimental to landscape
quality too. In some cases there is a need to ensure that an area’s features, character and culture
are maintained and enhanced for future generations.

Special landscapes may include some sites that already have statutory protection under
domestic and European law. However, such regimes do not provide a holistic approach to
landscape enhancement and community needs. A national park would provide a practical focus
on conservation and enhancement of the natural heritage where it is agreed appropriate, within
the resources available to any management body. However, a park would not impose additional
regulatory burdens.



34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Page 109

23

lll. Promotion of understanding and enjoyment (including enjoyment in the form of
recreation) of the special qualities of the area by the public.

Northern Ireland has diverse and attractive land and seascapes, some of which draw large
numbers of people. People visit these areas to enjoy and learn about the countryside, its
seascapes, its settlements, its lakes, loughs and rivers. Visitors come to escape day-to-day
pressures and to experience the sense of freedom, challenge, inspiration and enrichment which
is derived from the distinctive character of an area, its people and its culture. The public health
benefits and sense of well-being associated with increased countryside recreation are well
documented and feature in many cross-cutting initiatives and strategies within government,
including DCAL's recently published strategy for sport and physical recreation. In addition, there
are important messages to be communicated about wider environmental and social issues, such
as climate change and the need to pursue more sustainable ways of living.

While there are areas which are well-visited and have a number of features of interest, there is still
a need to promote their importance both nationally and further afield. These features would be a
focus for promoting quality services and growing tourism. This would have to be undertaken in a
sustainable manner to avoid adverse impacts and to ensure that the needs of the local community
are met. In turn, this enhanced level of activity would assist the local community to diversify

its economic base by providing amenities such as accommodation, camp sites, car parking and
refreshments. Opportunities for bird watching, angling, guided tours, boat trips for watching
marine life and other water-based activities could also be developed to cater for the growing trend
in eco-tourism

IV. Promotion of the sustainable use of the natural resources of the area.

Sustainable use of natural resources is at the heart of the UK national park concept. Sustainability
is about living within the capacity of the environment and natural resources and ensuring that the
needs of people alive today are met without compromising the ability of future generations to
meet their own needs.

The major challenge that sustainability presents is increasingly understood and evident. For
example, global climate change, collapsing marine fisheries, increasing demand on minerals and
other natural resources, are all pressing current issues which impact globally and locally.

In the UK national parks are now expected to be in the vanguard in terms of promoting ways to
live within environmental limits and to address climate change. In addition to the traditional use
of an area’s resources for recreation such as hiking, boating and cycling, thinking has expanded to
harness other potential uses of its natural resources. To this end, UK parks are setting examples for
the rest of society in areas such as renewable energy promotion, green transport, hydro-electric
and biomass projects, low carbon farming, eco-tourism, community level recycling and rainwater
harvesting. It is suggested that a Northern Ireland national park might fulfil a similar role.



Page 110

29

Criteria for Identifying Potential National Parks

39.

It is suggested that criteria for national parks would flow from the park aims and would need to
be predicated on landscape quality. However, it is also recognise that not every special landscape
needs to become a national park. It is further suggested that in order to be considered for national
park designation an area should meet all of the following criteria:

Special Landscape

40.

It is suggested that the first criterion for identifying national parks would be based on the fact

that the area has a special quality in terms of its landscape/seascape, settlements, biodiversity,
built heritage and culture. This special quality would be associated with attributes such as natural
beauty, sense of place and national importance. Thus the first criterion would be ‘that the area is
of special importance because of its natural heritage or the combination of its natural
and cultural heritage’.

Cohesiveness

41.

Special landscapes/seascapes can have a particular character or identity which extends beyond
the bounds of the core area of special natural beauty. In other words there may be a market town,
a port, or perhaps an area that has become degraded to some degree, but which in terms of its
geographical or cultural identity is linked to the special area. It would therefore be useful to have

a criterion that allows for some boundary flexibility and ensures that an area is coherent in social,
cultural and economic terms. Thus a second criterion would be along the lines ‘that the area has
a distinctive character and coherent identity’.

Special Pressures

42.

43.

Special landscapes/seascapes may be experiencing a number of pressures. For example, with
Northern Ireland attracting greater numbers of visitors each year, there are growing pressures on
our road network and other infrastructure, especially in the summer months. Unmanaged visitor
pressure can also lead to landscape erosion and problems for landowners such as litter, trespass
and property damage. Attractive landscapes can also come under pressure in relation to demand
for second homes. This can create problems in terms of development pressure/urbanisation,
escalating property prices, lack of affordable housing for local people and, in extreme cases and
over time, breakdown of local community structures.

The integrated management approach associated with the national park philosophy has the
capacity to help address the sort of pressures described above. It is suggested therefore that a
third criterion is ‘that designating the area as a national park would help it to meet the



Page 111

30

special pressures on the area.’ This criterion would help to distinguish between candidates for
national park designation and other special landscapes that could be sustained by more modest
designation and management arrangements.

Recreation, Enjoyment, Education and Understanding

44,

45.

46.

It is suggested that a candidate national park would be expected to be a national asset in terms
of encouraging tourism, recreation, public enjoyment and understanding of the environment.
Some areas already attract significant levels of visitors for this reason — for example, the Giants
Causeway/Antrim Coast and Glens, Fermanagh Lakelands and the Mournes.

Consideration needs to be given to the potential added value which national park status would
bring to an area in terms of facilitating improved recreation, enjoyment and understanding.
Consideration also needs to be given to whether the area has a critical mass in terms of diversity
of visitor interest and appeal.

It is therefore felt that a fourth criterion should be ‘that the area affords opportunity for
recreation, enjoyment, education and understanding’.

Need for Clear and Rational Process

47.

A clear and rational process is needed to ensure:

* Credibility - that any area proposed for designation is coherent, of appropriate quality, and
has the right characteristics to be considered as a national park.

* Fairness — that any proposals for designation via the subordinate legislation process are
subjected to a thorough, extensive and transparent process of public consultation and debate
and ultimately agreed.

* Objectivity — that any proposals are rooted in factual material, uncoloured by emotions,
subjective opinions or vested interests.

* Robustness - that the entire process of designation should be open to detailed scrutiny and
challenge, and if appropriate at a public inquiry.

Objective Landscape Evaluation

48.

49.

The expectation is that the process would need to begin with the commissioning of independent
and objective evaluation of all of Northern Ireland’s landscapes to identify areas that meet all
the criteria. This is @ major piece of work that would provide a rational basis for making a formal
proposal for a national park designation in a specific area.

The study might list the eligible candidates for national park designation and articulate the merits



Page 112

3

of each. This would be a transparent process, and there is the option of publishing this work to
gauge public reaction before the Executive commits to a specific proposal.

Designation Process

50.

5T.

It is envisaged that a formal national park proposal could set out in general terms each area which
it is proposed should be designated as a national park; the functions which it is proposed the park
management body should exercise; and the likely costs of the body in exercising those functions.
Such a proposal would need to be accompanied by an appropriate and comprehensive range of
impact assessments. The proposal would be exposed to an extensive consultation process with all
stakeholders, the outcome of which would be published and laid before the Assembly.

It is suggested that it would also be helpful for the legislation to make it clear that there would be
a facility for a public inquiry in the event of significant objection to the proposal. It is envisaged
that this would follow the pattern of the sort of public inquiry that would be held in relation to a
major planning decision. It could reduce the prospect of legal proceedings from those who either
do not want a national park in the area proposed or who are aggrieved that their area was not
selected. However, it does not rule out the possibility of a complainant seeking a judicial review of
any public inquiry decision.

Designation Order

52.

53.

The expectation is that, in the light of the outcome of the public consultation and any inquiry that
may be held, the Executive would decide whether or not to proceed with the designation process.
The designation order process would, it is envisaged, take the form of subordinate legislation and
there would therefore be full public consultation on a draft Designation Order. In other words,
there would be a specific piece of subordinate legislation for each national park setting out in
detail its geographic limit.

The process of making a designation order could include the following key steps:

* Executive agreement on the final proposed boundaries of such a park;

* circulation of the draft order to every district council where any part of that council area is
within the boundary identified in the order for designation as a national park;

* circulation of the draft order to those who appear to the Department to be representative of
the interests of those who live, work or operate a business in the proposed national park area;

* extensive advertising of the proposals in the Belfast Telegraph, the News Letter and the Irish
News, as well as in relevant local newspapers; and

* a12-week public consultation period.



Page 113

32

Executive Role

54.

55.

For a number of reasons it is suggested that the selection of an area for a proposed national park
designation needs to be an Executive rather than a Ministerial decision. Firstly, the proposed
purpose and aims of national parks are cross cutting. National parks impinge on the interests of
not only DOE but also DARD, DETI, DSD, DCAL, DRD, DHSSPS, OFMDFM and DFP. Secondly, the
establishment of a national park would have implications for the Programme for Government and
would necessitate agreement on prioritisation, as a national park would require additional funds
to be allocated on an ongoing basis. Thirdly, the creation of a national park would not only be a
significant new initiative; it is also likely to be controversial. The experience with the Direct Rule
project to designate a Mourne National Park, and indeed experience in Great Britain with national
park proposals generally, demonstrates that any proposal to designate a specific park anywhere in
Northern Ireland is likely to be met with a mixture of both support and opposition.

It is envisaged therefore that it would be appropriate for an Executive Subcommittee — comprising
the Ministers of the Departments listed above — to be set up to oversee the selection process. The
entire community could have confidence in a national park proposal that had been selected and
approved by the Executive acting collectively.

Governance Arrangements

Management

56.

The overarching requirement for any national park to operate successfully is to have in place
integrated and sustained management delivered by a competent management body with
adequate funding. For integrated management to work properly there needs to be a clear and
unfettered focus by the management body to work towards delivery of the park’s aims. This can
only be achieved if the management body has a long-term commitment from government to
support it.

Possible duties, functions and powers of management body

57.

It would be important for any national park management body to provide the leadership needed
to bring together all relevant organisations and individuals to focus on the park area. This would
allow it to develop the park in a holistic way in accordance with the aims set out in the primary
legislation and with wider government policy and other requirements. It would be necessary

for the body to engage all relevant players in developing a long-term vision and in drawing up

a statutory management plan for the short to medium term, showing the steps to be taken
towards that vision and how each agency has committed to contribute. It is suggested that before
its adoption the management plan would have to be approved by the Executive. Progress with

its implementation would be monitored and an annual report made to Ministers. It is further



58.

Page 114

33

suggested that a statutory duty would be placed on all public bodies to have regard to the plan.

It is not envisaged that the body would take over or duplicate the role or responsibilities of any
existing organisation or provide services that could be provided by the private sector.

Planning matters

59.

60.

The agenda for building in the countryside has already been set by PPS 21. New national park
legislation would not disturb this, and a park management body would not exercise any planning
powers in its own right. However, it is suggested that the body could be given an influencing role
by being made a statutory consultee in the planning process. It is envisaged that a management
body could assist with efforts to ensure that the design of future development is sensitive to a
park’s natural beauty. It is also envisaged that the national park management plan would provide
the overarching vision for the future of the park and that the relevant planning authority would
have regard to this when preparing future development plans.

A national park management body would not be ‘anti-development’ in its views. The expectation
is that it would seek to balance the needs of communities with the needs of the environment by
pursuing a goal of sustainable development. Importantly, local people would be fully integrated
into the body’s decision-making process.

Marine matters

61.

While the function of English and Welsh national parks has a totally terrestrial focus, Scottish
national park legislation allows for the inclusion of marine areas. In view of its marine assets, it is
suggested that it may be useful for Northern Ireland to have the ability to designate national parks
that include marine areas as well as land.

Governance Options

62.

63.

In theory, there is a wide range of governance options. All of the studies and discussions
undertaken to date have highlighted the importance of local decision making and this will be a
key factor in determining which option is most appropriate. The full range of governance options
will be explored through public consultation, but at this stage two options stand out as providing
a substantial level of local input. A local independent body for each park, or a joint governance
committee comprising representatives of relevant district councils together with the Department.

Whichever option is chosen, the governing board of any national park would need to be structured
to ensure that both the national and local interests have effective representation.



Page 115

34

Estimated Costs and Timing

64.

65.

While the costs of a national park would vary according to the governance option selected, they
could be up to £3m per annum. However, research indicates that such costs would be more than
offset by the economic benefits that would ultimately accrue. The economic impact of national
parks is discussed earlier in this paper.

It is envisaged that new national parks enabling legislation could not be in place until 2012 at the
earliest. The subsequent process to designate a specific area is likely to take several more years.

Conclusion

66.

67.

68.

Northern Ireland has a number of unique and spectacular landscapes and areas of interest which
would warrant national park status. A national park is regarded as an area to be managed, visited
and enjoyed, by its national population and to be marketed internationally as a natural heritage
asset. Northern Ireland has the opportunity to promote the sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits which modern national parks bring to an area, and indirectly to the
province as a whole.

The concept of national parks has evolved greatly since legislation was first introduced in England
and Wales in the late 1940s. Taking advantage of the experience of national parks in the rest of
the UK and farther afield, this White Paper sets out the Department’s policies in relation to a
framework for national parks which would be relevant to Northern Ireland’s needs. However, to
develop legislative proposals, substantial consultation with stakeholders and discussions with
groups and individuals will be required.

It is intended to take this issue forward as a Departmental commitment in the new Assembly’s
legislative programme.



Page 116

ANNEX A 35

Significant Developments in the History of UK National Parks

The English 1949 Act

The National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 (NPACA) established National Parks within
the UK. It was described by Lewis Silkin, the Minister of Town and Country Planning of the time, as “the
most exciting Act of the post-war Parliament”. The nation was to have its Parks, and their purposes were
to preserve and enhance natural beauty and to promote enjoyment by the public.

Under NPACA the first ten National Parks were designated starting with the Peak District in 1951.
By the end of the decade the Lake District, Snowdonia, Dartmoor, Pembrokeshire Coast, North York
Moors, Yorkshire Dales, Exmoor, Northumberland and Brecon Beacons National Parks had also been
established. Parks tended to be selected because of their ‘wilderness’ properties.

The English 1995 Act

The 1995 Environment Act was the first piece of national park legislation to refer to the well-being of a
park’s communities. The twin aims of parks, i.e. the preservation and enhancement of natural beauty and
the promotion of public enjoyment, continued to be the main objectives, but now parks were required
,as they pursued these aims, to do so in ways which would also ‘foster the economic and social well-
being of local communities within the National Park. However, they were specifically charged with doing
this 'without incurring significant expenditure.” This curious constraint was to lead to problems later and
subsequent legislative reform (see below).

English initiative (1997) to have more parks nearer large centres of population

The late 1990s witnessed a political desire to create more national parks in England but in areas that
were closer to major centres of population. This occasioned a re-interpretation of the English criteria
for national park designation and ultimately led to the designation of the New Forest (2005) and South
Downs (2010).

The Scottish 2000 Act

The National Parks (Scotland) Act 2000 took the English model and developed it further by putting
sustainable development at its heart. To the twin aims of the English model were added the ‘promotion
of the sustainable economic and social development of the area’s communities’ and the ‘promotion

of sustainable use of the natural resources of the area.” Importantly these four aims are of equal
importance. Under this Act Scotland designated two parks, Loch Lomond & the Trossachs (2002) and
the Cairngorms (2003).

The English 2006 Act

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 removed the financial constraint on parks’
spending on fostering the economic and social well-being of park communities. The Act stopped short,
however, of altering the aims of English parks; there are still only two.



Page 117

36

English updated policy guidance on national parks (2010)

This DEFRA circular contains a vision for English parks. By 2030 they will be places where there

are thriving, living, working landscapes which inspire visitors and local communities to live within
environmental limits and to tackle climate change. They will be places where sustainable development
can be seen in action and where renewable energy, sustainable agriculture, low carbon transport

and healthy, prosperous communities have long been the norm. Wildlife flourishes and habitats are
maintained, restored and expanded. Woodland cover has increased and all woodlands are sustainably
managed with the right trees in the right places. Landscapes and habitats are managed to create
resilience and enable adaption. Everyone can discover the rich variety of England’s natural and historic
environment and can have the chance to value them as places for escape, adventure, enjoyment,
inspiration and reflection and a source of national pride and identity. They will be recognised as
fundamental to national prosperity and well-being.

DEFRA encourages park authorities and all other bodies with an influence on the management of these
special areas to work towards the achievement of this vision. The statutory purposes and the duty of
the park authorities remain relevant, and this circular aims to encapsulate the purposes and duty in a
modern vision.



Page 118

APPENDIX 2 37

Partial Regulatory Impact Assessment

1. Introduction

This Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA) is an initial attempt to describe the costs and benefits
associated with proposals for new enabling legislation to allow for the establishment of national parks
in Northern Ireland. No decisions have been taken on the preferred location for the first national park so
the RIA is at a relatively early stage.

The RIA will be refined and updated following completion of the consultation and a final RIA will be
produced when policy decisions have been finalised and legislative proposals prepared.

The RIA is open to comments, improvements and corrections by any interested party. Comments
are welcome on all aspects and, in particular, on the possible costs arising from the establishment of
national parks.

2. Purpose and Intended Effect of Measure

(i) The objective.

The policy objective behind the proposal for new national parks enabling legislation is twofold. First,
there is the objective concerned with the opening up of opportunities to stimulate tourism and
economic activity generally by according internationally recognised status to special landscapes.
National park designations have proven elsewhere to be powerful engines of economic growth, capable
of facilitating both tourism development and rural diversification. Second, there is a policy objective

of securing a sustainable future for Northern Ireland’s most pressurised cherished landscapes and their
communities. It is intended that the proposal will facilitate not only the conservation and enhancement
of the natural, built and cultural heritage of these special landscapes but also the economic and social
development of those areas’ communities.

(i) The background

Northern Ireland’s existing national parks legislation is generally regarded as inadequate for the purpose
of securing the integrated management which is necessary for addressing the problems that some areas
are facing. These problems include visitor and development pressures, problems associated with lack of
land and access management, and issues around the vulnerability of rural communities.

Because Northern Ireland has no national parks, those areas which might aspire to national park status
are, in the main, already designated as Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). This designation
does not have an international appeal to equal that of a national park, nor is it designed to bring to bear
on an area the level of public investment that a national park merits.



Page 119

38

(i) Risk assessment

The risk that the regulation is addressing centres on the threat of degradation of the qualities of

our most outstanding environmental assets and also on the danger that, by not giving them the
international recognition they deserve, we are depriving them of opportunities to make the most of their
economic potential.

Currently, management of such areas is usually entrusted to charitable trusts which have no statutory
management powers and limited resources. Experience has shown that this voluntary approach is not
nearly enough to cope with the special needs of these areas. GB experience with the highly pressurised
attractive landscapes in its national parks demonstrates that the solution to guaranteeing their
sustainability lies in the production of a statutory management plan which not only takes account of the
need to protect the environment but also embraces the need to promote the economic and social well-
being of the area’s communities.

3. Options

Option 1

Do nothing. Candidate national park areas would not be able to aspire to the higher tier of designation
and to the associated integrated management and significantly enhanced level of funding which they
need. Continuation of the status quo would therefore see charitable trusts striving to manage our most
sensitive landscapes with neither the statutory powers nor the budget needed to secure sustainable
development. The result would be continuing degradation of these important landscape assets and
failure to capitalise on the significant economic benefits associated with national parks.

Option 2

Designate national parks under the existing legislation. As the existing legislation does not distinguish
between AONBs and national parks in terms of their quality, needs or management the outcome
would amount to little more than a change of name. This option could actually exacerbate the current
situation as the national park label would bring more visitor pressure to bear but not provide for the
necessary improvements in management and resourcing to cope with that influx.

Option 3

Introduce new enabling legislation for national parks that would meet the policy objectives outlined
above. There would be provision for a park management body that would promote the area and produce
a statutory management plan which would effectively be a blueprint for sustainable development. Other
statutory bodies would be required to have due regard to the plan and the aims of the park. It is not
proposed that the management body would exercise planning powers but it would have the capacity to
deliver properly resourced integrated management.



Page 120

39

4. Benefits

Option 1: No additional benefits would be likely to arise as a direct result of pursuing this option as
this is the do nothing option. There is a possibility that some of the potential economic and social
benefits could be achieved indirectly on a more limited scale if more sector-specific initiatives are
pursued independently, but that would not be guaranteed and the wider benefits of more holistic and
sustainable management through delivery of the park plan would not be achieved.

Option 2: A benefit of this option is that tourism would be boosted in the short term by virtue of having
the national park label. However, this growth would not be sustainable in the absence of the integrated
management and resources to deal with the increased visitor pressure.

Option 3: The establishment of a national park management body would create local employment
opportunities, and the incomes associated with these new jobs could contribute to the strength of the
local economy. It is possible, depending on the location of the first national park, that not all the new
jobs would represent net increases in employment if it is the case that the national park management
body is taking the place of an existing AONB management body.

Establishment of a national park would also be expected to lead to significant tourism growth in the
chosen area, particularly for hotels and catering, retailers, museums and other visitor attractions. If the
national park included an island or islands within the boundary, the increased number of visitors could
lead to greater numbers of passengers on ferries, thus generating higher income and contributing to the
viability and profitability of existing routes.

The benefits to tourism and associated sectors could also be felt for longer periods throughout the
calendar year than the key visitor seasons at present. Increased tourism could also benefit local
traditional industries such as fisheries and food processing as well as newer industries like aquaculture,
as local demand through restaurants and other catering establishments is increased for premium
products such as shellfish. These sectors could also exploit demand for green products though
development of new branding opportunities to associate their produce with the national park, with the
potential for these to facilitate expansion into new markets.

The development of a national park plan could lead to clearer information for local businesses on their
operating environment as well as better signposting and assistance for people wishing to start up new
businesses. Research into national parks in Great Britain indicates that properly managed and resourced
national parks create economic growth and help businesses to prosper.

The national park designation and the associated development of a national park plan would also
better ensure that the natural and cultural heritage of the area is safeguarded for the nation and future
generations.

The Department welcomes representations on the potential benefits to assist with completion of the
RIA.



Page 121

40

Business sectors affected

The main beneficiaries of national park designation would be businesses directly or indirectly associated
with the tourism industry, but there are also opportunities for local food producers/retailers to benefit
from trading in national park branded produce. A national park could also be expected to provide
opportunities for landowners to diversify farm-based activities, and to obtain grant aid for activities
that enhance biodiversity and the landscape generally. Views on the implications for any other business
sectors would be welcome.

5. Costs

(i) Compliance costs

It is proposed that the park management body would not be a regulatory body but would be an enabling
and facilitating organisation. Thus the Department’s initial conclusion is that farms and other sectors

of business would have no costs to meet in terms of the compliance costs of additional restrictions or
regulations.

(ii) Other costs

Under Option 1 - the do nothing option — there would be environmental costs associated with
continuing degradation. It is difficult to put a figure on these costs but they are potentially significant as
erosion of the landscape and the quality of the visitor experience could, over time, impact adversely on
tourism revenue and the Northern Ireland economy generally.

Under Option 2 the additional unmanaged visitor pressure could lead to even higher environmental
costs than those identified under Option 1.

Under Option 3 it is possible that some individual businesses may be affected in those sectors of the
local economy in which restructuring could take place to exploit the new commercial opportunities
arising from the establishment of a national park. It is difficult to be more certain about costs at

this stage and views are invited from those who consider that they may be affected, but additional
investments by some businesses in industries such as tourism to take advantage of new opportunities
could lead to a reduction in competitiveness of other businesses. This would be likely to depend on
the area selected for designation, and once a decision is taken on that a more detailed RIA would be
produced as part of the consultation process.

(iii) Wider costs to society

A number of possible negative impacts of national park designation have been identified in research.
For example, increased visitor numbers may lead to traffic congestion, greater pressure for access and
recreation, and a possible increase in demand for second homes and associated rises in property prices.
On the other hand, some would argue that likely candidate national park areas in Northern Ireland are
already experiencing such pressures because of their natural beauty and a burgeoning tourism industry
and that the creation of a properly resourced park management body would equip them to mitigate



Page 122

41

these impacts. It is particularly difficult to be certain about such impacts in the absence of a specific
park proposal, and the Department would be grateful if respondees are able to provide any further
information on these issues.

As far as the voluntary sector is concerned, it is considered that the creation of national parks would
have a largely positive impact. Park management bodies would be an additional source of funding for
voluntary bodies engaged in activities that are conducive to the delivery of park aims. The only negative
impact identified so far is that the creation of a statutory park management body could result in the
winding up of any pre-existing voluntary sector management body. Any further information that the
voluntary sector can provide would be gratefully received.

6. Monitoring and Review

It is proposed that the designation of any specific park in Northern Ireland would involve subordinate
legislation and that the process of enacting such legislation would include detailed site-specific impact
assessments. It is further proposed that, once established, specific national parks would be subject to a
review of their effectiveness at least every five years.

7. Consultation

This proposal is being exposed to extensive public consultation.

8. Summary and Recommendation

The Department’s current thinking is that the proposals would not add to the regulatory burden on
business. They would provide a framework for securing a sustainable future for our most pressurised
special landscapes and their communities and would also open up opportunities for significant
economic benefit to the Northern Ireland economy.



Page 123

APPENDIX 3 42

Confidentiality of Consultation

The Freedom of Information Act gives the public the right of access to any information held by a public
authority, namely, the Department in this case. This right of access to information includes information
provided in response to a consultation. The Department cannot automatically consider as confidential
information supplied to it in response to a consultation. However, it does have the responsibility to
decide whether any information provided by you in response to this consultation, including information
about your identity should be made public or be treated as confidential. If you do not wish information
about your identity to be made public please include an explanation in your response. This means that
information provided by you in response to the consultation is unlikely to be treated as confidential,
except in very particular circumstances. The Lord Chancellor’s Code of Practice on the Freedom of
Information Act provides that:

* The Department should only accept information from third parties in confidence if it is
necessary to obtain the information in connection with the exercise of any Department’s
functions and it would not otherwise be provided;

* The Department should not agree to hold information received from third parties ‘in
confidence’ which is not confidential in nature;

* Acceptance by the Department of confidentiality provisions must be for good reasons, capable
of being justified to the Information Commissioner.

For further information about confidentiality of responses please contact the Information
Commissioner’s Office or see web site at:

www.informationcommissioner.gov.uk



Page 124

APPENDIX 4 43

DOE Section 75 Equality of Opportunity Screening Analysis Form
Section 1

Background

The Legal Background

Under section 75 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998, the Department is required to have due regard to the
need to promote equality of opportunity:

* between persons of different religious belief, political opinion, racial group, age, marital status
or sexual orientation;

* between men and women generally;
* between persons with a disability and persons without; and
* between persons with dependants and persons without.

The main groups within each of the nine categories, highlighted above, are identified at the end of this
form.

In addition, without prejudice to its obligations above, the Department is also required, in carrying out
its functions relating to Northern Ireland, to have regard to the desirability of promoting good relations
between persons of different religious beliefs, political opinion or racial group.



Page 125

44

Section 2

21

Title

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Please insert below a brief description of the policy/legislation, including the title
and all the main aims and objectives

New National Parks enabling legislation

Aims: The new legislation would aim to address a number of shortcomings with existing
legislation. It would for example define the difference between an AONB designation and a
national park designation and provide a statutory basis for the integrated management and
investment of resources that are needed by protected landscapes which are under intense
visitor and development pressure. Essentially the objective is to secure a sustainable future for
Northern Ireland’s most pressurised cherished landscapes.

On whom will the policies / legislation impact? Please specify

The policy will impact on Northern Ireland society as a whole either directly or indirectly. People
living within areas that are designated as national parks will see increased investment in those
areas’ landscapes, biodiversity and communities. Indirectly, people living outside the designated
areas will also benefit as the economic benefits of national parks will be experienced beyond
park boundaries and will ultimately impact positively on the Northern Ireland economy as a
whole.

Who is responsible for (a) devising and (b) delivering the policy, eg is it DOE, a
Whitehall Department or EU? What is the relationship and have they considered this
issue and any equality issues?

DOE is responsible for devising the policy.

Delivery mechanisms will be determined in the wake of this consultation and may take the form
of a local management body which could be either district council driven or a NDPB. Whatever
management framework is chosen, DOE will be providing the funding and monitoring outputs
and impacts. The establishment of a specific national park will be by means of subordinate
legislation, a process which will include relevant impact assessments, including consideration of
equality issues.

What linkages are there to other NI Departments/NDPBs in relation to this policy/
legislation?

There are linkages to DETI because of the close relationship between national parks and
tourism, to DARD because of rural regeneration and diversification issues, to DCAL because of
countryside recreation issues, and to DSD because of issues around economic and social well-
being.

What data are available to facilitate the screening of this policy/ legislation?

The proposals contained in this consultation concern Northern Ireland-wide enabling provisions
which are neither site-specific nor targeted at specific sectors of society. The question of
availability of specific data for equality screening is therefore not relevant.



2.6

Page 126

45

Is additional data required to facilitate screening? If so, give details of how and when
it will be obtained.

No additional data is required.



Page 127

46

Section 3 - Screening Analysis

31 Is there any indication or evidence of higher or lower participation or uptake by the
following Section 75 groups?

Yes No
Religious belief No
Political opinion No
Racial group No
Age No
Marital status No
Sexual orientation No
Gender No
Disability No
Dependants No

Please give details

There is no evidence that any of the particular groups is, or will be, more affected by these
proposals than any other or that any particular group would be disproportionately affected by the
policy proposals.

3.2 Isthere any indication or evidence that any of the following Section 75 groups have
different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation to this policy issue?

Yes No
Religious belief No
Political opinion No
Racial group No
Age No
Marital status No
Sexual orientation No
Gender No
Disability No
Dependants No




3.3

3.4

Page 128

47

Please give details

There is no evidence of this and no reason to suspect that any of the particular groups would
gain any advantage, or be disadvantaged, by these policy proposals in terms of their particular
needs or priorities.

Have consultations with the relevant representative organisations or individuals
within any of the Section 75 categories, indicated that policies of this type create
problems specific to them?

Yes No
Religious belief No
Political opinion No
Racial group No
Age No
Marital status No
Sexual orientation No
Gender No
Disability No
Dependants No

Please give details of any consultations carried out, and any problems identified.

The Department will consult widely about the policy proposals, but the results of the
consultation exercise are not expected to indicate that the policy proposals would particularly
disadvantage any of the groups identified in Section 75, therefore the Department considers
that equality issues do not arise.

Is there an opportunity to better promote equality of opportunity or community
relations by altering the policy, or by working with others, in Government, or in the
larger community in the context of this policy?

No

Please give details

No such opportunities have been identified. The policy proposals, by their nature, are considered
neutral from an equality perspective.



3.5

3.6

Page 129

48

It may be that a policy/legislation has a differential impact on a certain Section 75
group, as the policy has been developed to address an existing or historical inequality
or disadvantage. If this is the case, please give details below:

No such impact identified.

Please consider if there is any way of adapting the policy to promote better equality
of opportunity or good relations.

Please give details

None identified



Page 130

49

Section 4

EQIA Recommendation

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Full EQIA procedures should be carried out on policies considered to have significant
implications for equality of opportunity. Please fill in the following grid in relation to
the policy/legislation.

Prioritisation Factors Significant Impact | Moderate Impact Low Impact
Social Need. Yes
Effect on people’s daily Ves
lives.

Effect on economic, social Ves

and human rights.

Strategic significance Yes
Financial significance Yes

Please give details

The policy proposals, by their nature, are considered neutral from an equality perspective.

In view of the considerations in Section 3 and 4 do you consider that this policy/
legislation should be subject to a full EQIA? Please give reasons for your
considerations. If you are unsure, please consult with affected groups and revisit the
screening analysis accordingly.

There is no evidence that any of the particular groups is, or will be, more affected by these
proposals than any other or that any particular group would be disproportionately affected by
the policy proposals.

If an EQIA is considered necessary please comment on the priority and timing in light
of the factors in table 4.1.

N/A

If an EQIA is considered necessary is any data required to carry it out/ensure effective
monitoring?

Please give details
N/A



Page 131

50

Section 5

Endorsement

| can confirm that the proposed policy has been screened for equality of opportunity and good relations
implications and has been screened out for equality impact assessment/requires a full equality impact
assessment.

Signed: Ken Bradley

Agency/Division: Environment Policy Division

Date: July 201



Page 132

51

Main Groups Relevant to the Section 75 Categories

Category

Main Groups

Religious belief

Protestants; Catholics; people of non-Christian faiths;

people of no religious belief

Political opinion

Unionists generally; Nationalists generally; members/supporters
of any political party

Racial Group White people; Chinese; Irish Travellers; Indians; Pakistanis;
Bangladeshis; Black Africans; Black Caribbean people; people with
mixed ethnic group

Gender Men (including boys); women (including girls); trans-gendered

people

Martial status

Married people; unmarried people; divorced or separated people;
widowed people

Age

For most purposes, the main categories are: children under 18,
people aged between 18-65, and people over 65. However, the
definition of age groups will need to be sensitive to the policy
under consideration

“Persons with a disability”

Disability is defined as: A physical or mental impairment, which
has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on a person’s
ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities as defined

in Sections 1Tand 2 and Schedules 1 and 2 of the Disability
Discrimination Act 1995

n

“Persons with dependants

Persons with personal responsibility for the care of a child;
persons with personal responsibility for the care of a person with
an incapacitating disability; persons with personal responsibility
for the care of a dependant elderly person

Sexual orientation

Heterosexuals; bisexuals; gays; lesbians




Page 133

APPENDIX 5 52

Rural Proofing Statement

Rural proofing is a process to ensure that all relevant Government policies are carefully and objectively
examined to assess whether or not they have a different impact in rural areas from that elsewhere,
because of the particular circumstances of rural areas; and, where necessary, what policy adjustments
might be made to reflect rural needs and in particular to ensure that, as far as possible, public services
are accessible on a fair basis to the rural community.

Approximately 35% of the population of Northern Ireland lives in rural areas. The Northern Ireland
Statistics and Research Agency have defined such areas as settlements with a population of less than
4,500 (according to the 2007 census).

With their emphasis on cherished landscapes, the Department’s proposals for enabling legislation for
national parks will, by their nature, impact disproportionately on rural areas. However, it is considered
that there will be no negative impacts on rural areas. On the contrary, with the argument for national
parks based on growing the economic opportunities of our most cherished landscapes in a managed
way, the proposals are likely to have a wholly positive impact on rural areas.

The Department is fully committed to continuing engagement with stakeholders, and any responses
received in relation to the formal public consultation will be carefully analysed. Any actions identified
during the consultation process as having a differential impact in rural areas will be further considered in
the policy development.



Page 134

APPENDIX 6

List of Consultees

Northern Ireland Assembly

MLAs

MEPs

Attorney General

North / South Ministerial Council, Joint Secretariat
Devolution and Legislation Division
Legislation & Parliamentary Unit
Departmental Equality Unit

The British Library, Legal Deposit Office
Bodleian Library, Oxford

University Library, Cambridge

National Library, Scotland

National Library, Wales

Library of Trinity College, Dublin
Library, Queens University Belfast
Northern Ireland Publications Resource
TSO Bibliographic Department
National Library of Ireland

Council of the Inn of Court of NI

The Law Society of Northern Ireland
Belfast Solicitors’ Association

Queens University Belfast

University of Ulster

Northern Ireland Court Service

HM Council of County Court Judges
Law Centre (NI)

Civil Law Reform Division

Northern Ireland Law Commission
Human Rights Commission

NI Ombudsman

Equality Commission for NI

The General Consumer Council for NI
CBI NI

NI Chamber of Commerce and Industry
Federation of Small Businesses
Citizens Advice Bureaux

53

Forest Service

Rivers Agency

Loughs Agency

Committee for the Administration of Justice
Fire Authority for Northern Ireland
Geological Survey of Northern Ireland
Statutory Advisory Councils

Invest NI

Ministry of Defence

Northern Ireland Federation of Housing Associations
Northern Ireland Housing Executive
Northern Ireland Housing Council

Northern Ireland Tourist Board

Planning Appeals Commission

Sports NI

AFBI

Education and Library Boards

CCMS

NI Council for Integrated Education

Belfast Institute of Further & Higher Education
Chartered Institute of Housing

Institution of Civil Engineers

Landscape Institute NI

NI Association Engineering Employer’s Federation
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
Royal Society of Ulster Architects

Royal Town Planning Institute

Construction Employers Federation
Translink

George Best Belfast City Airport

City of Derry Airport

Belfast International Airport

Enniskillen Aerodrome

Harbour Commissioners

Quarry Products Association

Northern Ireland Water



Page 135

NI Chamber of Trade

Food Standards Agency NI

ICTU

NICVA

NILGA

Local Authority Chief Executives

DCGLSMo D

HM Revenue & Customs

Judicial Appointments Commission NI
Catholic Bishops of Northern Ireland
Community Relations Council

Participation & The Practice of Rights Project
NIACRO

Director of Ports and Public Transport
Director Regional Planning & Transportation Division
CAFRE

Woodland Trust

World Wildlife Fund (NI)

Conservation Volunteers Northern Ireland
Tidy NI

Groundwork Northern Ireland

Northern Ireland Marine Task Force

Northern Ireland Biodiversity Group
Northern Ireland Coastal and Marine Forum
Northern Ireland Agricultural Producers’ Association
Ulster Farmers Union

Landscape Institute Northern Ireland
Northern Ireland Retail Trade Association
Local Biodiversity Officers

Northern Ireland Fish Producers Organisation Ltd
Anglo North Irish Fish Producers Organisation
Waterways Ireland

National Parks and Wildlife Service

DARD Countryside

Forest Service

Loughs Agency

District Councils

Government Departments

54

CAAN

Friends of the Earth

Institute Of Directors

Lagan Valley Regional

Mourne Heritage Trust

National Trust

Northern Ireland Environment Link

NIPSA

Royal Society for Protection of Birds

Rural Community Network

Strangford Lough and Lecale Partnership
Ulster Angling Federation Ltd

Ulster Architectural Heritage Society
Ulster Society for the Protection of the Countryside
Ulster Wildlife Trust

Wildfowl and Wetland Trust

FPA NI

Gingerbread NI

Green Party

Indian Community Centre

Institute of Directors

Law Centre (NI)

Local Government Staff Commission for NI
Lower North Belfast Community Council
Magherafelt Women'’s Group

MENCAP

Parent’s Advice Centre

Methodist Church in Ireland

Multi-Cultural Resource Centre

Newry & Mourne Women

NI Anti-Poverty Network

NI Committee of the Irish Congress of Trade Unions
NI Human Rights Commission

NI Islamic Centre

Northern Ireland Rural Women'’s Network
NI Women's Aid Federation

NIACRO

North West Forum of People with Disabilities (Derry)



Page 136

Local Political Parties

Age Concern Help the Aged

Alliance Party of Northern Ireland

An Munia Tober

Bahai Council for NI

Barnardos NI

Belfast Butterfly Club

Belfast Hebrew Congregation

Bishop of Down and Connor

British Deaf Association (NI)

Bryson Charitable Group

Carafriend

Carers Northern Ireland

Children’s Law Centre

Chinese Welfare Association
Chrysalis Womens Centre

Volunteer Centre

Coiste-na n-iarchimi

Commissioner for Children & Young People
Committee on the Administration of Justice
Community Development and Health Network (NI)
Community Relations Council
Community Places

Cruse Bereavement Care (NI)

Foyle Women'’s Information Network
Derry Well Woman

Disability Action

Down'’s Syndrome Association
Employers Forum on Disability
Sustrans

Knockbracken Healthcare Park

Falls Community Council

Falls Women Centre

55

Niamh

Northern Ireland Council for Ethnic Minorities
NSPCC

Older People’s Advocate

POBAL

Polish Association Northern Ireland
Presbyterian Church In Ireland

Royal National Institute for the Blind (NI)
Royal National Institute for the Deaf (NI)
Rural Community Network

Rural Development Council

Rural Support

Save the Children

SENSE NI

The Senior Citizens Consortium

The Cedar Foundation

The Guide Dogs for the Blind Association
The Rainbow Project

The Women's Centre

Training for Women Network Ltd
ULTACH

UNISON Northern Ireland

Volunteer Development Agency

West Belfast Economic Forum

Women'’s Resource and Development Agency
Women'’s Support Network

Women’s Forum Northern Ireland
Youthnet

NI Fire & Rescue Service

ANPA

Campaign for National Parks






Page 138



Page 139



Page 140




Page 141

APPENDIX 2

Belfast City Council’s response to the Consultation Document on Enabling
Legislation for National Parks (August 2011)

1.

What are your views on the proposed aims of national parks?

Belfast City Council welcomes the proposed aims of national parks and views these
as aiming to balance conservation of natural and cultural resources with developing
tourism and sustainable business.

What are your views on the proposed criteria for identifying areas that may be
suitable as national parks?

We would see the criteria as appropriate and sufficiently challenging to ensure that
appropriate locations are designated. One point that we feel requires clarification is
whether or not there is a minimum size requirement for areas to be considered for
national park status.

What are your views on the proposed arrangements for consulting on a
proposal to designate a specific area as a national park?

We are in agreement with the proposed arrangements for consulting on a proposal to
designate a specific area as a national park and welcome the proposal that any
decisions will be Executive rather than Ministerial. We would suggest that the point
in the process at which a public enquiry may be justified needs to be carefully
considered.

What are your views on the proposed management framework arrangements
for national parks?

The Council believes that the management framework arrangement that is chosen
for national parks needs to ensure both local and wider interests are taken into
account, as national parks will be of regional significance. We would concur that the
management body requires a long-term commitment from Government to support it.

What are your views on the proposed duties, functions and powers of a
national park management body?

The Council agrees that it would be important for any national park management
body to provide the leadership needed to bring together all relevant organisations
and individuals and to engage all relevant players in developing a vision and drawing
up plans for the national park.

What are your views on the proposed role of a national park management body
in planning matters?

The Council would suggest that the management body should be a statutory
consultee and we would welcome clarification on whether this will be the case.



Page 142

7. What are your views on the governance options?

The Council advocates any proposals which would strengthen the role of local
government, and we would agree that the governance of national parks by district
councils, as set out in option 4, would sit comfortably with proposed devolved powers
such as land use planning and community planning. It would also complement areas
that local authorities already have responsibility for such as local tourism and
economic development. We recognise that there may be an issue with this option in
that any site chosen may straddle several district council areas, and that there may
be a conflict of interest in relation to planning issues. We also acknowledge that
elsewhere there has been experience of this model not working.

With respect to option 1, we would have concerns that, with DoENI acting as
Northern Ireland’s National Parks Service, governance would be too centralised, with
limited local focus and the danger that local needs would not be sufficiently
considered.

We would also have concerns over options 2 and 3 as we feel that local
representation is important on any body that oversees national parks and/or AONBs,
and we feel that neither option would facilitate sufficient local representation.

We would agree that option 5 ‘would permit a flexible, responsive and innovative
approach’ and allow for local decision making with local buy-in. If this option is
chosen, we believe that the appropriate and balanced involvement of district councils
should assist in providing vital links to a wider knowledge base and be to the mutual
benefit of both councils and the independent bodies.

The Council believes that the chosen governance option needs to ensure both
regional and local interests are represented. Indeed, national parks are of regional
significance and, as gateways to Northern Ireland, their governance could benefit
from suitable inputs from Belfast City Council and/or the Belfast Visitor and
Convention Bureau.

8. What are your views on the proposed constitution of a national park
management body?

We are in agreement with the proposed constitution of a national park management
body and welcome the proposed mix of local and regional representation.

9. Do you share the Department’s analysis in the Partial RIA that national parks
will have little or no negative impact?

The Council does not feel that it is in a position to comment, as national park
locations have yet to be designated.

10. Are there any other comments which you wish to make about the Department’s
proposals?



Page 143

In relation to the section on access and occupiers' liability, the Council would like to
highlight the following points:

The document states that ‘it is proposed that district councils would continue to
exercise their powers under the Access to the Countryside (NI) Order within the
national park’.

The only piece of legislation in Northern Ireland that relates to access to the countryside
is the Access to the Countryside (NI) Order 1983. Under this order the Council has a
duty to assert rights of ways and this is currently carried out through the Countryside
Officer. However, whilst the legislation imposes a duty on Councils to assert, protect,
keep open and free from obstruction rights of way, it does not actually empower the
Council to enter another person’s land to do so. We would also suggest that the
legislation may need to be revisited with a view to making it more user-friendly for
landowners, and that consideration should be given to issues such as removing liability
from landowners to encourage promotion of access.

If a national park were to be instated, then there may be a perception that there is
open access to all land within the park - as in England and Wales under the
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. This would require careful consideration in
order to protect private landowners.

Under the Access to the Countryside (NI) Order 1983, it is only possible to enter into a
public path agreement, ie dedicating land in perpetuity, which is not favourable to
many landowners. It is possible through the Recreation & Youth (NI) Order 1986 to
enter into a permissive path order thereby constraining the land for a limited time.
This approach is generally more favourable with landowners, and if access is to be
achieved then this opportunity needs to be explored and strengthened.

We would also seek clarification around payment for land access with regard to the
value and source of this money.

The Council would also ask that consideration is given at any site designated as a
national park to the proper management of waste and adequate public toilet
provision.

Whilst the Council welcomes developments that increase tourism to Northern
Ireland, we would be concerned that tourism funding would be directed towards new
national parks to the detriment of other areas.

The Council feels that In advance of proposed designations, equality issues are
difficult to define and that equality issues may be become apparent when preliminary
designations are published.



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 145 Agenda ltem 17

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Healthier Families Progress Report
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer: Andrew Steenson, Health and Fitness Officer

1. Relevant Background Information

The link between leading a sedentary lifestyle and increased risk of ill health
and disease has long been established. It is widely recognised that
sedentary lifestyles increase all causes of mortality, double the risk of
cardiovascular diseases, diabetes, and obesity, and increase the risks of
colon cancer, high blood pressure, osteoporosis, lipid disorders, depression
and anxiety.

According to World Health Organisation (WHO), 60 to 85% of the population
lead sedentary lifestyles, making it one of the more serious public health
problems of our time. It is estimated that nearly two-thirds of children are also
insufficiently active, with serious implications for their future health.

Parks and Leisure Department have been working with partners for a number
of years to develop and deliver a range of activity programmes which promote
an active lifestyle and bring about sustained behaviour change at an
individual level. These programmes include Healthwise, Cardiac Rehab
Phase 4 and FRESH.

With support from the Health and Wellbeing Inter-departmental Group, the
department developed a family based intervention programme, Healthier
Families, designed to promote and sustain healthy lifestyle habits for both
parents and children.

Healthier Families was based on guidelines and recommendations of the UK
National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) which concluded
that programmes incorporating behavioural treatment alongside physical
activity and diet were effective as a health intervention tool, particularly if
parents were given the responsibility for behaviour change.




Page 146

This is supported by primary research which shows that ‘family based
behavioural treatment (FBBT) targeted at parents and child together is more
effective in developing long term healthy lifestyles than targeting child or
parents alone.

Given the limited locally based academic research on the area of family
interventions tackling sedentary lifestyles, the University of Ulster
Jordanstown (UUJ) were contracted to carry out an independent evaluation
on the Healthier Families programme. The full report is included in
appendix 1.

Key Issues

The Healthier Families programme has shown some success in developing
and maintaining health related behaviour change over a prolonged period of
time (12 months). As a result of the programme the physical activity levels
for adults involved has increased and the dietary habits and self esteem for
both adults and children has improved. There has also been an
improvement in the general health of those participating in the programme,
with a decrease in systolic blood pressure and weight in adults, and a
continued healthy weight gain in children.

Through the continued delivery of Healthier Families and learning from the
independent evaluation and experiences of the participating families, the
department is provided with the opportunity to share learning with partners
while adding to the content of Healthier Families, to develop methods of
delivering the programme to a wider audience. This would include:

¢ Raising awareness of a healthy lifestyle through educational
resources, including input from a range of internal partners within the
Development and Health and Environmental Services Departments
and external partners including the Public Health Agency (PHA) and
Belfast Health and Social Care Trust (BHSCT). This would include
providing information on the importance of a healthy lifestyle, how and
where to be active, help with planning and food shopping and
preparing meals.

e Delivery of a yearly co-ordinated citywide family based activity
programme, which provides opportunities for families to be active in a
wide range of settings including leisure centres, parks and open
spaces, community centres and partner owned facilities. Beyond
increasing opportunities to participate and be active, this programme
will assist in the development of social support and family networks.

e Embed ownership and create sustainability for the programme
through the development of volunteers to work as mentors and
provide support, motivation and inspiration to other families.

Research from this programme has also highlighted the need for further work
with families experiencing greater health related risk factors and reporting
lower self esteem. We will continue to work with partners to develop similar
research based programmes and explore potential funding sources for this
work.




Page 147

Resource Implications

Financial
Provision for the development of this programme will come from current
revenue budgets.

Human Resources
None.

Asset and Other Implications
None.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

None.

Recommendations

It is recommended that Members note the contents of the report.

Decision Tracking

N/A.

Key to Abbreviations

WHO:  World Health Organisation

FRESH: Food Relaxation Exercise Self-Esteem Health
NICE: National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence
FBBT: Family based behavioural treatment

uuJ: University of Ulster Jordanstown

PHA: Public Health Agency

BHSCT: Belfast Health and Social Care Trust

Documents Attached

Appendix 1: Monitoring and evaluation of Belfast City Council Healthier
Families Programme




Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 149

University of

ULSTER

N3C

leisure solutions

ULSTER SPORTS ACADEMY

Monitoring and Evaluation of Belfast City Council

Healthier Families Programme

Final Report August 2011

Prepared by:
Prof Marie Murphy, Mr Noel Munnis, Dr Gavin Breslin, Dr Andrea McNeuilly,

Mr Kyle Ferguson and Prof Alan Nevill



Page 150

Contents

Executive Summary

1

2

8

9

Introduction

Participants
Anthropometric Measures
Physical Activity

Health Measures
Psychosocial Measures
Nutritional Habits
Conclusions

Recommendations

References

12

14

17

20

21

24

26



Page 151

Executive Summary

Being overweight increases an individual's risk of a range of chronic diseases.
Overweight and obese adults are more likely to have overweight children and it is likely
that children’s food choices and physical activity behaviours are influenced by the family
environment. Community efforts to tackle obesity therefore have begun to focus on the
family unit. The Belfast City Council Healthier Families Programme was a 13-week pilot
programme designed to promote weight loss and encourage active lifestyles.
Participants were assessed at baseline, week 6 and at the end of the programme and
then again at 3,6 and 12 months following the end of the programme. This report
describes the effectiveness of the programme in altering a range of physical,

physiological, psychosocial and dietary parameters.

Weight decreased among adults while children maintained weight over the 13 week
intervention period. Physical activity showed an upward trend among adults and was
maintained during follow up but activity declined in children during the 12 month post-
intervention period. Following the intervention there was evidence of improvement in
self-esteem and favourable alterations in dietary intake through improved nutritional
habits. 43 out of the 99 individuals initially recruited failed to complete the intervention
and a further 23 individuals did not attend all of the follow-up assessments. Although

disappointing, this rate of compliance is not atypical for such interventions.

Our analysis suggests that participants with the highest body weight and lowest
perception of physical attractiveness at baseline were the most likely to drop out of the
intervention or follow-up assessment. Tailoring the intervention at the level of the
individual and providing greater support for the most overweight individuals and those
with the lowest level of self-esteem at baseline may be required to improve the

effectiveness of future weight-loss programmes.



Page 152

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

Being overweight increases an individual’s risk of a range of chronic diseases including
heart disease, high blood pressure, diabetes and stroke and it is thought that
approximately 30,000 deaths per year results from diseases associated with obesity
(Haslam & James, 2005). In addition overweight and obese individuals are more likely
to exhibit low self-esteem, anxiety and depression and suffer social exclusion.
Overweight and obesity are caused by an imbalance between energy intake from food
and drink consumed and energy expenditure from physical activity and that both of
these behaviours (food intake and physical activity) must be addressed in an effective
weight management programme. Overweight and obese adults are more likely to have
overweight children. Although genetic factors may play a role in this association — it is
likely that children’s food choices and physical activity behaviours are influenced by the
family environment. Efforts to tackle obesity have therefore begun to focus on the

family unit.

1.2 Healthier Families Programme

The Belfast City Council Healthier Families Programme was a 13-week pilot programme
designed to promote weight loss and encourage active lifestyles. The programme
consisted of group and individual family counselling and physical activity sessions
designed to increase physical activity and encourage family members to consume a
healthier diet.

1.3 Monitoring & Evaluation

A team of researchers from the University of Ulster’s Sport & Exercise Sciences Institute
and N3C Leisure Solutions were commissioned to assess the effectiveness of the pilot
programme in altering a range of physical, physiological, psychosocial and dietary

parameters. Participants in the programme were assessed at baseline, at 6 weeks at



Page 153

the end of the 13 week intervention and at 3, 6 and 12 months following the end of the

intervention.

1.4 Purpose

This report describes the monitoring and evaluation of the Belfast City Council Healthier
Families Programme conducted by Belfast City Council from April 2010 — June 2011.
The report outlines the results of a range of assessments carried out on the 25 families
who participated in the 13 week lifestyle intervention conducted by Diet Express (April-
June 2010) at baseline, at the midpoint of the 13 week intervention, immediately post
intervention and 3, 6 and 12 months post-intervention (Sept 2010, Jan 2011 and June
2011). The report makes several recommendations which are intended to inform plans

for expansion of the pilot and/or future weight loss programmes for families.



Page 154

2. Participants

2.1 Recruitment

25 families (46 adults 52 children) were recruited by Belfast City Council through the
Leisure Services department. Recruitment through local community, leisure and
healthcare facilities was supplemented by a media advertisement through a television
news feature. Families were recruited from four geographical areas within the BCC

area.

2.2 Drop Out & Attendance at data collection sessions

Families were required to attend 6 data collections sessions (pre-intervention, mid-
intervention, post-intervention and at 3 months, 6 months and 12 months following the
end of the intervention). Numbers attending each of the data collection sessions are
shown in Table 1. Not every participant who attended a data collection session
participated in all tests, therefore attendance data has been compiled from weight

measurements since this was the primary outcome measure in the evaluation.

Baseline Midpoint Post 3 months | 6 months | 12 months
Families 25 21 18 16 13 11
Adults 46 36 29 27 21 20
Children 52 41 31 24 25 19
TOTAL 98 77 60 51 46 39

Table 1 Number of participants attending each data collection session

Not all families who took part in the intervention attended all 6 follow-up sessions. In
addition not every member of the family attended each session. Table 2 therefore
describes participation in each family. There were 5 families where every family

member took part in all 6 data collection points.




Page 155

Fam | Ad | Ch | Participation in Data collection session

1 2 1 | All family members attended all 6 sessions

2 2 | 2 | All family members attended all 6 sessions

3 1 | 3 | All children attended all 6 sessions
Adult participated in all sessions except midpoint

4 2 2 | All family members attended all 6 sessions

5 2 | 3 | All family members attended first 2 sessions then dropped out

6 2 1 | All family members attended first 2 sessions then dropped out

7 2 | 4 | 2ad 3ch attended first 2 session, 2ad 1ch attended 12mos follow-up

8 2 | 3 | All family members attended first session then dropped out

9 1 1 | All family members attended first 2 sessions then dropped out

10 1 | 3 | All family members attended pre mid and post intervention but no follow-up

11 2 | 3 | All attended baseline 1ad 2ch attended pre mid and post no follow-up

12 2 1 | All family members attended all 6 sessions

13 2 | 2 | All family members attended pre mid post and 3mos follow-up
lad 2ch attended 6 mos follow-up no attendance at 9 mos follow up

14 1 2 | All family members attended pre mid post and 3mos and 6 mos follow-up no
attendance at 9 mos follow up

15 2 | 3 | All family members attended first session then dropped out

16 2 1 | All family members attended first session then dropped out

17 2 | 2 | All family members attended first session then dropped out

18 2 | 2 | 2ad 1ch Attended pre mid and post intervention but no follow-up

19 2 1 | All adults attended all 6 sessions Child attended all but 6 mos follow-up

20 2 | 2 | All family members attended pre mid post and 3mos follow-up
lad 1ch attended all 6 sessions

21 2 | 3 | 2ad 2ch attended all 6 sessions. 1ch attended pre, mid, post, 3 mos and 6
mos follow-up

22 2 3 | 2ad 2ch attended all 6 sessions. 1ch attended pre, mid, 6 mos and 9 mos
follow-up

23 1 1 | All family members attended pre, mid, post and 3 mos follow-up

24 2 | 2 | All family members attended all 6 sessions

25 2 | 3 | All family members attended pre and mid. 2ad and 2ch attended post and 3
mos follow-up

Table 2. Family participation in data collections sessions

Since the data collection was divided into 3 intervention (pre mid and post) and 3

follow-up (3 mos, 6 mos and 12 mos) sessions, those participants attending the pre mid

and post intervention assessments were deemed to have completed the intervention.

Pre to post intervention data and statistical analysis of the change from baseline to




Page 156

post-intervention is therefore reported for 56 participants (28 adults 28 children)

who attended baseline, 6 week and post intervention assessments.

Participants who completed all 6 assessments were deemed to have completed the
intervention and follow-up. Full data pre intervention to 12 month post intervention
follow up and statistical analysis of the change from baseline to the end of follow-up is
therefore reported for 33 participants (17 adults 16 children)

56 participants completing the intervention from an initial recruitment of 99 represents
57% adherence to the 13 week programme. 18 of the 25 families initially recruited
remained involved in the programme through to the post-intervention assessment at
week 13. 33 participants completing the intervention and all subsequent follow ups

represents 33% adherence at the 15 month time point.

A significance trawl indicated that drop out from the programme was not random.
Individuals who had the highest initial body mass were more likely not to complete the
3 intervention assessments (pre mid and post) and even more unlikely to complete the

follow-up assessments.
2.3 Demographic information on participants

Gender, age and prevalence of overweight and obesity
Intervention participants (n=56)
15 female and 13 male adults took part in the intervention. The age distribution of the

adult participants is shown below:

25-34 years 35-44 years 45-54 years
Female 3 8 4
Male 1 7 5




Page 157

11 girls and 17 boys took part in the intervention. The age distribution of the children

who participated is shown below:

5-9 years 10-14 years 15-19 years
Female 0 8 3
Male 5 7 5

Intervention and follow-up participants (n=33)

10 female and 7 male adults took part in the intervention and all follow-ups. The age

distribution of the adult participants is shown below:

25-34 years 35-44 years 45-54 years
Female 1 6 3
Male 0 4 3

7 girls and 9 boys took part in the intervention. The age distribution of the children who

participated is shown below:

5-9 years 10-14 years 15-19 years
Female 0 5 2
Male 3 3 3




Page 158

3. Anthropometric Measures

3.1 Weight

At the start of the intervention mean (+ SEM) weight of adults was 95.0 (+3.4) kg.
Using adult BMI cut-off points of BMI >25 for overweight and BMI> 30 for obese 15
adults were obese at the start of the intervention and a further 11 adults classified as
overweight. There was a statistically significant decrease in weight to 92.2 (+3.3) kg by
the end of the intervention. 24 of the 28 adults lost weight from baseline to post

intervention. Weight loss ranged from 1.5 to 6.8 kg over the 13 week period.

At the start of the intervention mean (+ SEM) weight of children was 48.4 (+3.5) kg.
Using child cut-off points and assigned age bands (as opposed to actual age) for
children we estimate that 9 children were overweight or obese at the start of the
intervention. There was slight non-significant increase in mean weight among children
over the 13 week intervention. In growing children weight gain is expected over time.
The aim of overweight and obesity prevention is not to achieve weight loss but to

prevent unhealthy weight gain.

The mean weight (kg) of participants (n=56) completing the intervention is shown

below:

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention
Adults (n=28) 94.9 92.8 92.2
Children (n=28) 48.4 48.7 48.7

For adults who took part in the intervention and follow up weight decreased
significantly during and following the intervention and rose during the 12 month follow-
up period. However even at the 12 month follow-up weight was still significantly lower

than at baseline. Children’s weight did not change over the course of the intervention




Page 159

but rose during the 12 month follow up period. Weight of participants who took part in

all assessments is shown below:

Baseline Midpoint Post 3 months | 6 months | 12 months
Adults 92.0 89.9 89.1 89.8 90.2 90.3
Children 46.1 46.6 46.6 48.0 49.3 50.4
Adults Children
94 51
92 50
. \*\*/“_—*_‘ 49
88 j? ./‘_./"/./‘
86 46
84 45
82 44
80 T T T T . y 43 +
Q?%"é\c < é\é“} : @(“e}“\ ° R @O& o @D& g, (Qc*“ %,5-5'} & éa(“i'\ @4@({\\ » <&\o& . ((\o& 0 ({\o&'
@‘8\ Q°(’d\ - © i

3.2 Body Mass Index (BMI)
BMI is a measure of weight for height. The decrease in mean weight among adults
participating in the intervention resulted in a significant decrease in BMI from baseline

to post-intervention. Likewise there was no alteration in mean BMI among children

who participated in the programme. Mean BMI (kg-m?) of adults and children who

participated in the intervention (n= are shown in the table below:

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention
Adults 32.9 32.1 31.9
Children 21.4 21.3 21.2

For adults who took part in the intervention and follow up BMI decreased significantly
during and following the intervention and rose during the 12 month follow-up period.
However even at the 12 month follow-up weight was significantly lower than at

baseline. BMI in children did not change during the intervention but rose during the 12

10




Page 160

month follow-up. BMI of participants who took part in all 6 assessments is shown

below:

Baseline Midpoint Post 3 months | 6 months | 12 months
Adults 314 30.7 30.4 30.7 30.7 30.8
Children 20.0 20.1 20.1 20.3 20.5 20.7

3.3 Waist Circumference

Waist circumference was measured as an indicator of visceral or abdominal fat. In
adult, storage of fat in this region is considered to increase cardiovascular disease risk
to a greater extent than storage of a similar amount of fat on the hips and thighs.
There was no change in mean waist circumference in adults taking part in the
intervention and a small but significant increase in the waist circumference of children
taking part. Mean waist circumference (cm) of adults and children who participated in

the intervention are shown in the table below:

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention
Adults 106.9 106.8 107.4
Children 77.0 79.9 80.3

For participants who took part in the intervention and follow up there were no
significant alterations in waist circumference during the intervention or the 12 month
follow-up period but a steady significant increase in this measure in children. Waist

circumference of participants who took part in all assessments is shown below:

Baseline Midpoint Post 3 months | 6 months | 12 months
Adults 104.0 103.3 103.8 104.5 106 103.9
Children 75.2 77.3 77.0 78.3 79.6 78.2

11




Page 161

4. Physical Activity

Physical activity was measured using pedometers. Pedometers were worn for 4 days
(Friday to Monday inclusive) in advance of each of the assessments. Although not
statistically significant mean total step counts for 4 days increased from 28,833 at
baseline to 36,550 at the post-intervention assessment. Guidelines suggest that adults
should accumulate 10,000 steps per day (40,000 over 4 days) with children aiming to
accumulate 12,000 -15,000 steps per day (48,000-60,000 over 4 days). Mean steps

over the 4 day period are shown in the table below:

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention
Adults 26,967 29,945 34,847
Children 41,896 41,004 48,465

For participants who took part in the intervention and follow up there were no
significant changes in the number of steps taken over the 4 day assessment during the
intervention or the 12 month follow-up period. Step counts for children declined during
the 12 month follow-up. 4 day step counts for participants who took part in all

assessments are shown below:

Baseline Midpoint Post 3 months | 6 months | 12 months
Adults 32,134 35,360 37,741 38,834 38,865 39,124
Children 48,113 41,740 49,255 48,293 41,597 37,231

12




Page 162

As indicated steps per day guidelines exist for children and adults, we have therefore
converted the 4 day step counts into mean daily steps for adults and children at all 6

assessments and these are shown below:

13000 A
12000 -
11000 -
10000 -
9000 -
8000 - == Adults
7000 - == Children
6000 1
\,\(\e & ,;\o‘\ & N <&
L S & (,\\OQ (Qo‘\ &o‘\
@ S & ” © o
N \;\*‘
@b &

Adults who took part in all 6 assessments were more active at baseline at the midpoint
of the intervention and at the end of the intervention than those who did not take part
in the follow-up assessments. Children’s physical activity declined during the post
intervention follow up. Physical activity among children shows a downward trend with
age and the decrease observed may reflect this change in age (children all 1 year

older).

13



Page 163

5. Health Measures

5.1 Blood Pressure

Blood pressure and resting heart rate was measured in all participants. Mean (+SEM)
systolic blood pressure in adults was 135.5 (+5.9) mmHg at baseline and showed a
non-significant decrease to 129.6 (+1.2). Diastolic blood pressure showed a statistically
significant decrease from 91.1 (+3.7) to 82.2 (+0.9). At baseline 13 participants had
diastolic blood pressure > 140mm Hg and/or diastolic blood pressure> 90 mmHg by the
post intervention measurement 4 of these participants had blood pressure beneath

these cut-offs points.

Mean systolic and diastolic blood pressure in adults and children at baseline, 6 weeks

and post intervention are shown in the table below:

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention

Systolic | Diastolic | Systolic | Diastolic | Systolic | Diastolic

Adults 136 91 129 85 130 82

Children 119 78 109 70 111 63

Adults who took part in the intervention and follow-up showed a significant decrease in
both systolic blood pressure from baseline to 12 months post intervention. There were

no significant changes in children’s blood pressure:

Baseline Midpoint Post 3 months | 6 months | 12 months

Sys [Dia |Sys |Dia |Sys |Dia |Sys |Dia |Sys |Dia |Sys |Dia

Adults 136 |87 [125 |82 |128 |83 [132 |88 |124 |81 |128 |86

Children 117 |79 |105 |66 |108 (64 |127 |69 |104 |62 |112 |72

14




Page 164

5.2 Total Cholesterol
Total cholesterol was measured from a sample of capillary blood in all adults who

participated in the intervention. Mean (+SEM) total cholesterol in adults at baseline was

4.2 mmol-I'!. This remained statistically unchanged throughout the assessments. This
total cholesterol is within normal ranges for adults aged 25-54 and therefore a
reduction as a result of a lifestyle intervention would not be expected. At baseline 8

participants had total cholesterol levels which could be regarded as elevated (>5.1
mmol-?). At the end of the 13 week intervention 5 of these individuals had total

cholesterol values within normal range. Mean total cholesterol (in mmol-I'? in adults at

baseline, 6 weeks and post intervention are shown in the table below:

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention
Male 4.1 4.2 4.2
Female 49 4.1 4.1

For adults who took part in the intervention and follow up there were no significant

alterations in total cholesterol.

assessments is shown below:

Total cholesterol of participants who took part in all

Baseline Midpoint Post 3 months | 6 months | 12 months
Male 5.0 4.5 4.3 4.6 4.6 4.4
Female 4.3 4.3 4.3 4.6 4.5 4.5

5.3 Resting heart rate

Resting heart rate (RHR) was measured at each assessment as a crude index of
cardiovascular fitness. Although there were fluctuation in HR over the three time points
these do not represent any perceptible change in cardiovascular fitness. RHR across the

3 assessments are shown in the table below

15




Page 165

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention
All 69.9 66.3 71.3
Male 79.2 68.4 76.0
Female 68.3 65.9 70.6
Adults 69.3 65.6 70.3
Children 73.0 71.0 77.7

For participants who took part in the intervention and follow up there were no

significant changes in resting heard rate during the intervention or the 12 month follow-

up period. Resting heart rate for participants who took part in all assessments is shown

below:

Baseline Midpoint Post 3 months | 6 months | 12 months
Adults 73.3 68.5 72.4 69.5 66.9 69.1
Children 76.9 73.2 77.9 77.0 77.4 76.7

16




Page 166

6. Psychosocial Measures

Participant’s self-esteem was assessed using previously validated questionnaires.
Questionnaires were self-completed by participants at each assessment. Responses to
questions were used to determine participants’ perceptions of themselves in a range of

areas. Different questionnaires were used for adult, adolescents and children.

6.1 Adults

Individual perceptions of global self-worth, physical attractiveness, athletic competence
and sociability were assessed from the adult’s responses to the questionnaire items at
baseline, after 6 weeks and at the end of the intervention. Each item was scored out of

a maximum of 4 points.

Mean global self-worth, scores increased from baseline to week 6 and this increase was
sustained through to post-intervention measurement. Mean scores for physical
attractiveness, athletic competence and sociability increased from baseline to post-

intervention. Scores on each of the 4 scales are shown in the table below:

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention
Global self worth (GSW) 2.3 2.7 2.8
Physical attractiveness (PA) 2.1 2.2 2.4
Athletic competence (AC) 1.8 1.9 2.0
Sociability (SOC) 2.8 2.9 3.0

Only 12 adults (6F 6M) completed the 4 psychological inventories at all 6 timepoints.

The mean scores on each scale are shown below.

Baseline Midpoint Post 3 months | 6 months | 12 months
GSW 2.5 2.9 2.9 2.8 3.0 2.7
PA 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.2
AC 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.3 2.5
SOC 2.7 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.9

17




Page 167

A significance trawl revealed that adults reporting higher initial Physical Attractiveness
were more likely to complete the pre and post intervention assessments and more likely

to complete the follow-up assessments.

6.2 Adolescents

Adolescents perceptions of global self-worth, physical attractiveness and athletic
competence were assessed from their responses to the questionnaire items at baseline,
after 6 weeks and at the end of the intervention. Each item was scored out of a

maximum of 4 points.
In adolescents there was no change in global self worth, physical attractiveness
following the intervention. Perceptions of athletic competence increased from baseline

to post-intervention.

Mean scores on each of the 3 scales are shown in the table below:

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention
Global self worth 3.1 3.0 2.9
Physical attractiveness 3.1 3.0 2.8
Athletic competence 29 3.1 3.8

Only 4 adolescents completed the assessments at all 6 time points making any

statistical analysis of change over the programme impossible.

6.3 Children

Children’s responses to their questionnaires were used to determine their perception of
their global self-worth, scholastic competence, athletic competence and social
acceptance at baseline, after 6 weeks and at the end of the intervention. Each item was

scored out of a maximum of 4 points.

18




Page 168

In all 4 measures mean scores increased from baseline to post intervention however
none of these increases were statistically significant. It is likely that this lack of

statistical significance is due to the small sample size.

Scores on each of the 4 scales are shown in the table below:

Baseline Week 6 Post-intervention
Global self worth 3.0 3.2 3.4
Scholastic competence 2.8 2.8 3.2
Athletic competence 2.8 3.1 3.2
Social Acceptance 3.2 3.2 3.6

Only 3 children completed the assessments at all 6 timepoints making any statistical

analysis of change over the programme impossible.

19




Page 169

7 Nutritional Habits

Nutritional habits of families were assessed using a Food Frequency Questionnaire
completed by participant at all 6 assessments. Families were required to indicate how
many times per day or week that they consumed a range of foodstuffs. This
information was used to describe dietary habits at each time point. In total 31
participants completed the food frequency questionnaires at all 6 time points. Mean

frequency of consumption per week of key foodstuffs for adults is shown in the table

below:
Baseline | Midpoint Post 3 6 12
months | months | months

Meat & Fish 16.7 16.1 16.3 15.0 13.0 13.3
Bread & Savoury biscuits 7.7 6.8 7.1 6.0 3.5 3.3
Potatoes Rice and Pasta 11.3 9.5 9.5 10.7 8.4 8.4
Dairy products and fats 16.5 15.2 15.2 15.0 8.9 9.7
Sweets and Snacks 17.0 12.8 12.8 14.0 13.9 15.0
Sugary drinks 9.1 10.6 10.7 14.2 10.6 11.6
Fruit 10.3 14.6 14.6 12.5 10.5 10.6
Vegetables 18.9 23.7 23.7 25.4 20.5 23.7

Significant decreases in consumption of meat and fish, bread and savoury biscuits,
bread rice and pasta, dairy products and fats, and sweets and snacks and a significant
increase in the consumption of fruit and vegetables appears to have occurred over the
course of the intervention and follow-up. These results should be interpreted with care
as it is likely that self-report measures of food intake exhibit considerable variation and

are affected by misreporting (Subar et al 2003)

20




Page 170

8 Conclusions

The 13 week intervention which engaged families in a range of activities designed to
encourage weight loss among those family members who were overweight and obese
and improve the nutrition and physical activity habits of all families showed some
success in altering several of the selected outcome measures. Weight decreased among
adults while children maintained weight over the 13 week period. Physical activity
showed an upward trend among adults but remained stable in children. The increase in
physical activity was maintained during follow up in adults but activity declined in
children during the 12 month post-intervention period. Following the intervention there
was evidence of some improvement in self-esteem and favourable alterations in dietary

intake through improved nutritional habits.

Drop out and/or non-compliance by 43 out of the 99 individuals initially recruited failed
to complete the intervention. This high drop-out although disappointing is not unusual
for lifestyle interventions targeting overweight and obesity. Adherence to changes in
physical activity and dietary behaviours is notoriously difficult to achieve with most

research indicated only modest adherence to such changes over 12 to 24 months.

In order to alter morbidity and mortality on a population level, such interventions need
to induce changes which are sustained over time. Accordingly, The Standard Evaluation
Framework for weight management interventions (2009) recommends that follow up
should be at a minimum of 3 points including at 1 year. The assessments at 3, 6 and 12
months following the end of this intervention allowed an evaluation of whether the
favourable changes induced by the intervention can be sustained over time. In total 33
participants from 9 families attended all 6 assessments representing one third of the
initial sample. Such adherence to follow-up measures at 15 months may not allow an
assessment of the impact of the intervention, as some families and participants may

have altered nutritional and physical activity habits as a result of the intervention but

21



Page 171

failed to attend follow-up. Incentivising attendance at assessment may encourage
participation and result in follow-up measurements which provide a more accurate
reflection of the medium-term impact of a weight loss or weight management

intervention.

Our evaluation was not designed to elicit qualitative information from participants on
the quality of the programme, reasons for adherence or drop out or other factors
affecting weight loss and physical activity behaviour changes observed. Qualitative
feedback from both participants and from the professionals delivering the intervention
may provide the type of rich data which could guide the interpretation of our
quantitative results and provide further information on reasons for adherence and non-

adherence to both the intervention and follow-up assessments.

Our analysis showed that those individuals with the highest body weight at the start of
the intervention were less likely to attend all 6 assessments. Individuals with higher
body weight may have already tried and failed on several occasions to address weight
loss. In addition physical activity may be less pleasurable and more embarrassing for
heavier individuals (Kwak at al 2006). Additional efforts to engage the heaviest
individuals or those most likely to benefit from weight loss interventions may be
required. A recent review by Elfhag and Rossner (2005) suggests that successful
weight maintenance is associated with more initial weight loss, and reaching a self-
determined goal weight. Including realistic individually agreed weight loss targets and
efforts to ensure compliance with the intervention to ensure these targets are achieved
may be necessary. Research suggests that weight loss maintenance becomes easier
after 2-5 years, emphasising the importance of interventions and support which help
people maintain a stable healthy weight in the first few years after this has been
achieved (Wing and Phelan 2005). In the current intervention participants received
ongoing but significantly reduced support after the initial 13 week programme. This
may have affected attendance at follow-up assessments and/or maintenance of weight

loss.

22



Page 172

We also identified that individuals with the highest self-reported Physical Attractiveness
at baseline were most likely to attend all 6 assessments. This highlights the importance
of self-esteem and self-efficacy in weight-loss interventions. Although the evaluation
assessed a range of psychological factors, the intervention did not explicitly attempt to
improve participants self-esteem or apply behavioural models to achieve physical
activity and dietary change. The role of behavioural psychology as a component of
weight loss programmes has been identified and it is likely that success in achieving
and maintaining weight loss is associated with factors such as internal motivation, social

support, coping strategies, self-efficacy, autonomy, and psychological strength stability.
(Elfhag and Rossner 2005).

An analysis of data from those individuals who attended all 6 assessments suggests in
general that the intervention was successful in achieving weight loss in adults and that
although weight gain occurred during follow-up reductions in weight from baseline were
still present 12 months after the intervention had ended. This suggests that intervention
may have caused some longer term alteration to physical activity and dietary
behaviours although this remains somewhat speculative. In children there was
maintenance of body weight over the course of the intervention and an increase in body
weight during the 12 month follow-up. Such an increase in body weight is not
unexpected as children grow and develop. The small number of children (n=16) the age
range (5-19) and the lack of information on status make any further interpretation of the

rate of increase in weight over this period difficult.

In conclusion the 13 week weight loss programme focused on families with 1 or more
overweight or obese members appears to have been successful in promoting weight
loss, increasing physical activity and improving self-esteem in individuals who attended
pre and post intervention assessments. Those who engaged in follow-up assessment

showed some degree of maintenance of these positive changes.

23



Page 173

9. Recommendations

On the basis of monitoring and evaluating the BCC Healthy Families programme the
following recommendations are advanced. It is intended that these recommendations
might be used to guide future family-based weight loss interventions planned by Belfast
City Council:

e Elicit feedback from participants on the quality of the intervention, perceived
barriers to adherence and attendance at follow-up assessments. This information

could be used to shape future interventions to achieve improved adherence

e Seek qualitative feedback from the professionals delivering the intervention to

inform the design of future interventions

e Incentivise participation at follow-up assessment to ensure that any evaluation is

more robust

e Tailor the intervention at the level of the individual providing greater support for
the most overweight individuals and those with the lowest level of self-esteem at

baseline.

e Where the intention is to focus on the family unit, consider identifying the ‘key
influence’ individual (for example, main food buyer/preparer or activity leader)
within the family unit and target additional support to maximise the impact of

their key role

e Conduct a thorough standardised needs analysis, including SMART goals, with
each adult and adolescent participant at the pre intervention stage. The needs
analysis should include any history of similar interventions/attempts and their

outcomes along with any perceived barriers to future success

24



Page 174

Further qualitative evaluation to explore the types of activity that were engaged
in and whether these were family based activities or performed alone and which
explore the challenges faced by family members in motivating others in their

family to be active.

Qualitative focus groups with participants who increased their activity, asking
them about their motivations and insights into the programme and how activity

could be sustained in the future.

If you dietary behaviour change is a primary objective of the intervention more
reliable methods of dietary analysis such as using day weighed diet diaries or
food photography and picture plate waste (PPW) methods which have been
successfully used to avoid the issue of under reporting/over estimating could be

employed (Black, 1993; Nelson et al., 1996).

25



Page 175

References

Black AE, Prentice AM, Goldberg GR, Jebb SA, Bingham SA, Livingstone MBE (1993)
measurements of total energy expenditure provides isnights into the validity of dietary
measurements of energy intake. Journal of the American Dietetic Association; 93; 572-
579

Elfhag K and Rossner S (2005) Who succeeds in maintaining weight loss? A
conceptual review of factors associated with weight loss maintenance and weight
regain Obesity Reviews 6 (1) 67-85

Haslam DW & James WPT (2005). Obesity. The Lancet, vol. 366, pp.1197-1209.

Jeffery, RW et al (2000) Long-term maintenance of weight loss: Current status. Health
Psychology, 19 (1,Suppl), 5-16

Kwak, L et al (2006) How is your walking group running?, Health Education, 106 (1) 21
- 31

McCarthy SN, et al (2001). Analyses of the anthropometric data from the North/South
Ireland Food Consumption Survey. Public Health Nutrition, 4(5A), pp. 1099-106.

National Obesity Observatory (2009) Standard evaluation framework for weight
management interventions. NHS. London Department of Health.2001, Health Survey for
England National Statistics.

Nelson, M., Atkinson, M., Darbyshire, S. (1996) Food Photography II: use of food photographs for
estimating portion size and the nutrient content of meals. Br J Nutr 76:31-49.

Scholfield WN, et al (1985), Human Nutrition, Clinical Nutrition, 39, (suppl 1), 1-96.

Subar A et al (2003) Using Intake Biomarkers to Evaluate the Extent of Dietary
Misreporting in a Large Sample of Adults: The OPEN Study. Am. J. Epidemiol. 158 (1):
1-13

Wing RR and Phelan S (2005) Long term weight loss maintenance. American Journal of
Clinical Nutrition, 82, (1) 222S-225S

26



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 177 Agenda ltem 18

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: APSE Service Awards 2011
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer: Victoria Law, Lead Communicator

1. Relevant Background Information

The annual Association for Public Service Excellence Awards are
presented to those organisations that have ‘demonstrated their ability to
innovate within service delivery and actively demonstrate new concepts and
examples of best practice, which continuously improve the level of service
to local communities’. The awards are designed to help promote and
demonstrate new concepts and examples of best practice in service
delivery.

In March, the department submitted one entry for the 2011 awards in the
category of Best Efficiency for the Parks and Leisure departmental
improvement programme. The awards were announced at the annual
APSE conference, which this year took place in Bristol.

2. Key Issues

The Department was selected as one of the top finalists in the Best
Efficiency category, but was unsuccessful in winning the award.

The award for this category was won by Solutions SK, a Stockport Council
company.

3. Resource Implications

None.

4. Equality and Good Relations Implications

None.




Page 178

Recommendations

Members are asked to note the content of the report.

Decision Tracking

None.

Key to Abbreviations

APSE: Association for Public Service Excellence

Documents Attached

None.




Page 179 Agenda ltem 19

Belfast City Council
Report to: Parks and Leisure Committee
Subject: Support for Sport Development Grants
Date: 13 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Andrew Hassard, Director of Parks and Leisure

Contact Officer:  Claire Moraghan, Sports Development Officer

1. Relevant Background Information

Members will be aware that delegated authority was given to the Director of
Parks and Leisure for hospitality and development applications requesting up
to £3,000 and £1,250 respectively — including a one off equipment grant of
£250.

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the decision taken by the
Director of Parks and Leisure under delegated authority regarding Support
for Sport small development and hospitality applications received during
September 2011.

2, Key Issues

The Director and relevant officer met on Monday 3 October to discuss small
development and hospitality grants.

The small development applications (delegated authority September) are
listed in Appendix 1, the hospitality grants (delegated authority September)
are listed in Appendix 2.

Detailed applications are held in the Parks and Leisure Department and can
be viewed by Members on request.




Page 180

3. Resource Implications
Financial
The table below indicates the amounts allocated from the 2010/2011 budget.

Proposed Remaining
Total Allocated allocation for after

Area available | to date September allocation
Small
Development | £120,000 | £66,879 £11,115 £42,006
Hospitality £31,000 £28,835 £4,250 £-2,085
Members are asked to note the over allocation of the hospitality budget due
to the cancellation of an event previously recommended and the occasional
instances of full amounts not being drawn down as a result of changes in
circumstances and number of guests. In effect the £31,000 budget will not
be overspent.

4. Equality and Good Relations Implications
All applications have been assessed in line with the current Support for Sport
scheme.
When the review of the Support for Sport scheme has been completed, the
revised scheme and award framework will be re-screened through the
council’s equality screening process.

5. Recommendations
That Members note the content of this report with regard to Support for Sport
development and hospitality applications.

6.0 | Decision Tracking
Sports Development Officer to arrange the award of all Support for Sport
Small Grants by 30 October 2011.

7.0 | Key to Abbreviations
None.

8.0 | Documents Attached

Appendix 1: Small Development Applications September 2011
Appendix 2: Hospitality Applications September 2011.




Appendix 1 Support for Sport Small Development Grants October 2011

ID Club/Organisation Activity details

Amount
recommended

Recommendation and reason Breakdown

D-699- North Star Netball

12

D-700- St Pauls Ladies

12

D-701- Community

12

D-702- Setanta Water Polo

12

D-
12

Requiring funding for club members to
qualify for the UKCC Level 1 and UKCC
Level 2 courses to develop the junior section
of the club and establishing an U16 section.
Mini indoor girls football blitz over 6
weekends between November and February
to develop skills, teamwork and gaelic girls
profile. Plan to invite other local clubs to
participate and this type of event is a first for
this age group in Belfast. Hosted at De La
Salle.

Mini Soccer coaching programme aimed at
males aged 11-20 years over a 12 week
period. Aimed at encouraging males who
have no experience in playing soccer to
develop their soccer skills, social
development, increase physical activity and
enjoyment

A water polo weekly tournament starting in
October lasing 8 weeks for mainly males
aged 8-29. Tournament hopes to develop
coaching/refereeing skills at all levels both
within the club and other clubs, Hosted at
Falls LC

Club

Gaelic Football

Orangefield

Association

Club

Only club working out of West Belfast
playing at De La Salle. They want to skill up
coaches to work from closely with the
juniors. Funding for 4 club members to
qualify for Umpiring C Badge, UKCC Level 1
and UKCC Level 2 plus equipment grant

703- Westside Netball
Club

To fund up to a maximum of
£980 not representing more |Coach Education: £1305
£980 + £250 than 75% of eligible costs.  Total: £1305-75%=
equipment +£250 equipment grant £980+£250 equipment grant

To fund up to a maximum of Coaching costs: £720
£990 not representing more  Faculty hire:£600
£990 than 75% of eligible costs.  Total:£1320-75%=£990

To fund up to a maximum of
£675 not representing more |Coaching costs: £900
£675 than 75% of eligible costs. | Total:£900-75%=£675

To fund up to a maximum of |Coaching Costs: £674
£1000 not representing more |Facility Hire: £659
£1000 than 75% of eligible costs.  Total:£1333-75%= £1000

To fund up to a maximum of

£743 not representing more Coach Education: £990
£743+250 than 75% of eligible costs.  Total: £990-75%= £743+£250
Equipment +£250 equipment grant equipment grant

18| abed



Appendix 1 Support for Sport Small Development Grants October 2011

D-704- Graduates Netball
12 Club

D-705- Chung Do Kwan
12 Belfast

D-706-

12 Ballysillan Youth F.C

D-707- Ulster Deaf Sports
12 Council

D-709- Ulster Deaf Sports
12 Council

D-708- Holywood Netball
12 Club

Funding required to train up volunteers that
currently help out at the club, sustaining
them with long term goal of establishing a
junior team. Courses are UKCC Level 1 and
2, Netball Europe 'A" Umpiring courses

New club based at Avoniel Leisure Centre
who hope to expand through Martial Arts
seminars, Olympic sparring competitions
and purchasing new equipment. Also to
develop current players to high performance,
recruit new players and developing
coaches/instruct

Kick start programme aimed at increasing
soccer participation for children aged 10-18
years in the North Belfast area. Equipment
grant required to buy additional training aids
for the new soccer teams

Costs to teach 30 deaf children to swim with
the long term aim of helping them compete
at national and international swimming
events.

To book fully qualified hearing interpreters to
assist with sport coaching and strategic
sports development events so that deaf
participants can understand and engage.
Sports include swimming, bowls, badminton,
ladies basketball and golf to benefit 200+
participants

Funding for UKCC Level 2 coaching courses
to develop the club and equipment grant for
the anticipated development section the club
hope to establish

To fund up to a maximum of
£736 not representing more Coach Education: £968
£736 than 75% of eligible costs.  Total: £968-75%= £736

To fund up to a maximum of |Coaching costs:£921
£1000 not representing more |Facility Hire: £412
than 75% of eligible costs.  Total: £1333-
£1000 +£250 equipment grant 75%=£1000+£250 Equipment

Coaching Costs:£256
Coach Education:££220
To fund up to a maximum of |Facility Hire:£382
£753 not representing more | Trophies:£143
£753 than 75% of eligible costs.  Total: £1004-75%=£753

To fund up to a maximum of |Coaching Costs: £533
£1000 not representing more |Facility Hire:£800
£1000 than 75% of eligible costs.  Total:£1333-75%=£1000

Only £1000 is available per
financial year per
organisation. We are in
discussion with the club to
assist with other funding
opportunities to cover

0 interpreter costs.

To fund up to a maximum of |Coach Education: £570
£653 not representing more |Facility Hire: £300
£653 than 75% of eligible costs.  Total: £870-75%=£653

28| ebed



Appendix 1 Support for Sport Small Development Grants October 2011

D-710- Orangegrove
12 Athletics Club

D-711-
12 Ulster Rockets Club

Coaching award for new assistant coach to
deliver sessions to mini section aged 8-11.
Club to host Victoria Park relay event (which
had achieved championship status, the club
hope to reinstate it within the NI Athletic
calendar. The event to allow club members
to compete with other clubs in Ireland.

The Ulster Rockets is a "superclub" that has
brought together all the top senior players
from clubs in Belfast and has given them a
pathway to play in the All Ireland Super
League - the only NI team to do so.
Assistance is requested for facility hire and
officals costs to host the other super league
teams.

To fund up to a maximum of
£585 not representing more

£585 than 75% of eligible costs.

To fund up to a maximum of
£1000 not representing more
than 75% of eligible costs.

£1000+£250 +£250 equipment grant

Coach Education: £470
Marketing:£20

First Aid/officals:£90
Trophies £200

Total: £780-75%=£585

Facility Hire:£900
Officals costs:£433
Total:£1333-
75%=£1000+£250

Total Amount allocated to
date

£66,879

Total amount
allocated
October

£11,115

£77,994

£g| abed



Page 184

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 Support for Sport Hospitality Grants September 2011

Amount
ID Club/Organisation Title of event Tourism Appeal Recommendation | recommended
Visit of Passage West GAA from Cork,
Clann Eireann from Armagh and Carryduff
H-101-12 |St Pauls GAC ladies from Carryduff Total of 195 people over 2 days |Recommend £400
NI Association of Visually UK Indoor Singles Championships for 85 people travelling from
H-102-12 |Impared Bowlers Visually Impaired England, Scotland and Wales Recommend £500
Do not recommend
Cross community event for 60 |- Guests from
H-103-12 |Ligoniel Working Men's Club  |Cross Community Football Fest people Belfast only. -
350 guest, President of Swim
Ireland, President of Ulster
Clonard Amateur Swimming Branch IWPA, Lord Mayor and
H-104-12 |Club Clonard Waterpolo ASC-90th Year Past players Recommend £2,000
Over 9 home matches a total of
270 anticipated to visit and stay
H-105-12 |Ulster Rockets All Ireland Super-League in Belfast Recommend £1,350
Total amount allocated Overall
Total Amount allocated to date £28,835|September £4,250|Total: £33,085

Gg| abed



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1d Facilities Management Agreement - Termination of Contract
	2 Departmental Improvement Programme â•ﬁ Review of Landscape Planning and Development Unit
	Appendix 1 - Departmental Improvement Programme â•ﬁ Review of Landscape Planning and Development Unit
	Appendix 2 - Departmental Improvement Programme â•ﬁ Review of Landscape Planning and Development Unit

	3 Facility Management Agreements
	4 Antisocial Behaviour Programme Update
	Appendix 1 - Antisocial Behaviour Programme Update
	Appendix 2 - Antisocial Behaviour Programme Update
	Appendix 3 - Antisocial Behaviour Programme Update
	Appendix 4 - Antisocial Behaviour Programme Update
	Appendix 5 - Antisocial Behaviour Programme Update

	5 London 2012 Olympic Torch Bearer Nominations
	Appendix 1

	6 Suffolk Football Club
	7 Out of Hours Use of Leisure Centres
	8 Catafalque at Belfast Crematorium
	Appendix 1 -  Catafalque at Belfast Creatorium
	Appendix 2 -  Catafalque at Belfast Creatorium
	Appendix 3 -  Catafalque at Belfast Creatorium

	9 Small Grants Scheme
	10 Schools Cup at Musgrave Playing Fields
	11 Multi Users Games Area at Waterworks (Upper)
	Appendix 1 - Multi Users Games Area at Waterworks (Upper)

	12 Hire of Musgrave Bowling Pavilion
	13 Mary Peters Track
	14 Midnight Soccer Programme
	15 Approval to Seek Tenders
	16 Consultation on Enabling Legislation for National Parks
	Appendix 1 - Consultation on Enabling Legislation for National Parks
	Appendix 2 - Consultation on Enabling Legislation for National Parks

	17 Healthier Families Progress Report
	Appendix 1 - Healthier Families Progress Report

	18 Association for Public Service Excellence Awards 2011
	19 Support for Sport Development and Hospitality Grants
	Support for Sport  - Appendix 1
	Support for Sport  - Appendix 2


